
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Meeting  
May 4, 2017  

7:05 PM  
(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting)  

City Hall – Council Chambers 
665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  

 
Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, May 4, 2017 at 7:05 
pm or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting at Lucas City Hall, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As authorized 
by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for 
the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during 
the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  
By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to 
speak at the City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council 
cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion 
on a future agenda. 

 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk, Fire Chief Ted Stephens) 
 

A. Presentation of the StormReady Preparedness Certification to the City of Lucas 
from Tom Bradshaw with the National Weather Service.  



B. Presentation of a Proclamation for Motorcycle Awareness Month to the Blacksheep 
Motorcycle Club.  

 
C.  Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and 

provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.  
 

Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single 
vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3. Approval of the minutes of the April 20, 2017 City Council meeting. (City Secretary Stacy 

Henderson) 

Public Hearing 
 
4. Hold a public hearing to consider the annexation of a parcel of land located in the City of 

Lucas, Collin County, Texas, being a part of the John Gray Survey, Abstract Number 349, 
being a part of the George Gunnell Survey, Abstract No. 352, being a part of the Ann S. 
Hurt Survey, Abstract No. 428, being a part of the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 
538, being a part of the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, and being all of a called 
78.944 acre tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to Mentone Partners, LLC, 
as recorded in Document Number 20151028001365820, of the Deed Records of Collin 
County, Texas more commonly known as Stinson Highlands Phase 3. (Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn)  

  
 A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 B. Conduct Public Hearing 

Regular Agenda 
 
5. Consider an agreement for the provision of solid waste collection and disposal between the 

City of Lucas and Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the agreement. (City Manager Joni Clarke)  

 
6. Consider and finalize the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), appoint the Capital 

Improvements Advisory Committee, and appoint the required advisory committee member 
from the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  (Development Services Director Joe 
Hilbourn) 

 
7. Discuss drainage solutions and flows east of Angel Parkway, south of McGarity Lane, and 

north of W. Lucas Road. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn, Public Works Director/City 
Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

 
8. Discuss the City Council May meeting schedule, including holding the May 18, 2017 City 

Council meeting, and determine who will conduct the meeting in the absence of the Mayor 
and Mayor Pro Tem. (Mayor Olk)  

  
9. Consider setting a date for the City Council Strategic Planning Session. (Mayor Jim Olk)  
 
10. Update by City Manager Joni Clarke regarding the Scenic City Certification Program and 

provide guidance to staff regarding the City of Lucas participating in the program.  
(Councilmember Debbie Fisher)  



 
11. Discuss the installation and removal of traffic control devices within the City of Lucas. 

(Councilmember Debbie Fisher) 
 
12. Update by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn regarding the water meter 

replacement program and provide guidance to staff.  (City Manager Joni Clarke)  
 
13. Discuss and consider the capital projects associated with the City’s water system and 

roadway improvements discussed at the March 2, 2017 City Council meeting and associated 
funding strategies. (Councilmember Debbie Fisher)  

Executive Session 
 
14. The City Council may enter into Executive Session as permitted under the Texas 

Government Code, Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of 
real property within the City of Lucas. (Mayor Jim Olk)  

 
15. Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 

Session. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
16. Adjournment.  
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 3:00 p.m. on May 1, 2017.   

 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations 
for persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be 
directed to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
 Citizens’ Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk, City Manager Joni Clarke, Fire Chief Ted Stephens  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Items of Community Interest: 
 
2a. Presentation of the StormReady Preparedness Certification to the City of Lucas from 

Tom Bradshaw with the National Weather Service.  
  
2b. Presentation of Proclamation for Motorcycle Awareness Month to the Blacksheep 

Motorcycle Club.  
 
2b. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and provide 

guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Proclamation to Blacksheep Motorcycle Club 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  



Proclamation 
Motorcycle Safety and Awareness 

Month 
WHEREAS, we are finding more and more citizens involved in motorcycling on the roadways of our 
country; and 
 
WHEREAS, motorcyclists are roughly unprotected and therefore more prone to injury or death in a crash 
than other vehicle drivers; and 
 
WHEREAS, campaigns have helped inform riders and motorists alike on motorcycle safety issues to reduce 
motorcycle related risks, injuries, and, most of all, fatalities, though a comprehensive approach to motorcycle 
safety; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of all who put themselves behind the wheel, to become aware of 
motorcyclists, regarding them with the same respect as any other vehicle traveling the highways; and it is the 
responsibility of riders and motorists alike to obey all traffic laws and safety rules; and 
 
WHEREAS, we urge all citizens of our community to become aware of the inherent danger involved in 
operating a motorcycle, and for riders and motorists alike to give each other the mutual respect they deserve;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE I, Jim Olk, Mayor of the City of Lucas do hereby proclaim the month of May 2017 
as Motorcycle Safety and Awareness Month in the City of Lucas, and I urge all residents to do their part to 
increase safety and awareness in our community. 
 
PROCLAIMED, this 4th day of May 2017.  
 
 
_______________________     ________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor       Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
 
Consent Agenda Items:   
 
3. Approval of the minutes of the April 20, 2017 City Council meeting.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Minutes of the April 20, 2017 City Council meeting 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  A p r i l  2 0 ,  2 0 1 7  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

April 20, 2017 
6:35 P.M. 

(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District Meeting)  
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 

Minutes 
 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 6:49 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
Finance Director Liz Exum 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens 
Assistant Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator 
Lance Gant  

 
Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence 
their cell phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input.  
 

Community Interest 
 
2. Community Interest Items. 

 
A. Presentation of Proclamation to Frank and Dorma Prokop honoring their 50th 

Wedding Anniversary.  
 
Mayor Olk presented the Proclamation to Frank and Dorma Prokop.  
 

B.  Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and 
provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.  

 
Councilmember Fisher asked that the City Attorney give an update at an upcoming meeting 
regarding franchise fees and the use of City right-of-way.  
 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  A p r i l  2 0 ,  2 0 1 7  

Councilmember Millsap noted that HB 15 should be watched as it could have an impact on the 
City’s tax rate for next year. 
 
Mayor Olk asked that an item be placed on the May 4, 2017 City Council agenda regarding setting a 
date to hold a strategic planning session before the July 20, 2017 budget workshop.  
 

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Approval of the minutes of the April 6, 2017 City Council meeting.  
 
MOTION :  A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to approve the 

Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 

Regular Agenda 
 
4. Consider calling a special City Council meeting for the purpose of canvassing the May 

6, 2017 election results.  
 
MOTION :  A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Duke to call a special meeting for 

May 12, 2017at 8:00 am to canvass the May 6, 2017 election results.  
 
5. Discuss the Capex Consulting Group Water and Wastewater Rate Study and Five Year 

Financial Plan and consider the methodology used to establish the proposed water and 
wastewater rates.  

 
Jeff Snowden with Capex Consulting Group gave a presentation discussing the City’s current and 
proposed debt obligation, customer account growth and anticipated growth, and the City’s operating 
revenue, expense and proforma cash flow under existing rates.  Mr. Snowden also compared the 
City’s rate to surrounding cities and explained that the purpose of the study was to implement a rate 
plan that would enable the water fund to meet operating and capital expenditure requirements for a 
five-year period beginning in fiscal year 2017-2018. 
 
The City Council discussed how Lucas compared to surrounding cities on their rates, the cost 
impact to the resident of proposed increased water rates, and the rate for out of city customers.  The 
City Council also discussed consumption amounts versus usage, and the current below average rate 
being charged to commercial customers as compared to other cities.  
 
The City Council directed staff to proceed with an increase to the residential water rate structure by 
five percent (5%) and increasing the commercial water and wastewater rate by ten percent (10%).  
The City Council also directed staff to maintain the current rate structure of 1.5 for minimum usage 
for out of City customers.  
 
6. Consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00852 of the City Council of the City of Lucas, 

Texas, approving the Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2016 and ending September 30, 2017.  

 
Finance Director Liz Exum briefed the Council on mid-year budget revenue and building permit 
trends, property tax and sales tax collection, expenditures to the water fund, available funds in 
reserve, and expenditure adjustments to the General Fund and proposed mid-year budget requests. 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  A p r i l  2 0 ,  2 0 1 7  

 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to adopt Ordinance 2017-04-00852 amending the budget for fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2016 and ending September 30, 2017 as submitted.  The 
motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
7. Executive Session.  
 
An Executive Session was not held during this meeting.  
 
8. Adjournment.  
 
MOTION :  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to adjourn 

the meeting at 8:22 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 

 
        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Hold a public hearing to consider the annexation of a parcel of land located in the City of Lucas, 
Collin County, Texas, being a part of the John Gray Survey, Abstract Number 349, being a part 
of the George Gunnell Survey, Abstract No. 352, being a part of the Ann S. Hurt Survey, 
Abstract No. 428, being a part of the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538, being a part of 
the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, and being all of a called 78.944 acre tract of land 
described in a Special Warranty Deed to Mentone Partners, LLC, as recorded in Document 
Number 20151028001365820, of the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas more commonly 
known as Stinson Highlands Phase 3. 
  
 A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 B. Conduct Public Hearing 
 
Background Information:  
 
Stinson Highlands Phase 3 is currently not within the city limits. As part of an approved 
development agreement, Stinson Highlands is required to apply for annexation within ten days of 
approval of their final plat, which they have done. The property will eventually have two zones 
on it, R-1 on the southern lots and R-2 on the northern lots.   
 
This parcel has an approved development agreement that includes a time frame for annexation.  
Stinson Highlands Phase 3 has supplied a voluntary annexation form as requested. This 
subdivision already has an approved preliminary plat, final plat and construction plans. Site 
development is complete. The parcel in question is continuous, meets the requirements for 
annexation, owners have been verified, and taxes are up to date.  
 
Annexation requirements include holding two public hearings before any formal action can be 
taken. Public hearings have been scheduled for the May 4 and May 18, 2017 City Council 
meetings.  Formal action on this item is scheduled to take place at the June 1, 2017 City Council 
meeting.  
 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Public notice 
2. Legal Description 
3. Depiction  
4. Copy of petition for annexation 
5. Location Map 

  



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
An additional 45 residential homes for annual property taxes and water revenue.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approving the annexation after two public hearings have been held. 
 
Motion:  
 
No vote is required at this time.  
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

FOR ANNEXATION 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will hold two public hearings regarding the petition filed 
by D.R. Horton Homes requesting the City annex a parcel of land located on 

Stinson Road thereinafter described. The first public hearing will begin at 7:00 PM on May 4, 
2017 and a second public hearing will be held on May 18, 2017. Both public hearings will be 
held at the City of Lucas City Hall located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The 
property to be considered for annexation is located in Collin County, Texas, and described as 
follows: 
 
WHEREAS, MENTONE PARTNERS, LLC, is the owner of that parcel of land located in the 
City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, being a part of the John Gray Survey, Abstract Number 
349, being a part of the George Gunnell Survey, Abstract No. 352, being a part of the Ann S. 
Hurt Survey, Abstract No. 428, being a part of the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538, 
being a part of the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, and being all of a called 78.944 
acre tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to Mentone Partners, LLC, as recorded in 
Document Number 20151028001365820, of the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, 
(D.R.C.C.T.), and being further described as follows: 
BEGINNING at a one-half inch iron rod found at the southeast corner of said 78.944 acre tract of 
land, said point being the northeast corner of Stinson Highlands, Phase 2, an addition to the City 
of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2013, Page 308, Plat Records of Collin County, Texas 
(P.R.C.C.T.), and said point also being in the west line of Bristol Park, Phase 2, an addition to 
the City of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2014, Page 701, (P.R.C.C.T); 
THENCE along the north line of said Stinson Highlands, Phase 2 as follows: 
South 80 degrees 08 minutes 07 seconds West, 375.35 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
Southeasterly, 38.17 feet along a curve to the left which has a central angle of 03 degrees 56 
minutes 27 seconds, a radius of 555.00 feet, a tangent of 19.09 feet, and whose chord bears South 
12 degrees 13 minutes 09 seconds East, 38.17 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner; 
South 75 degrees 58 minutes 58 seconds West, 275.42 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 07 degrees 44 minutes 21 seconds West, 231.44 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 87 degrees 00 minutes 23 seconds West, 541.09 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 84 degrees 57 minutes 32 seconds West, 476.34 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
Southwesterly, 58.93 feet along a curve to the left which has a central angle of 09 degrees 00 
minutes 15 seconds, a radius of 375.00 feet, a tangent of 29.53 feet, and whose chord bears South 
04 degrees 46 minutes 54 seconds West, 58.87 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner; 
South 00 degrees 16 minutes 47 seconds West, 47.30 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 



North 86 degrees 05 minutes 41 seconds West, 245.49 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found at 
the southwest corner of said 78.944-acre tract of land, said point being the northwest corner of 
said Stinson Highlands, Phase 2, said point also being in the east line of that called Tract 2 as 
described in deed to The Umphy Corporation as recorded in Document No. 
20071231001715950, (D.R.C.C.T.); 
THENCE along the west line of said 78.944 acre tract of land as follows: 
North 00 degrees 17 minutes 03 seconds East, 674.26 feet to a 60d nail found at the northeast 
corner of said Tract 2; 
North 88 degrees 01 minutes 54 seconds West, 112.82 feet along the north line of said Tract 2 to 
a five-eighths inch iron rod found at the southeast corner of that called 48.6223 acre tract of land 
described in deed to Lewis Bend Partners, Ltd. as recorded in Document No. 
20061120001651500, (D.R.C.C.T.); 
North 00 degrees 20 minutes 28 seconds West, 631.69 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found 
for corner; 
North 00 degrees 26 minutes 51 seconds West, 505.00 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found 
for corner; 
North 00 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds West, 159.07 feet to a 60d nail found at the northwest 
corner of said 78.944 acre tract of land, said point being in the south line of the Estates at Austin 
Trail, an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Cabinet N, Page 709, (P.R.C.C.T); 
THENCE along the north line of said 78.944 acre tract of land along the south line of said 
Estates at Austin Trail as follows: 
South 54 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds East, 142.11 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
South 56 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, 311.77 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
South 62 degrees 02 minutes 10 seconds East, 94.76 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
South 81 degrees 15 minutes 00 seconds East, 24.08 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 82 degrees 08 minutes 32 seconds East, 585.06 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 69 degrees 40 minutes 01 seconds East, 58.79 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 64 degrees 37 minutes 43 seconds East, 115.25 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
North 84 degrees 56 minutes 00 seconds East, 115.25 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found at the 
southeast corner of said Estates at Austin Trail, said point being in the west line of Belmont Park, 
an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2013, Page 85, (P.R.C.C.T); 
South 03 degrees 40 minutes 21 seconds East, 6.06 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found at 
the southwest corner of said Belmont Park; 
THENCE along the north line of said 78.944acre tract of land along the south line of said 
Belmont Park as follows: 
South 55 degrees 14 minutes 42 seconds East, 147.31 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
  



South 65 degrees 55 minutes 04 seconds East, 391.42 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found 
for corner; 
South 81 degrees 02 minutes 21 seconds East, 194.66 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found at 
the northeast corner of said 78.944 acre tract of land, said point being in the west line o99, 
(P.R.C.C.T); 
THENCE South 01 degrees 00 minutes 48 seconds East along the east line of said 78.944 acre 
tract of land, at 270.52 feet passing a five-eighths inch iron rod found at the southwest corner of 
said Bristol Park, Phase 1 and at the northwest corner of said Bristol Park, Phase 2, in all a total 
distance of 893.74 feet to a five eighths inch iron rod found for corner in the west line of said 
Bristol Park, Phase 2; 
THENCE along the east line of said 78.944 acre tract of land and along the west line of said 
Bristol Park, Phase f Bristol Park, Phase 1, an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in 
Volume 2014, Page 6 
 2 as follows: 
North 87 degrees 47 minutes 13 seconds East, 4.45 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found for 
corner; 
South 01 degrees 12 minutes 25 seconds East, 700.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 
containing 3,438,793 square feet or 78.944 acres of land. 
 
Those wishing to speak regarding the above item are invited to attend. If you are unable to attend 
and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country 
Club Road, Lucas Texas 75002 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us  and it will be 
presented at the hearing. If you have any questions regarding the hearing please contact Joe 
Hilbourn at 972.912.1207.  

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


EXHIBIT "A" 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATION 

Legal Description 

WHEREAS, MENTONE PARTNERS, LLC, is the owner of that parcel of land located in the 
City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, being a part of the John Gray Survey, Abstract Number 349, 
being a part of the George Gunnell Survey, Abstract No. 352, being a part of the Ann S. Hurt 
Survey, Abstract No. 428, being a part of the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538, being a 
part of the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, and being all of a called 78.944 acre tract 
of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to Mentone Partners, LLC, as recorded in 
Document Number 20151028001365820, of the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, 
(D.R.C.C.T.), and being further described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a one-half inch iron rod found at the southeast corner of said 78.944 acre tract of 
land, said point being the northeast corner of Stinson Highlands, Phase 2, an addition to the City 
of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2013, Page 308, Plat Records of Collin County, Texas 
(P.R.C.C.T.), and said point also being in the west line of Bristol Park, Phase 2, an addition to the 
City of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2014, Page 701, (P.R.C.C.T); 

THENCE along the north line of said Stinson Highlands, Phase 2 as follows: 
South 80 degrees 08 minutes 07 seconds West, 375.35 feet to a one-half inch iron 

rod found for corner; 
Southeasterly, 38.17 feet along a curve to the left which has a central angle of 03 

degrees 56 minutes 27 seconds, a radius of 555.00 feet, a tangent of 19.09 feet, and whose chord 
bears South 12 degrees 13 minutes 09 seconds East, 38.17 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found 
for corner; 

South 75 degrees 58 minutes 58 seconds West, 275.42 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

North 07 degrees 44 minutes 21 seconds West, 231.44 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

North 87 degrees 00 minutes 23 seconds West, 541.09 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

North 84 degrees 57 minutes 32 seconds West, 476.34 feet to a one-half inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

Southwesterly, 58.93 feet along a curve to the left which has a central angle of 09 
degrees 00 minutes 15 seconds, a radius of 375.00 feet, a tangent of 29.53 feet, and whose chord 
bears South 04 degrees 46 minutes 54 seconds West, 58.87 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found 
for corner; 

South 00 degrees 16 minutes 47 seconds West, 47.30 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

North 86 degrees 05 minutes 41 seconds West, 245.49 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found at the southwest corner of said 78.944 acre tract of land, said point being the northwest 



corner of said Stinson Highlands, Phase 2, said point also being in the east line of that called 
Tract 2 as described in deed to The Umphy Corporation as recorded in Document No. 
20071231001715950, (D.R.C.C.T.); 

THENCE along the west line of said 78.944 acre tract of land as follows: 
North 00 degrees 17 minutes 03 seconds East, 674.26 feet to a 60d nail found at the 

northeast corner of said Tract 2; 
North 88 degrees 01 minutes 54 seconds West, 112.82 feet along the north line of said 

Tract 2 to a five-eighths inch iron rod found at the southeast corner of that called 48.6223 acre 
tract of land described in deed to Lewis Bend Partners, Ltd. as recorded in Document No. 
20061120001651500, (D.R.C.C.T.); 

North 00 degrees 20 minutes 28 seconds West, 631.69 feet to a five-eighths inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

North 00 degrees 26 minutes 51 seconds West, 505.00 feet to a five-eighths inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

North 00 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds West, 159.07 feet to a 60d nail found at the 
northwest corner of said 78.944 acre tract of land, said point being in the south line of the Estates 
at Austin Trail, an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Cabinet N, Page 709, (P.R.C.C.T); 

THENCE along the north line of said 78.944 acre tract of land along the south line of said 
Estates at Austin Trail as follows: 

South 54 degrees 00 minutes 40 seconds East, 142.11 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

South 56 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, 311.77 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

South 62 degrees 02 minutes 10 seconds East, 94.76 feet to a one-half inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

South 81 degrees 15 minutes 00 seconds East, 24.08 feet to a one-half inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

North 82 degrees 08 minutes 32 seconds East, 585.06 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

North 69 degrees 40 minutes 01 seconds East, 58.79 feet to a one-half inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

North 64 degrees 37 minutes 43 seconds East, 115.25 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

North 84 degrees 56 minutes 00 seconds East, 115.25 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found at the southeast corner of said Estates at Austin Trail, said point being in the west line of 
Belmont Park, an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2013, Page 85, 
(P.R.C.C.T); 

South 03 degrees 40 minutes 21 seconds East, 6.06 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod 
found at the southwest corner of said Belmont Park; 

THENCE along the north line of said 78.944acre tract of land along the south line of 
said Belmont Park as follows: 

South 55 degrees 14 minutes 42 seconds East, 147.31 feet to a one-half inch iron rod 
found for corner; 



South 65 degrees 55 minutes 04 seconds East, 391.42 feet to a five-eighths inch 
iron rod found for corner; 

South 81 degrees 02 minutes 21 seconds East, 194.66 feet to a five-eighths inch iron 
rod found at the northeast corner of said 78.944 acre tract of land, said point being in the west 
line of Bristol Park, Phase 1, an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Volume 2014, Page 
699, (P.R.C.C.T); 

THENCE South 01 degrees 00 minutes 48 seconds East along the east line of said 78.944 acre 
tract of land, at 270.52 feet passing a five-eighths inch iron rod found at the southwest corner of 
said Bristol Park, Phase 1 and at the northwest corner of said Bristol Park, Phase 2, in all a total 
distance of 893.74 feet to a five eighths inch iron rod found for corner in the west line of said 
Bristol Park, Phase 2; 

THENCE along the east line of said 78.944 acre tract of land and along the west line of said 
Bristol Park, Phase 2 as follows: 

North 87 degrees 47 minutes 13 seconds East, 4.45 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod 
found for corner; 

South 01 degrees 12 minutes 25 seconds East, 700.26 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 3,438,793 square feet or 78.944 acres of land. 









Stinson Highlands
Phase 3



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: City Manager Joni Clarke 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider an agreement for the provision of solid waste collection and disposal between the City 
of Lucas and Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
agreement. 
 
Background Information:  
 
The contract between the City of Lucas and Barnes Waste Disposal for Solid Waste Collection 
and Disposal expires on September 30, 2017 with an option to renew for two additional terms of 
one year each.  Norman and Stacie Barnes with Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. advised the City that 
recycling has become increasingly difficult to manage.  The City Council directed staff to enter 
into a new agreement for solid waste collection and disposal that would commence on October 1, 
2017 and terminate on September 30, 2022. The following services are included in the proposed 
agreement: 
 
(a) Residential refuse collections at curbside or, if qualified (disabled or elderly), house side, 

in response to the individual customer’s request, all other “house side” collection is subject 
to Contractor approval. All trash, garbage and refuse must be bagged and placed in an 
appropriate container. Contractor shall have no obligation to pick up or otherwise collect 
motor vehicle tires, oil, batteries, hazardous chemicals or items containing refrigerants.  
Contractor shall perform collection service no less frequently than once per week. 

 
(b) Collect unbundled brush (cut not greater than 4 feet in length) and bulky items in a volume 

of (2) cubic yards [6’x3’x3’], no less frequently than twice per month. Unbundled brush 
and bulky items shall be and placed curbside for collection. As used herein, a “bulky item” 
shall refer to appliances (not containing refrigerants) water tanks, yard maintenance 
machines, furniture and waste materials other than dead animals or hazardous waste.   

 
(c) Collect unlimited bundled brush (cut not greater than 4 feet in length) and not heavier than 

40 pounds per bundle, and placed curbside for collection.  
 
(d) At the request of the customer, Contractor will collect 10 cubic yards of brush curbside 

twice per year per household at no additional cost to the customer.  This service must be 
scheduled with the Contractor and shall be collected on a first come first basis. 

 
(e) Contractor shall have no obligation to collect or dispose of construction, remodel, or 

landscape/brush debris if generated by a business, individual or entity providing such 
services to the property owner.  

 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

(f) The resident should call Contractor for household hazardous waste collection for special 
pick up instructions.  Collection of these materials may require extra charges negotiated by 
Contractor and the individual resident.   

 
(g) Excessive amounts, as determined by Contractor, may require extra charges negotiated by 

Contractor and the individual resident.   
 
(h) Refrigeration appliances not certified and tagged by an HVAC technician may be subject 

to a $35.00 disposal fee that shall be billed to the individual resident by Contractor.  
 
(i) Contractor shall host, with the help of City staff, one (1) annual clean-up event for each 

year of the Agreement. The event shall be scheduled on a Saturday agreed to by the 
Contractor and the City at a location provided by the City.  

 
(j) Manure or stable matter shall be negotiated by Contractor and the individual resident per 

95-gal container and billed directly to the resident.  Resident must purchase containers for 
manure/stable matter.  

  
In addition, the proposed agreement includes a recycle addendum for consideration. The Contractor 
will provide a staffed drop off collection truck at a location provided by the City. Collection of 
recycling at the drop off location will occur no less than once per month. Contractor will man the drop 
off location a minimum of four (4) hours per month. It is the sole discretion of the Contractor to 
determine what items will be acceptable for recycle collection, and the Contractor has no obligation 
to accept or dispose of items the Contractor determine to be unacceptable.  Contractor will bill the 
City for this service at a rate of $500 per month. 
  
This contract has been reviewed by City Attorney Joe Gorfida and Norman and Stacie Barnes of 
Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  

1. Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement effective for five years commencing on 
October 1, 2017 and terminating on September 30, 2022 

2. Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. Solid Waste Rate Structure Summary 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The pricing structure reflecting in the proposed contract include:  
 
Monthly rates for Basic Service  $21.57 
 
Monthly rates for Expanded Service  $26.50 
 
Monthly rates for Expanded Plus Service $31.43 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

 
Monthly rates for additional service for each additional 120 gallons 
of refuse or polycart collected above the Expanded Plus Service $  4.93 
 
Note:  Rates reflect the addition of sales tax at a rate of 8.25%, a franchise fee of 7% and 
administrative fee of 8%. 
 
“Basic” service consists of collection of one (1) 95-gallon polycart or [up to 120 gallons] of refuse 
disposed of each week. “Expanded” service consists of the use of any approved container in 
addition to the approved container(s) used for basic service [up to 240 gallons]. “Expanded Plus” 
service consists of the use of any approved container in addition to the approved container(s) used 
for basic service [up to 360 gallons], “Additional” service consists of the use of any approved 
container in addition to the approved container(s) used for “Expanded Plus” service [billed in 
multiples of 120 gallons], without change to collection frequencies or collection of brush and bulky 
items.  Additional approved containers for “Expanded” service shall consist of either one (1) 95-
gallon polycart or equivalent size containers totaling 240 gallons. Additional approved containers 
for “Expanded Plus” service shall consist of either two (2) 95-gallon polycart or equivalent size 
containers totaling 360 gallons. Customers shall inform the City or Contractor, of their request for 
“Expanded”, “Expanded Plus”, or “Additional” service. Contractor shall have no obligation to 
collect or dispose of refuse in excess of either service amount chosen by the customer. 
 
If the City Council chooses to include the recycling option outlined in the addendum, the 
Contractor will bill the City for this service at a rate of $500 per month. 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement with Barnes 
Waste Disposal, Inc. 
 
Motion:    
I make a motion to approve/deny of the Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement with 
Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 
PAGE 1 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
§ SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND  

    § DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 

 
This Contract ("Contract") is entered into by and between the City of Lucas, Texas, ("City") 

and Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. ("Contractor"), (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”), 
acting by and through their authorized representatives. 

 
RECITALS: 

 
 WHEREAS, City desires to engage the services of Contractor as an independent contractor 
and not as an employee to provide services on the terms and conditions provided in this Agreement; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor desires to render services for garbage collection and disposal, and 
collection of yard waste for delivery to permitted and/or approved waste facilities from all single-
family dwellings and City facilities under the terms and conditions provided in this Agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants set forth herein and other 
valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

 
Article I 

Definitions 
 
 Wherever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them: 
 
 City shall mean the City of Lucas. 
 

Contractor shall mean any person, corporation, partnership or similar entity that contract 
for valuable consideration to pick up or collect municipal solid waste on a regular basis from any 
collection point within the corporate or service limits of the City of Lucas. As used herein, "Contractor" 
refers specifically to Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. 

 
Municipal solid waste shall mean solid waste resulting from or incidental to municipal, 

community (residential), household and recreational activities including garbage, rubbish, ashes 
and other solid waste other than industrial solid waste as defined by state or federal law. 

 
Article II 

Term 
 
 2.1 The Initial Term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years, commencing on October 
1, 2017 (“Commencement Date”), and terminating on September 30, 2022. 
 
  



 
PAGE 2 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

2.2 Upon expiration of the Initial Term, City shall have the option to renew this 
Agreement for two (2) additional terms of one (1) year each (each a “Renewal Term”).   
 

Article III 
Scope of Services 

 
 3.1 Contractor is hereby granted the privilege and duty within the territorial jurisdiction 
of City, and agrees to furnish all personnel, labor, equipment, trucks, and other items necessary to 
provide solid waste collection and disposal for residential customers in accordance with this 
Contract and to perform all of the work called for and described in the contract documents. 
Contractor agrees to at all times insure that its waste collection franchise is current and in 
compliance with all applicable regulations of the State of Texas, and ordinances of the City of 
Lucas, Texas. It is understood that this franchise is non-exclusive. 
 
 3.2. Contractor shall at all times be duly licensed or permitted to deposit municipal solid 
waste at or in a land fill regulated and approved by the Texas Natural Resource Conservation 
Commission and any other appropriate state or federal authorities. 
 
 3.3 Recycling services shall be provided as set forth in the Recycle Addendum attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 3.4. Contractor agrees that the City shall retain the right to place limitations on the 
collection, including prohibiting collection trucks on certain streets where heavy trucks will 
damage the street. 
 

Article IV 
Schedule of Work 

 
 Contractor agrees to commence services on the Commencement Date and to complete the 
required services as set forth in herein. 
 

Article V 
Rates and Services 

 
 5.1 Contractor shall provide the following services: 
 

(a) Residential refuse collections at curbside or, if qualified (disabled or elderly), house 
side, in response to the individual customer’s request, all other “house side” 
collection is subject to Contractor approval. All trash, garbage and refuse must be 
bagged and placed in an appropriate container. Contractor shall have no obligation 
to pick up or otherwise collect motor vehicle tires, oil, batteries, hazardous 
chemicals or items containing refrigerants.  Contractor shall perform collection 
service no less frequently than once per week. 

 
(b) Collect unbundled brush (cut not greater than 4 feet in length) and bulky items in a 

volume of (2) cubic yards [6’x3’x3’], no less frequently than twice per month. 



 
PAGE 3 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

Unbundled brush and bulky items shall be and placed curbside for collection. As 
used herein, a “bulky item” shall refer to appliances (not containing refrigerants) 
water tanks, yard maintenance machines, furniture and waste materials other than 
dead animals or hazardous waste.   

 
(c) Collect unlimited bundled brush (cut not greater than 4 feet in length) and not 

heavier than 40 pounds per bundle, and placed curbside for collection.  
 
(d) At the request of the customer, Contactor will collect 10 cubic yards of brush 

curbside twice per year per household at no additional cost to the customer.  This 
service must be scheduled with the Contactor and shall be collected on a first come 
first basis. 

 
(e) Contractor shall have no obligation to collect or dispose of construction, remodel, 

or landscape/brush debris if generated by a business, individual or entity providing 
such services to the property owner.  

 
(f) The resident should call Contractor for household hazardous waste collection for 

special pick up instructions.  Collection of these materials may require extra charges 
negotiated by Contractor and the individual resident.   

 
(g) Excessive amounts, as determined by Contractor, may require extra charges 

negotiated by Contractor and the individual resident.   
 
(h) Refrigeration appliances not certified and tagged by an HVAC technician may be 

subject to a $35.00 disposal fee that shall be billed to the individual resident by 
Contractor.  

 
(i) Contractor shall host, with the help of City staff, one (1) annual clean-up event for 

each year of the Agreement. The event shall be scheduled on a Saturday agreed to 
by the Contractor and the City at a location provided by the City.  

 
(j) Manure or stable matter shall be negotiated by Contractor and the individual 

resident per 95-gal container and billed directly to the resident.  Resident must 
purchase containers for manure/stable matter.  

 
  5.1 Containers.   Customers shall use approved receptacles for collections consisting of 
95-gallon polycarts.  Contractor shall provide all Customers with one (1) polycart, at the option of 
each Customer at no charge. For expanded service, as defined herein, Contractor shall provide 
additional polycarts per household at no charge at customer’s request. If additional containers are 
desired, the Customer may request them from Contractor or provide their own container for excess 
refuse. In the event any Customer’s complimentary polycart is lost, stolen or destroyed such that 
its use is rendered impractical or unsanitary, Contractor shall replace one (1) container per 
Customer during the term of this Contract, exclusive of any additional terms or extensions hereof.  
In the event any Customer shall request replacement of a second polycart after having received on 



 
PAGE 4 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

prior replacement, Contractor shall negotiate a fair and reasonable price with each such Customer 
and shall charge each such Customer directly. 
 

5.3 Pricing Structure.  Monthly rates, per Customer, shall be as follows: (rates reflect 
the addition of sales tax and the combined franchise/right-of-way use fee and administrative fee): 
 

Basic Service:Monthly rates for Basic Service $21.57 
 

Expanded Service: Monthly rates for Expanded Service  $26.50 
 

Expanded Plus Service: Monthly rates for Expanded Plus Service $31.43 
 

Additional Service:  Monthly rates for each additional 120 gallons of refuse or 
polycart collected above the Expanded Plus Service     $  4.93 

 
 “Basic” service consists of collection of one (1) 95-gallon polycart or [up to 120 gallons] 
of refuse disposed of each week. “Expanded” service consists of the use of any approved container 
in addition to the approved container(s) used for basic service [up to 240 gallons]. “Expanded 
Plus” service consists of the use of any approved container in addition to the approved container(s) 
used for basic service [up to 360 gallons], “Additional” service consists of the use of any approved 
container in addition to the approved container(s) used for “Expanded Plus” service [billed in 
multiples of 120 gallons], without change to collection frequencies or collection of brush and bulky 
items.  Additional approved containers for “Expanded” service shall consist of either one (1) 95-
gallon polycart or equivalent size containers totaling 240 gallons. Additional approved containers 
for “Expanded Plus” service shall consist of either two (2) 95-gallon polycart or equivalent size 
containers totaling 360 gallons. Customers shall inform the City or Contractor, of their request for 
“Expanded”, “Expanded Plus”, or “Additional” service. Contractor shall have no obligation to 
collect or dispose of refuse in excess of either service amount chosen by the customer. 
 

Article VI 
Contractor Duties 

 
6.1 Contractor shall at all times maintain in a current and valid status, all permits required 

by any other governmental agency or political subdivision having jurisdiction over Contractor's 
operations, including but not limited to the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission. 

 
6.2 Contractor shall not allow any municipal solid waste to spill or fall from the Contractor's 

equipment within the corporate limits of the City. In the event that spillage should occur, the 
Contractor shall completely remove such spillage. 

6.3 Contractor shall insure that any of its trucks and equipment used for collection 
within the City, and under this franchise meets the approval of the City.  Contractor agrees to only 
use trucks and equipment that will prevent spillage and damage to the streets and ways used by such 
trucks and equipment. Contractor shall also abide by any City regulations with regard to the placement 
of collection containers if it becomes necessary to establish such regulations.  Unless such 
regulations become necessary, the Contractor shall establish such locations. 

 



 
PAGE 5 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

6.4 Contractor shall clearly mark all of its collection vehicles with the Contractor's name, 
address and telephone number.  The trucks used by Contractor to collect waste within the City shall 
be no larger than a "single axle" type, and shall not exceed 26,000 pounds in weight. 

 
6.5 Contractor shall comply with all additional terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 
Article VII 

Restoration of Public Ways 
 

 Contractor shall not cause damage, beyond normal wear and tear, to any street or roadway 
within the City. In the event the Contractor causes damage to any street or roadway within the 
City, the Contractor shall be given written notice to immediately cause such damage to be repaired 
under the supervision of the City.  If such damage is not repaired within the time stated, the City 
may terminate this Agreement for cause pursuant to Article XI.   

 
Article VIII 

Availability of Funds 
 

 If monies are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of 
performance in a subsequent fiscal period, this Agreement shall be canceled and Contractor may 
only be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any non-recurring costs incurred but not amortized 
in the price of services delivered under this Agreement or which are otherwise not recoverable.  
The cost of cancellation may be paid from any appropriations for such purposes. 
 

Article IX 
Insurance 

 
 9.1 Contractor shall during the term hereof maintain in full force and effect insurance 
with complies with the Specifications set forth in herein and contains, at a minimum: (1) a policy 
of insurance for bodily injury, death and property damage insuring against all claims, demands or 
actions relating to Contractor’s performance of services pursuant to this Agreement with a 
minimum combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for injury to persons 
(including death), and for property damage; (2) policy of automobile liability insurance covering 
any vehicles owned and/or operated by Contractor, its officers, agents, and employees, and used 
in the performance of this Agreement; and (3) statutory Worker’s Compensation Insurance or 
equivalent covering all of Contractor’s employees involved in the provision of services under this 
Agreement. 
 

9.2 All insurance and certificate(s) of insurance shall contain the following provisions: 
(1) name the City, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds as to all applicable 
coverage with the exception of Workers Compensation Insurance; (2) provide for at least thirty 
(30) days prior written notice to the City for cancellation, non-renewal, or material change of the 
insurance; (3) provide for a waiver of subrogation against the City for injuries, including death, 
property damage, or any other loss to the extent the same is covered by the proceeds of insurance. 
 



 
PAGE 6 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

9.3 All insurance companies providing the required insurance shall either be authorized 
to transact business in Texas and rated at least “A” by AM Best or other equivalent rating service, 
or approved by the City Risk Manager.  A certificate of insurance evidencing the required 
insurance shall be submitted to the City prior to commencement of services. 
 

Article X 
Indemnification 

 
 10.1 CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR AND SHALL DEFEND, 
INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD CITY (OR ANY OF CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES OR 
EMPLOYEES), FREE AND HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL 
CLAIMS, LIABILITIES, DEMANDS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS OR EXPENSE TO 
ALL PERSONS (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES) ARISING OUT OF RESULTING FROM OR OCCURRING IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK THAT IS (I) ATTRIBUTABLE TO ANY 
BODILY OR PERSONAL INJURY, SICKNESS, DISEASES OR DEATH OF ANY 
PERSON OR ANY DAMAGE OR INJURY TO OR DESTRUCTION OF REAL OR 
PERSONAL PROPERTY (OTHER THAN THE WORK ITSELF) INCLUDING THE 
LOSS OF USE THEREOF, AND (II) CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY ANY 
NEGLIGENT, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER ACT OR OMISSION OF 
CONTRACTOR, ANY SUBCONTRACTOR OR SUPPLIER, THEIR RESPECTIVE 
AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES OR ANY OTHER PARTY FOR WHOM ANY OF THEM 
MAY BE LIABLE REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH IS CAUSED IN PART BY THE 
NEGLIGENT, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER ACT OR OMISSION OF A PARTY OR 
PARTIES INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER. 
 
 10.2 SAID INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT SHALL 
ALSO APPLY TO CLAIMS ARISING FROM ACCIDENTS TO CONTRACTOR, ITS 
AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES, WHETHER OCCASIONED BY CONTRACTOR OR ITS 
EMPLOYEES, THE CITY OR ITS EMPLOYEES, OR BY ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
PERSONS. 
 
 10.3 IN THE EVENT OF JOINT OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF BOTH 
CONTRACTOR AND THE CITY, RESPONSIBILITY, IF ANY, SHALL BE 
APPORTIONED COMPARATIVELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF TEXAS, WITHOUT, HOWEVER, WAIVING ANY GOVERNMENTAL 
IMMUNITY AVAILABLE TO CONTRACTOR OR THE CITY UNDER TEXAS LAW.  
THE CITY SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ITS NEGLIGENCE AND CONTRACTOR 
SHALL HAVE NO INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
TO THE EXTENT OF THE CITY’S NEGLIGENCE.   
 
 10.4 THE INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED IN 
ANY WAY BY ANY LIMITATION ON THE AMOUNT OR TYPE OF DAMAGES, 
COMPENSATION OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER THE WORKERS’ OR 
WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY ACTS OR OTHER EMPLOYEE 
BENEFIT ACTS. 



 
PAGE 7 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

 
Article XI 

Termination 
 

 11.1 City may terminate this Agreement, or any portion thereof, at any time with or 
without cause, by serving a notice of termination on Contractor by registered or certified mail 
addressed to Contractor at the address set forth herein.  If termination is for cause, the notice shall 
state the specific reasons in support of City’s claim that Contractor has failed to perform its 
obligations (and/or cure any material breach) under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be allowed 
a thirty (30) day period from the date of receipt of said notice from City to remedy any failure to 
perform.  Should City deem the failure to perform remedied, no hearing shall be held.  If City 
terminates this Agreement without cause, Contactor shall be paid for work performed up to the 
time of termination.  In no event shall Contractor be entitled to lost or anticipated profits in the 
event this Agreement is terminated without cause. 
 
 11.2 Should Contractor fail to remedy its performance, after a hearing described herein, 
City may terminate this Agreement and the rights and privileges granted to Contractor herein.  A 
notice shall be sent to Contractor no earlier than ten (10) days before a hearing is scheduled.  The 
notice shall specify the time and place of the hearing and shall include the specific reasons in 
support of City’s claim that Contractor has substantially breached the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement.  Should City still deem Contractor to have failed in its performance, said hearing shall 
be conducted in public by the City Council and Contractor shall be allowed to be present and shall 
be given full opportunity to answer such claims as are set out against it in the aforesaid notice.  If, 
after said public hearing, the City Council makes a finding that Contractor has failed to provide 
adequate refuse collection service for City, or has otherwise substantially failed to perform its 
duties hereunder, the City Council may terminate this Agreement. 
 

Article XII 
Miscellaneous 

 
 12.1 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement 
between the Parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements between 
the Parties with respect to this subject matter. 
 
 12.2 Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City.  In the event of an assignment by Contractor to which the City has consented, 
the assignee shall agree in writing with the City to personally assume, perform, and be bound by 
all the covenants, and obligations contained in this Agreement. 
 12.3 Successors and Assigns.  Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this 
Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 12.4 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement; and 
venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall be in Collin County, Texas.  The Parties 
agree to submit to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction of said Court. 
 



 
PAGE 8 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

 12.5 Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement 
of the Parties. 
 
 12.6 Severability.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions, and the Agreement 
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
in it. 
 
 12.7 Independent Contractor.  All services to be performed by Contractor pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be in the capacity of an independent contractor, and not as an agent or 
employee of the City.  Contractor shall supervise the performance of its services and shall be 
entitled to control the manner and means by which its services are to be performed, subject to the 
terms of this Agreement. 
 
 12.8 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent by 
first class mail, overnight courier or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address specified 
below, or to such other Party or address as either Party may designate in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 
 

If intended for City:   With Copy to: 
 

 Attn:  City Manager   Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
City of Lucas    Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
665 Country Club Rd.   1800 Lincoln Plaza 
Lucas, Texas 75002   500 North Akard 
Phone: (972) 727-8999  Dallas, Texas 75201 
     Phone: (214) 965-9900 
 
If intended for Contractor: 
 
Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. 
P.O. Box 245 
Princeton, Texas 75407 
Phone: (972) 396-1139 
 

 12.9 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in separate 
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such 
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.  Each counterpart may consist 
of any number of copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the Parties 
hereto. 
 
 12.10 Inspection of Books and Records.  City, or any duly authorized representative of 
City, may at all reasonable times inspect and examine the books and records of Contractor for the 
purpose of (a) checking the salary costs and other expenses described and/or contemplated in this 
Agreement or (b) otherwise confirming Contractor’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.  



 
PAGE 9 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

Contractor shall maintain said books and records and other evidence pertaining to costs, and shall 
make such materials available at its office, during the term of this Agreement and for the period of 
three (3) years after the date of final payment thereunder. 
 

12.11 Compliance with Federal, State & Local Laws.  Contractor shall comply in 
performance of services under the terms of this Agreement with all applicable laws, ordinances 
and regulations, judicial decrees or administrative orders, ordinances, and codes of federal, state 
and local governments, including all applicable federal clauses.   

 
 12.12 Force Majeure.  No Party will be liable for any default or delay in the performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement if and to the extent such default or delay is caused, directly 
or indirectly, by a Disaster, riots, civil disorders, acts of terrorism or any similar cause beyond the 
reasonable control of such Party, provided that the non-performing Party is without fault in causing 
such default or delay.  The non-performing Party agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to 
recommence performance as soon as possible.   
 

(signature page to follow) 
 



 
PAGE 10 LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

EXECUTED this _______ day of _____________________, 2017. 
 
     City of Lucas, Texas 

 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Joni Clarke, City Manager 
 

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________ 
 Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 (04-17-2017/85354) 
  
 
 
 EXECUTED this _______ day of _____________________, 2017. 
 
 

Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc. 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: ____________________________________ 



EXHIBIT 
“A” 

LUCAS AND BARNES WASTE DISPOSAL, INC. 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 

 

Recycle Addendum 
 
Recycle Service and Rate 
 

Service Requirements: Contractor will provide a staffed drop off collection truck at a location 
provided by the City. Collection of recycling at the drop off location will occur no less than 
once per month. Contractor will man the drop off location a minimum of four (4) hours per 
month. It is the sole discretion of the Contractor to determine what items will be acceptable 
for recycle collection, and the Contractor has no obligation to accept or dispose of items the 
Contractor determine to be unacceptable.   
 
Rate: Contractor will bill the City for this service at a rate of $500 per month. 
 
Service Cancelation: City may terminate the Recycle Addendum, or any portion thereof, 
at any time with or without cause, by serving a notice of termination on Contractor by 
registered or certified mail addressed to Contractor at the address set forth herein. 
Contractor may terminate the Recycle Addendum, or any portion thereof, at any time with 
or without cause, by serving a notice of termination on City by registered or certified mail 
addressed to City at the address set forth herein. If City terminates this Recycle Addendum 
without cause, Contactor shall be paid for work performed up to the time of termination.  
In no event shall Contractor be entitled to lost or anticipated profits in the event this Recycle 
Addendum is terminated without cause. If Contractor terminates this Recycle Addendum 
without cause, Contactor shall complete all work for which Contractor has been paid up to 
the time of termination. 



5/1/2017

Barnes Waste Disposal, Inc.
Solid Waste Rate Structure

Basic 
Service

Expanded 
Service

Expanded 
Plus

Trash Service $17.50 $21.50 $25.50
Franchise Fee 7% $1.23 $1.51 $1.79
Admin Fee 8% $1.40 $1.72 $2.04
State Sales Tax 6.25% $1.09 $1.34 $1.59
City Sales Tax 2% $0.35 $0.43 $0.51
Proposed Monthly Charge to Residents $21.57 $26.50 $31.43

Note: 
Basic Service includes 1 - 95 gal polycart. 
Expanded Service includes 2 - 95 gal polycarts.
Expanded Plus includes 3 - 95 gal polycarts.
Additional Service - Monthly rates for each additional 120 gallons of refuse or polycart collected above 
the Expanded Plus Service - $4.93.



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 04, 2017 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

Agenda Item:  
 
Consider and finalize the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), appoint the Capital Improvements 
Advisory Committee, and appoint the required advisory committee member from the City’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  
 
Background Information: 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan is a planning document for capital improvements related to City 
streets and drainage, water system infrastructure and facilities. The Capital Improvement Plan 
includes policies and procedures, streets and trails projects, and water system projects that 
coincide with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan to guide infrastructure needs for the City. 
 
The infrastructure outlined in the Capital Improvement Plan establishes goals for the anticipation 
of growth in the City, and outlines processes for funding, project criteria, and project 
prioritization. 
 
The City’s CIP and land use assumptions should be updated every five years. The last CIP 
update was September 20, 2011. The land use assumptions were updated in March as part of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The next steps in the process are for the Council to form an advisory committee to review the 
CIP and update the Impact fee schedule. Impact fees are a means to impose fees upon each new 
development project to pay the costs of constructing capital improvements and facility 
expansions necessary to serve new developments. The rules for the advisory committee are 
below: 
 
Sec. 10.02.003     Advisory Committee 
(a)     The capital improvements advisory committee (advisory committee) shall consist of the 

planning and zoning commission. If the advisory committee does not include at least one 
representative of the real estate, development or building industry who is not an employee 
or official of a political subdivision or governmental entity, the city council shall appoint 
at least one such representative as an ad hoc voting member of the advisory committee. If 
any impact fee is to be applied in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the city, a 
representative from the area shall be appointed by the city council. 

(b)     The advisory committee serves in an advisory capacity and is established to: 
(1)     Advise and assist in the adoption of land use assumptions; 
(2)     Review the capital improvements plan and file written comments; 
(3)     Monitor and evaluate implementation of the capital improvements plan; 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 04, 2017 
 

(4)     File semiannual reports with respect to the progress of the capital improvements 
plan and report to the city council any perceived inequities in implementing the plan 
or imposing the impact fee; and 

(5)     Advise the city staff and council of the need to update or revise the land use 
assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fee. 

(c)    All professional reports concerning the development and implementation of the capital 
improvements plan shall be made available to the advisory committee. 

(d)    The advisory committee shall elect a chairperson to preside at its meetings and a vice-
chairperson to serve in his absence. All meetings of the advisory committee shall be open 
to the public and posted at least 72 hours in advance. A majority of the membership of the 
advisory committee shall constitute a quorum. 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has one member, Scott Sperling, that qualifies as the 
member from the real estate/building industry. We will need to appoint one member from the  
City’s ETJ. Staff would recommend if he is willing is to appoint Rick Van Horn, he was the 
person appointed during the last CIP evaluation and Impact fee study.  
 
After the members of the advisory committee are established, Staff will work with the committee 
to schedule a meeting to review the CIP and land use assumptions.  Upon completion of the 
review process, staff will engage BW2 to facilitate the calculation of the impact fees.  Once this 
calculation is complete, a public hearing will be scheduled.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Capital Improvement Plan    
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve as presented.  
 
Motion: 
 
I make a motion to finalize the Capital Improvement Plan, appoint the following members 
_________________to the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee, and appoint 
_____________ to the Advisory Committee from the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction.  
 



1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF LUCAS 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

2 0 1 6 - 2 0 3 0  
  



2 | P a g e  
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP)  
2016-2030 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 

Introduction ..................................................................................................Page 3 
 
Goals ..............................................................................................................Page 3 
 
Development Process ..................................................................................Page 4 
 
Capital Improvement Plan  .........................................................................Page 5 
 
Project Criteria ..............................................................................................Page 5 
 
CIP Amendment  ..........................................................................................Page 6 
 
Capital Needs Prioritization ........................................................................Page 6 
 
CIP Street and Trail Project List  ................................................................Page 8 
 
CIP Street and Trail Project At-A-Glance  ................................................Page 9 
 
CIP Water System Project List....................................................................Page 41 

 
  



3 | P a g e  
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
Introduction  
 
The City of Lucas Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a valuable part of the community 
planning process. The CIP links local infrastructure investments with comprehensive plan 
goals, land use ordinances, and economic development efforts. The CIP bridges the gap 
between planning and spending as well as between the visions of the comprehensive plan 
and the fiscal realities of improving and expanding community facilities. The purpose of the 
CIP policy is to create a fair and consistent process outlining procedures for proposing, 
evaluating, and adopting capital projects creating long-term benefits. 
 
The CIP is a five-year planning document adopted by the City Council to plan for capital 
improvements related the City's street and drainage system, water system infrastructure and 
facilities. The CIP is not to be confused with the Capital Improvement Budget. The Capital 
Improvement Budget is prepared each year in conjunction with the annual Operating 
Budget. It generally includes only those projects from the first year of the CIP funded during 
the current year, and will address additional capital needs that are not included in the CIP, 
such as equipment and vehicles as recommended by the Vehicle Replacement Committee.  
 
A capital project is defined as having a minimum cost of $5,000 resulting in 1) the creation of a 
new fixed asset or 2) enhancement of an existing fixed asset. 
 
Typically, the life expectancy of a capital project is 20 years, but it depends on the 
classification of the asset. Examples of capital projects include construction or expansion of 
public buildings, the acquisition of land for public use, planning, waterline/water system 
improvements, sewer mains as defined in the wastewater plan, engineering costs, and street 
and drainage construction. Example of an enhancement to a fixed asset would be 
reconstruction or reconditioning of streets.  
 
Goals 
  

1. Preserving public welfare and safety - Providing the basic services that ensure public 
welfare and safety is the fundamental responsibility of local government. The 
cumulative effect of deferring investment in needed infrastructure and basic 
improvement of essential services is often an expensive series of stopgap measures 
that fail to address comprehensive, long-term needs. 

 
2. Anticipating the demands of growth - When related to the comprehensive plan, the 

capital improvement planning process works to anticipate investments in community 
facilities and infrastructure which are needed to serve or shape the pattern of growth 
and development. 

 
3. Supporting economic development - Having sound fiscal health and high quality 

facilities and services are attractive to business and potential residents. New corporate 
investment and reinvestment in a community may be influenced by improvements that 
enhance the quality of life for their labor force. Private decisions that bring jobs to an 
area and new taxes to a community are based not only on availability of water and sewer, 
but also upon the quality of schools, public safety, recreation opportunities, and many other 
services.  The City of Lucas has identified two areas for commercial development that are 



4 | P a g e  
 

located on its peripheral boundaries to complement the high quality of life and not hinder or 
negatively impact it. 

 
4. Developing a fair distribution of capital costs - The CIP process allows for public 

discussion of the preferred means of distributing capital costs over time. Funding 
strategies to consider include: 

 
a. Annually, the City earmarks funds in the unrestricted fund balance to save for 

future projects. 
b. Issuance of debt that is paid by both existing and future users of the facility.  
c. User fees may be deemed more appropriate than property taxes.  
d. Federal or state funds may also be available to help finance specific projects.  

 
The CIP process can promote discussion of funding strategies. 

 
5. Avoiding undue tax increases - Capital improvement planning is a means of avoiding 

the unpleasant surprise of expensive projects generating large property tax increases. 
While cost impacts cannot always be precisely determined in advance, the CIP fosters 
discussion of the distribution of the tax burden of new capital expenditures over time. 
A corollary benefit of fiscal stability and sound community facility planning can result 
in an improved bond rating. 

 
Development Process 
 
The CIP outlines the major utility infrastructure, streets and drainage, facilities, parks, and other 
improvements needed to serve the citizens, meet growth related needs, and comply with state and 
federal regulations. 
 
Preparation - The Finance Director coordinates the annual update and adoption of the five-
year CIP as a part of the annual budget process. The City Manager will lead the review and 
prioritization of capital projects for City Council consideration. The Finance Director, Public 
Works Director/City Engineer, Development Services Director, and the City Manager shall 
prioritize and rank projects according to the criteria listed in project criteria section. The CIP 
includes all costs associated with the design, rights- of- way acquisition, and construction of a 
project, as well as the estimated operating and maintenance costs, which impacts future operating 
budgets. The following guidelines will be utilized in developing the CIP: 
 

1. Solicit citizen participation in formulating the identification and prioritization of the CIP. 
2. Identify capital improvements through system models, repair and maintenance records, and 

growth demands. 
3. Prioritize CIP projects based on input from City staff from all operational areas related to 

each project and its effect on operations. 
 
The CIP will be submitted to City Council for review, revision, and approval.  It will be reviewed 
and revised annually to include updated information. 
 
Control – All capital project expenditures must be appropriated in the capital budget.  The Finance 
Director or City Manager must certify the availability of resources before any capital project 
contract is presented to the City Council for approval. 
 
Financing Programs - Recognizing that long-term debt is usually a more expensive financing 



5 | P a g e  
 

method, alternative financing sources will be explored before debt is issued. When debt is issued, 
it will be used to acquire major assets with expected lives which equal or exceed the average life of 
the debt issue. Impact fees, assessments, pro-rata charges, or other fees may be used to fund 
capital projects. 
 
Reporting - Periodic financial reports will be prepared to enable the Department Directors to 
manage their capital budgets and to enable the Finance Department to monitor and control the 
budget as authorized. Capital project status reports will be presented to City Council. 
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2016-2020 
 
Departments will include as part of their project proposal: 
 

1. A Project Summary providing an overview and justification of the project.  
 

2. A Fiscal Overview that includes estimated cost estimates and funding strategies that 
proposes funding options must be identified including: 

a. Operating Revenues 
b. Reserves and/or Debt 
c. Grants 
d. Partnerships with Other Organizations 
e. Impact Fees 
f. Developer Funded 

 
Expense estimates must be identified in the section for design, site acquisition, 
construction, and estimated annual maintenance and operating cost impact based on the 
current estimated cost and values. To help manage cash flows, the financial plan must be 
complete to ascertain the impact on multiple fiscal years. 

 
3. A Project Description section will provide additional project detail such as estimated 

linear feet, square feet or other applicable measurement, language that explains the overall 
need for the project as well as the benefit to the community. 

 
4. Proposed Schedule identifying major milestones such as the design, bid, and 

construction phases. 
 

5. Identification of the Project Manager. 
 
Additional information may be requested by the City Manager and/or the members of the City 
Council. 
 
Project Criteria 
 
The evaluation of proposed capital projects will be in accordance with the following 
criteria:  
 

1. Public Health, Safety, and Welfare - Projects improving the public health, safety, and 
welfare of the community will be rated with highest priority. Projects must 
demonstrate the benefit provided to the community and possible risks from not 
completing the project. Compliance with state and federal mandates fall under this 
category. 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
2. Quality of Life - Projects enhancing the quality of life enjoyed by citizens, such as 

equestrian and hiking trails throughout the city, will receive a high priority. 
 

3. Funding - Funding availability considerations are included when ranking projects. 
Grants and funding partnerships are considered first followed by operating 
revenues, fund balance, and debt.  Debt may be issued to fund capital projects after 
alternative funding sources are explored. 

 
4. Economic Development - Projects enhancing and promoting the establishment of 

commercial business with the highest and best use for a parcel of land that is zoned 
commercial will be given the highest priority. 

 
CIP Amendment 
 
Amendments to the CIP effecting the current fiscal year must be recommended by the City 
Manager and approved by the City Council through a budget amendment. Amendments will 
be considered according to project scoring criteria as previously identified. Higher priority 
will be given to projects necessary for the public health, safety, and funding availability. 
 
Any plan for the future must be based upon an estimate of certain characteristics. These 
characteristics may change and vary from time to time and when they do, the CIP should be 
updated. It may require that certain proposed improvements be implemented immediately or even 
delayed. Further, this plan is meant to be flexible.  It is to be used as a tool to help establish a 
course of action.  
 

CIP Project Prioritization 
 
Using the criteria identified in the Project Criteria section of this document will assist staff and 
ultimately the elected officials in rating each project to facilitate prioritization. 
 
There are various rating schemes available for establishing capital improvements priorities. The 
following set of standards are used as the evaluation method for the City: 
 
• High – Essential capital improvements are projects which are activities needed to promote 

public welfare and safety.  Projects classified under this category are projects of the highest 
priority. 

 
• Routine – Necessary capital improvements are projects which are needed for the convenience 

and conservation of endangered resources, or for the completion of partially completed 
projects. Projects of this type include improvements which are considered necessary for a 
progressive growing community and for problems that do not negatively impact public 
welfare. 

 
• Low – Desirable capital improvements are projects which protect property, replace obsolete 

facilities, reduce operating costs and add to the attractiveness of the community. Projects of 
this type are not considered high priority and may be delayed, or removed from the CIP, as 
funding changes. Conversely, these types of projects can be brought forth when budget 
surpluses or additional funding sources are identified. 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

• Deferrable capital improvements are projects of the lowest priority. These projects can be 
postponed or eliminated from the CIP because of cost, timing, or need. 

 
  



8 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CIP Street and Trai l  Project List (2016 – 2031)  



9 | P a g e  
 

CIP At-A-Glance 
 
The CIP At-A-Glance is to be used as a quick reference guide that summarizes the CIP.  It indicates 
the fiscal year in which the project is scheduled to begin, a project number for identification 
purposes, the recommended priority of implementation, the preliminary estimated costs for 
improvements and the anticipated sources of funding for the recommended capital improvement 
projects.  
 
YEAR PROJECT 

NO. 
PRIORITY PROJECT ESTIMATED 

COST 
SOURCE OF 
FUNDING 

FY 
2016-
2017 

1 High Reverse Curve on 
Winningkoff Road $964,000 

Impact Fees and 
Certificate of 
Obligation 

2 High Stinson Road/W. Lucas 
Road Intersection $453,000 

Impact Fees and 
Certificate of 
Obligation 

3 High W. Lucas Road 
Reconstruction $1,500,000 

Regional Toll 
Revenue (RTR), City 
of Lucas, and Collin 
County Bond 

FY 
2016-
2017 

4 Routine Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets $750,000 City - General Fund 

FY 
2017-
2018 

5 High 
Country Club 
Road/Estates Parkway 
Intersection 

$350,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

6 High 
Winningkoff Road from 
the Reverse Curve to 
Snider Lane 

$1,400,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

7 High Trailhead on E. 
Winningkoff Road $240,000 

$131,000 City and 
$109,000 Collin 
County Park Board 
Grant 

8 Routine Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets $750,000 City - General Fund 

FY 
2018-
2019 

9 High 
Stinson Road from 
Parker Road to Bristol 
Park 

$2,267,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

10 High 

Blondy Jhune Road 
Reconstruction from 
west bridge to 
Winningkoff 

$2,700,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

11 A 
Low 

A) Trail at Parker Road                
$80,000 

$ 16,000 City and $ 
64,000 Texas Parks 
Wild Life Department 11 B B) Trail at E. 

Winningkoff Road 

12 Routine Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets $750,000 City - General Fund 

FY 
2019-
2020 

13 High 
Stinson Road from 
Bentwater Drive to 
reverse curve 

$2,000,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 



10 | P a g e  
 

YEAR PROJECT 
NO. 

PRIORITY PROJECT ESTIMATED 
COST 

SOURCE OF 
FUNDING 

14 Routine Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets $750,000 City - General Fund 

FY 
2020-
2021 

15 High 
Winningkoff Rd from E. 
Lucas Road to the 
Reverse Curve 

$1,900,000 Certificate of 
Obligation 

16 Routine Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets $750,000 City - General Fund 

17 A 

Low 

A) Trail along Estates 
Parkway                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

$40,000 City and Possible 
State's Grants 

17 B B) Trail along Allison Ln 

17 C C) Trail along W. Lucas 
Road  

17 D D) Trail along Stinson 
Road  

17 E E) Trail along Powerline 
and Flood Plain 

18 A 

Low 

A) Trail along Blondy 
Jhune Road 

$200,000 City and Possible 
State Grants 

18 B 
B) Trail from 
Winningkoff Road to 
Trinity Trail 

19 Low 

Trail Head near the 
intersection of 
Southview Drive and 
Osage Lane 

$264,000 City and Possible 
Collin County Grants 

20 Routine 
Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets (5 years @ 
$787,500/year) 

$3,937,500 City - General Fund 

21 Routine 
Maintenance of Multiple 
Streets (5 years @ 
$826,875/year) 

$4,134,375 City - General Fund 

 
  



11 | P a g e  
 

 
WINNINGKOFF ROAD REVERSE CURVE 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year Project 

No. 
Category Project Priority 

2016-2017 1 Roadway Winningkoff  Road Reverse Curve High 
 

 
  

FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost Source of  Funding 
$ 964,000 Certificate of  Obligation 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Replace existing asphalt pavement with 24-foot wide concrete pavement.  The eastern curve will 
be designs to accommodate a school bus and an auto passing in opposite directions.  The western 
curve will be replaced with a three-way stop sign controlled intersection with Forestview Drive.  
The pavement shall consist of  24-foot wide concrete pavement in the straight sections.  The 
project length is approximately 0.5 miles. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  

Project Begin Year Project Completion Year 
2017 2018 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Stanton Foerster 



12 | P a g e  
 

STINSON ROAD/W. LUCAS ROAD INTERSECTION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2016-2017 2 Roadways Stinson Road/W. 

Lucas Road 
Intersection 

High 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$453,000  Certificates of Obligation  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Provide for two northbound Stinson Road lanes:  one left turn and one right turn.  Add W. Lucas 
Road westbound to southbound left turn lane and transition. Improve drainage along the W. 
Lucas Road. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2019 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



13 | P a g e  
 

W. LUCAS ROAD RECONSTRUCTION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2016-2017 3 Roadways W. Lucas Road Reconstruction High 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$1,500,000 Regional Toll Revenue (RTR), City of Lucas General Fund, and Collin 

County Bond 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Widen W. Lucas Road from Willow Springs School to Middleton Drive by adding a center, left turn lane.  
The project length is approximately 2.5 miles. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2019 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



14 | P a g e  
 

 
MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE STREETS 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2016-2017 4 Roadways Maintenance of Multiple Streets  Routine 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$750,000 City – General Fund  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost.  
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2017 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

  



15 | P a g e  
 

COUNTRY CLUB ROAD/ESTATES PARKWAY INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2017-2018 5 Roadways Country Club Road/Estates Parkway 

Intersection Improvements 
High 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$350,000  Certificate of Obligation  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Add a free right turn lane from eastbound Estates Parkway to southbound Country Club Road, and add a 
left turn lane from northbound Country Club Road to westbound Estates Parkway. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2020 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



16 | P a g e  
 

WINNINGKOFF ROAD FROM THE REVERSE CURVE TO SNIDER LANE 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2017-2018 6 Roadways Winningkoff Road from the Reverse 

Curve to Snider Lane  
High  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$1,400,000 Certificates of Obligation 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Reconstruct 0.55 miles of Winningkoff Road with a 24-foot concrete pavement and improve drainage. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2020 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



17 | P a g e  
 

TRAILHEAD ON E. WINNINGKOFF ROAD 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2016-2021 7 Trails Trailhead on E. Winningkoff Road Desirable  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$240,000 $131,000 City - $109,000 Collin County Parks and Open Space Grant  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Trailhead on E. Winningkoff Road will be constructed during this fiscal year. Trailhead provides parking 
for a number of vehicles and will contain a bulletin board or kiosk for trail information.  
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2018 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  

 
  



18 | P a g e  
 

MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE STREETS 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2017-2018 8 Roadways Maintenance of Multiple Streets  Necessary  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$750,000 City – General Fund  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2018 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



19 | P a g e  
 

 
STINSON ROAD FROM PARKER ROAD TO BRISTOL PARK 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2018-2019 9 Roadways Stinson Road from Parker Road to 

Bristol Park 
Necessary  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$2,267,000 Certificates of Obligation  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project extends from Parker Road (FM 2514) to south of the Muddy Creek Bridge, and it is about a 
mile long.  It does not include the Muddy Creek Bridge.  This is a straight and flat roadway with only one 
planned four-way intersection at Highland Drive.  The pavement will be 24 feet of concrete, 28 feet of as 
asphalt, or a combination of both. 
 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2020 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

  



20 | P a g e  
 

BLONDY JHUNE ROAD RECONSTRUCTION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2018-2019 10 Roadways Blondy Jhune Road Reconstruction 

from the west bridge to Winningkoff 
Road 

High  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$2,700,000 Certificates of Obligation  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Blondy Jhune Road extending from Country Club Road on the west to Winningkoff Road on the east.  
This project starts 3,300 feet east of Country Club Road on the east side of the west Blondy Jhune Bridge 
currently under construction.  The pavement will be 24 feet of concrete, 28 feet of as asphalt, or a 
combination of both.  High priority will be given to protect the tree canopy along the roadway.  The 
project length is about a mile long. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2020 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



21 | P a g e  
 

 
 

A)  TRAIL AT PARKER ROAD 
B)  TRAIL AT E. WINNINGKOFF ROAD 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2016-2021 11 Trails A)  Trail at Parker Road 

B)  Trail at E. Winningkoff Road  
Desirable  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$80,000 $16,000 City - $64,000 Texas Parks and Wildlife Grant  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Trail will be constructed from W. Lucas Road to Parker Road and from E. Winningkoff Road to Trinity 
Trail. Few of the important steps that will be carried out during construction are staking of trail route, 
removal of rocks, trees and bushes, removal and clearance of vegetation and grading the trail bed on slopes 
etc. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  

 
  



22 | P a g e  
 

MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE STREETS 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2018-2019 12 Roadways Maintenance of Multiple Streets  Routine  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$750,000 City – General Fund  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2019 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



23 | P a g e  
 

STINSON ROAD FROM BENTWATER DRIVE TO THE REVERSE CURVE  
 

 
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2019-2020 13 Roadways Stinson Road from Bentwater Drive 

to the Reverse Curve  
High 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$2,000,000 Certificate of Obligation 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project extends from north of the Muddy Creek Bridge for about 0.66 miles to the reverse curve at 
405 Stinson Road.  It does not include the Muddy Creek Bridge.  This is a straight and flat roadway with 
no planned four-way intersections.  The pavement will be 24 feet of concrete, 28 feet of as asphalt, or a 
combination of both. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2021 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



24 | P a g e  
 

MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE STREETS 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2019-2020 14 Roadways Maintenance of Multiple Streets Routine  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$750,000 City – General Fund  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2020 2020 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



25 | P a g e  
 

WINNINGKOFF ROAD (SOUTH PORTION) 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2020-2021 15 Roadways Winningkoff Road from E. Lucas 

Road to the Reverse Curve  
High  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$1,900,000 Certificate of  Obligation 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
South portion of Winningkoff Road, which extends from E. Lucas Road on the south to the beginning of 
Winningkoff Road reverse curve on the north.  The project length is about 0.6 miles and pavement width 
has not been determined.  A new culvert 800 feet north of E. Lucas Road will be part of this project. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2020 2022 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



26 | P a g e  
 

MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE STREETS 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2020-2021 16 Roadways Maintenance of Multiple Streets Routine  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$750,000 City – General Fund  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2021 2021 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



27 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A) TRAIL ALONG ESTATES PARKWAY 
B) TRAIL ALONG ALLISON LANE 
C) TRAIL ALONG W. LUCAS ROAD 
D) TRAIL ALONG STINSON ROAD 
E) TRAIL ALONG POWERLINE AND FLOODPLAIN 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2021-2026 17 Trails  A) Trail along Estates Parkway 

B) Trail along Allison Lane 
C) Trail along W. Lucas Road 
D) Trail along Stinson Road 
E) Trail along Powerline and   

Floodplain 

Desirable  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$40,000 City and State Grants  

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Trail will be constructed at multiple locations in Lucas. The routes planned for the trail includes from 
Estates Parkway to Country Club Road, trail along the W. Lucas Road, from W Lucas Road along Allison 
Lane to Estates Parkway. Trails on the southern part of Lucas include the trail along the power line and the 
flood plain and trail from powerline to north along Stinson Road.  Few of the important steps that will be 
carried out during construction are staking of trail route, removal of rocks, trees and bushes, removal and 
clearance of vegetation and grading the trail bed on slopes.  
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2025 2026 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  

 
  



28 | P a g e  
 

A) TRAIL ALONG BLONDY JHUNE ROAD  
B) TRAIL FROM WINNINGKOFF ROAD TO TRINITY TRAIL  
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2021-2026 18 Trails  A) Trail along Blondy Jhune Road  

B) Trail from Winningkoff Road to 
Trinity Trail  

 

Desirable  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$200,000 City and State Grants  

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Trail will be constructed from Country Club Road to Winningkoff  Road along Blondy Jhune 
Road, and from Winningkoff  Road to Trinity Trail along the flood plain. Few of  the important 
steps that will be carried out during construction are staking of  trail route, removal of  rocks, trees 
and bushes, removal and clearance of  vegetation and grading the trail bed on slopes etc. Bridges 
over creeks may be required. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2025 2026 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  

 
  



29 | P a g e  
 

TRAILHEAD NEAR THE INTERSECTION  
OF SOUTHVIEW DRIVE AND OSAGE LANE 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2021-2026 19 Trails  Trailhead near the intersection of 

Southview Drive and Osage Lane  
 

Desirable  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$264,000 City and Collin County Grants  

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Trailhead near the intersection of  Southview Drive and Osage Lane will be constructed during the 
fiscal year. Trailhead provides parking for a number of  vehicles and will contain a bulletin board 
or kiosk for trail information.  
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2025 2026 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  

 
  



30 | P a g e  
 

MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE STREETS 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2021-2026 20 Roadways  Maintenance of Multiple Streets  Necessary  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$787,500 (per year)  City – General Fund  

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2021-2025 2022-2026 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: Stanton Foerster 

 
  



31 | P a g e  
 

 
MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE ROADWAYS 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Project No.  Category Project Priority  
2026-2031 21 Roadways  Maintenance of Multiple Roadways  Necessary  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$826,875 (per year)   City – General Fund  

 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Each year, roads require proper maintenance to provide reliable mobility at minimal cost. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2026-2030 2027-2031 
 
PROJECT MANAGER: 

 
  



32 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CIP Water System Project List (2016 – 2030) 
  



33 | P a g e  
 

CIP Water System Project List  
2016 – 2020 

 
 

City of Lucas Water System Capital Improvement Plan Projects 

These numbers were estimated and generated by BW2 Engineers in September 2016 
 

FY 2016-2017 
Engineering 

Priority 
Project Estimated 

Cost 
1A Parker Road 12-Inch Phase 1-1 (from Stinson Road to Enchanted 

Way) --This project is need to improve infrastructure and to 
accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening which is causing 
Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker 
Road. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-120 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$    150,000  

2A Parker Rd 8-Inch Phase 2 (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa 
Fe Trail) --This project is need to improve infrastructure and to 
accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening which is causing 
Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker 
Road. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-122 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$      36,004  

3A Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch Connection -- 
This will allow the ground storage at the North Pump Station to 
be filled by the upper pressure plane and eliminate water service to 
seven homes. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$      21,000  

4A New 500,000 Gallon Water Tower at the North Pump Station or 
behind City Hall -- This will allow for the elimination of the lower 
pressure plane.   
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2018 

$    201,000  

5A System Pressure Reducing Valves (PRVs) -- These PRVs are 
needed when the lower pressure plane is eliminated. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2017 -- Complete in 2020 

$    120,000  

6 25 Dead End Waterline Automatic Flushing Valves (AFVs) and 
loop dead end lines -- The location of these AFVs will installed 
where looping of the waterlines is not practical. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-123 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$    400,000  



34 | P a g e  
 

7A Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) System with New Water Meters 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-104 
Begin in 2017 -- Complete in 2020 

$    250,000 

FY 2016-2017 Subtotal $  1,178,004 

FY 2017-2018 
Engineering 

Priority 
Project Estimated 

Cost 
1B Parker Road 12-Inch Phase 1-1 (from Stinson Road to Enchanted 

Way) -- This project is need to improve infrastructure and to 
accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening which is causing 
Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker 
Road. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-120 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$    142,037  

2B Parker Rd 8-Inch Phase 2 (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa 
Fe Trail) -- This project is need to improve infrastructure and to 
accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening which is causing 
Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker 
Road. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-122 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$    290,000  

3B Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch Connection -- 
This will allow the ground storage at the North Pump Station to 
be filled by the upper pressure plane. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2017 

$      77,237  

4B New 500,000 Gallon Water Tower at the North Pump Station or 
behind City Hall -- This will allow for the elimination of the lower 
pressure plane. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2018 

$  1,295,880  

5B System Pressure Reducing Valves (PRVs) -- These PRVs are 
needed when the lower pressure plane is eliminated. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2017 -- Complete in 2020 

$    120,000 

7B Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) System with New Water Meters 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-104 
Begin in 2017 -- Complete in 2020 

$    250,000  

8A Loop Dead End Lines -- The location to be determined. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2020 

$    100,000 

FY 2017-2018 Subtotal $ 2,275,154  

FY 2018-2019 
Engineering 

Priority 
Project Estimated 

Cost 



35 | P a g e  
 

7C Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) System with New Water Meters 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-104 
Begin in 2017 -- Complete in 2020 

$    248,785 

8B Loop Dead End Lines -- The location to be determined. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2020 

$    100,000 

9 Restore aging, existing pumps at the North Pump Station 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2018 -- Complete in 2019 

$    153,821  

10 Parker Road Four-Inch Temporary Phase 3T (from Santa Fe Trail 
to Stinson Road) -- This project is need to accommodate the 
TxDOT Parker Road widening which is causing Lucas to abandon 
an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road between Santa Fe 
Trail and Stinson Road.  The four-inch line will provide 
temporary, minimal service to three residential properties:  Waxler, 
McCreery, and Craft.  When the properties along Parker Road 
develop, the four-inch line would be replaced by the developer 
with a 12-inch line. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-126 
Begin in 2018 -- Complete in 2019 

$    132,919  

11 Add new pump house at the North Pump Station with three 500 
GPM pumps -- This will provide redundancy to move water from 
the ground storage tanks to the new water tower in Priority 4. 
Funding Source: 21-8210-490-125 
Begin in 2018 -- Complete in 2019 

$    432,575  

12 From Rollingwood Circle to Choice Lane to Lakeview Drive Six-
Inch Waterline -- This project will eliminate dead end water 
service to 97 homes. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2018 -- Complete in 2019 

$    432,165  

13 Part 1 -- From Edgefield Lane to W. Lucas Road Six-Inch 
Waterline 
Part 2 -- From Cedar Bend Trail to E. Lucas Road Six-Inch 
Waterline 
This will eliminate dead end waster service to 32 Homes. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2018 -- Complete in 2019 

$    113,530  

14 Part 1 -- From Country Club Road to Graham Lane to Rock 
Ridge Court to Rock Ridge Road Eight-Inch and Six-Inch 
Waterline 
Part 2 -- From Glenbrook Circle to Country Club Road Six-Inch 
Waterline 
This will eliminate dead end service to 30 homes. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2018 -- Complete in 2019 

$    571,775  

FY 2018-2019 Subtotal $ 2,185,570  

FY 2019-2020 



36 | P a g e  
 

Engineering 
Priority 

Project Estimated 
Cost 

8C Loop Dead End Lines -- The location to be determined. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2016 -- Complete in 2020 

$    100,000 

15 Snider Lane Eight-Inch (from Shady Lane to Sterling Brown 
Lane) -- This project is need as part of the Lakeview Downs 
subdivision, add fire hydrants, and will improve water quality on 
the east side of Lucas. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    594,549  

16 Glencove Circle and Crestview Circle Six-Inch Extensions to 
Brockdale Park Road 8-Inch -- This will eliminate dead end 
service to 15 homes and add fire hydrants to the area. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    224,255  

17 From Stinson Road to Hickory Hill Street to Brookhaven Drive 
Eight-Inch Waterline -- This will eliminate an undersized dead end 
line and add fire hydrants to 12 homes. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    226,383  

18 Manor Lane Eight-Inch Waterline -- This will eliminate an 
undersized four-inch line, add fire hydrants, and improve the 
water looping between Estelle Lane and Winningkoff Road. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    313,951  

19 From Estates Parkway to Rock Ridge Road to Fairbrook Circle 
Eight-Inch and 12-Inch Waterline -- This will eliminate an existing 
six-inch waterline and bring Fairbrook Circle into the Lucas 
Waterworks. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    491,953  

20 Repaint 200,000 Gallon McGarity Ground Storage Tank 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    150,150  

21 From Enchanted Way to Brookhaven Drive Eight-Inch Waterline 
-- This eliminates the dead-end water services to 23 homes. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$    203,262  

22 From Rock Ridge Road to Lovejoy High School Eight-Inch 
Waterline -- This project improves the looping on the west side of 
the city and eliminate the dead-end line at the high school. 
Funding Source: TBD 
Begin in 2019 -- Complete in 2020 

$      56,773  

FY 2019-2020 Subtotal $ 2,361,276 
  



37 | P a g e  
 

FY 2016-2020 Total $ 8,500,004  
 
 

FY 2021 to 2025 Estimated 
Cost 

8D Loop Dead End Lines $  500,000 
23 950,000 Gallon McGarity Ground Storage Tank $1,279,093 
224 Shiloh Dr/Toole Dr 6-Inch and Braehurn 8-Inch (Dead End Fix) $  190,546  
25 Parker Rd 12-Inch Phase 3 from Santa Fe Trl to Stinson Rd $  353,184  
26 Fairbrook Cr 8-Inch (Dead End Fix) $  256,453  
27 Lewis Ln/Shepherds Creek Dr/Green Acres Ln 8-Inch $  300,113  
28 Angel Pkwy/McGarity Ln/Estates Pkwy 8-Inch and 12-Inch $  425,539  
29 Ingram Ln/McGarity Ln/W Lucas Rd 6-Inch and 12-Inch $  836,217  
30 Estates Rd 8-Inch $  232,014  
31 Chisholm Trl/Caman Park Dr and Turnberry Ln/Highland Dr 8-Inch (Dead 

End Fixes) 
$  322,203  

32 Stinson Rd/Enchanted Wy 8-Inch $  142,278  
33 Stinson Rd/E Lucas Rd 8-Inch $  147,827  
34 Rock Creek Estates 6-Inch $  175,610  
35 Stinson Rd 12-Inch Connector $    39,189  
36 Repaint 750,000 Gallon N Pump Station Ground Storage Tank $  409,303  
37 Repaint 350,000 Gallon McGarity Ground Storage Tank $  228,690  
38 Parker Rd 12-Inch Phase 1-2, Parker Rd to Brookhaven Dr 8-Inch $  835,239  
39 Loop Dead End Waterlines $  400,000  
 

2021 to 2025 Total $6,573,498 
   

FY 2026 to 2030 
 

40 500,000 Gallon McGarity Water Tower $1,372,140 
41 Rock Ridge Rd 12-Inch from Fairbrook Cr to Exchange Pkwy $   224,712  
42 Lakeview Downs and Trinity Park 6-Inch 8-Inch Loop $1,135,688  
43 Forest Grove Rd/Horseman Dr/Orr Rd 6-Inch and 8-Inch $   867,422  
44 Orr Rd (North) 8-Inch $   426,327  
45 PR 5252 6-Inch $     93,486  
46 Repaint 500,000 Gallon N Pump Station Ground Storage Tank $   297,124  
 

2026 to 2030 Total $4,416,899  
   
 

2016 to 2030 Grand Total $19,490,401  
  



38 | P a g e  
 

PARKER ROAD PHASE 1 – SECTION 1 
12-INCH WATER LINE 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2016-2017 1 Water 12-inch water line replacement 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$292,037 21-8210-490-120 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is need to improve infrastructure and to accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road 
widening which is causing Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2017 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $11,500.00 $11,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $3,000.00 $3,000 
Erosion Control 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Trench Safety 2,115 $1.50 $3,173 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 2,100 $60.00 $126,000 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, by bore and jacking 25 $320.00 $8,000 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 15 $42.00 $630 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 25 $280.00 $7,000 
Furnish & install 12" Bend 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $800.00 $800 
Furnish & install 12" Tee 4 $1,200.00 $4,800 
Furnish & install 12" Valve 5 $1,500.00 $7,500 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 1 $500.00 $500 
Furnish & install 12"x8" Reducer 1 $1,200.00 $1,200 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, lead and 6" valve 3 $4,000.00 $12,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 16 $1,500.00 $24,000 
Block Sod 500 $7.00 $3,500 
Seeding 3,000 $1.25 $3,750 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $24,135.25 $24,135 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $26,548.78 $26,549  

Total: $292,037 
 



39 | P a g e  
 

PARKER ROAD EIGHT-INCH WATER LINE  
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2016-2017 2  Water Lewis Lane/Parker Road 8-inch replacement water 
line  

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$326,004 21-8210-490-122   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is need to improve infrastructure and to accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening 
which is causing Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2017 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $12,850.00 $12,850 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Erosion Control 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Trench Safety 3,500 $1.50 $5,250 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,500 $42.00 $147,000 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 80 $280.00 $22,400 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 8" PVC Creek Crossing, by bore and jacking  50 $330.00 $16,500 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $4,050.00 $4,050 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 4 $500.00 $2,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 4 $4,000.00 $16,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Block Sod 2,500 $7.00 $17,500 
Seeding 5,500 $1.25 $6,875 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $26,942.50 $26,943 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $29,636.75 $29,637  

Total: $326,004 
 
  



40 | P a g e  
 

WILTSHIRE COURT EIGHT-INCH WATER LINE CONNECTION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2016-2017 3 Water Wiltshire Court 8-inch water line connection 
 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$98,237 21-8210-490-123   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will allow the ground storage at the North Pump Station to be filled by the upper pressure plane 
and eliminate water service to seven homes. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2017 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $3,850.00 $3,850 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $500.00 $500 
Erosion Control 1 $2,550.00 $2,550 
Trench Safety 975 $1.50 $1,463 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 975 $42.00 $40,950 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 120 $90.00 $10,800 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $4,300.00 $4,300 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Block Sod 700 $7.00 $4,900 
Seeding 1,500 $1.25 $1,875 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $8,118.75 $8,119 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $8,930.63 $8,931  

Total: $98,237 
 
  



41 | P a g e  
 

500,000 GALLON WATER TOWER AT NORTH PUMP STATION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2016-2018 4  Water 500,000-gallon elevated storage tank at North Pump 
Station 
 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$1,496,880 21-8210-490-125 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will allow for the elimination of the lower pressure plane.   

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2018 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $60,000.00 $60,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Furnish & install 500,000 Gallon Elevated Storage Tank 1 $1,100,000.00 $1,100,000 
Furnish & install Yard Piping/Valving 1 $20,000.00 $20,000 
Furnish & install Electrical 1 $45,000.00 $45,000 
Furnish & install Tank Piping/Valving 1 $20,000.00 $20,000 
Site Work 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Seeding 4,000 $1.25 $5,000 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $126,000.00 $126,000 
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (8%) 1 $110,880.00 $110,880  

Total: $1,496,880 
  



42 | P a g e  
 

SYSTEM PRESSURE REDUCING VALVES 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2017-2020 5 Water System pressure reducing valves 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$240,000 21-8210-490-125 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
These PRVs are needed when the lower pressure plane is eliminated. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Furnish and Install Residential Pressure Reducing Valve 1,200 $200.00  $240,000  
Total: $240,000 

 
 
  



43 | P a g e  
 

DEAD END WATER LINE AUTOMATIC FLUSHING VALVES  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2016-2018 6 Water Dead end water line automatic flushing valves and loops 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$100,000 21-8210-490-123 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
The location of these AFVs will be installed where looping of the waterlines is not practical. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2016 2016 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Furnish and Install Automatic Flushing Valve 25 $4,000.00  $60,000 
Install dead end loops at locations to be determined  $340,000  

Total: $400,000 
  



44 | P a g e  
 

AMR SYSTEM WITH NEW WATER METERS  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2017-2020 7 Water AMR System with new water meters  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$1,182,430 21-8210-490-104 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
AMR System with new water meters  

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Furnish and Install AMR System 1 $629,860  $629,860 
Annual Hosting and Maintenance Costs 5 $23,785  $118,925  

Total: $748,785 
 
  



45 | P a g e  
 

LOOP DEAD END WATER LINES  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2016-2018 8 Water Loop dead end water lines 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$800,000 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
The location of these AFVs will be installed where looping of the waterlines is not practical. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2017 2022 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Install dead end loops at locations to be determined  $800,000  

Total: $800,000 
  



46 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 

RESTORE AGING EXISTING PUMPS AT NORTH PUMP STATION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 9 Water Restore aging existing pumps at North Pump Station  
 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$153,821 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Restore Aging Existing Pumps at North Pump Station  
 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $6,500.00 $6,500 
Restore Existing Pump Station 1 $120,000.00 $120,000 
Seeding 500 $1.25 $625 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $12,712.50 $12,713 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $13,983.75 $13,984  

Total: $153,821 
 
 
  



47 | P a g e  
 

PARKER ROAD 4-INCH TEMPORARY PHASE 3T 
(FROM SANTA FE TRAIL TO STINSON ROAD)  

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 10 Water Parker Road 4-inch temporary Phase 3T (from 
Santa Fe to Stinson Road)  
 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$132,919 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is need to accommodate the TxDOT Parker Road widening which is causing Lucas 
to abandon an existing six-inch waterline along Parker Road between Santa Fe Trail and Stinson 
Road.  The four-inch line will provide temporary, minimal service to three residential properties:  
Waxler, McCreery, and Craft.  When the properties along Parker Road develop, the four-inch 
line would be replaced by the developer with a 12-inch line. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Erosion Control 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Trench Safety 500 $1.50 $750 
Furnish & install 4" PVC 2,500 $30.00 $75,000 
Furnish & install 4" PVC, by bore 100 $200.00 $20,000 
Furnish & install 4" Valve 1 $100.00 $100 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 4 $1,500.00 $6,000 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $10,985.00 $10,985 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $12,083.50 $12,084  

Total: $132,919 
 
  



48 | P a g e  
 

PUMP STATION WITH THREE PUMPS AT NORTH PUMP STATION 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 11 Water Pump Station with three pumps at North Pump 
Station 
 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$432,575 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will provide redundancy to move water from the ground storage tanks to the new water tower in 
Priority 4. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $17,000.00 $17,000 
Erosion Control 1 $3,000.00 $3,000 
Furnish & install Pumps 3 $20,000.00 $60,000 
Furnish & construct Pump Building 1 $120,000.00 $120,000 
Furnish & install Pipes and Valves 1 $50,000.00 $50,000 
Furnish & install Electrical 1 $100,000.00 $100,000 
Site Work 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Seeding 2,000 $1.25 $2,500 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $35,750.00 $35,750 
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (10%) 1 $39,325.00 $39,325  

Total: $432,575 
 
  



49 | P a g e  
 

SIX INCH WATER LINE FROM ROLLINGWOOD CIRCLE TO CHOICE LANE 
TO LAKEVIEW DRIVE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 12 Water Six-inch waterline from Rollingwood Circle to Choice 
Lane to Lakeview Drive 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$432,165 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project will eliminate dead end water service to 97 homes. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 $17,250.00   $17,250  
All Traffic Control, Barricading and Signing Measures 1 $7,500.00   $7,500  
Temporary erosion control 1 $8,500.00   $8,500  
Cut and Plug Existing 2" Water Line 3 $450.00   $1,350  
Cut and Plug Existing 8" Water Line 1 $500.00   $500  
Furnish and Install Trench Safety system 4550 $1.75   $7,963  
Cut Out and Remove Existing 8" Water Line as needed 1 $2,250.00   $2,250  
Cut Out and Remove Existing Reducer and 2" Water Line 3 $1,500.00   $4,500  
Connect to Existing 6" Water Line 1 $500.00   $500  
Furnish and Install 6" 11.25 Degree Bend 4 $675.00   $2,700  
Furnish and Install 6" 90 Degree Bend 7 $650.00   $4,550  
Furnish and Install 6"x6" Tee 1 $1,000.00   $1,000  
Furnish and Install 6" Gate Valve 4 $1,500.00   $6,000  
Furnish and Install Fire Hydrant, Valve and Riser 4 $3,750.00   $15,000  
Furnish and Install 6" waterline w/Class "B" Embedment 4550 $ 45.00   $204,750  
Furnish & Install 6" DR-18 w/14" Steel by Boring and Jacking 180 $ 275.00   $49,500  
Furnish and Install Long Service Water Line 1 $ 1,250.00   $1,250  
Furnish and Install Short Service Water Line 8 $ 800.00   $6,400  
Furnish and Install Service Line Over 250 LF 2 $ 5,000.00   $10,000  
Furnish and Place Block Sodding 1150 $ 7.00   $8,050  
Furnish and Place Grass Seed 2500 $ 1.25   $3,125  
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $36,263.75   $36,264  
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (10%) 1 $36,263.75   $36,264   

Total: $432,165 



50 | P a g e  
 

 
EDGEFIELD LANE/W. LUCAS ROAD 6 INCH WATER LINE LOOP 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 13 Water Edgefield Lane/W. Lucas Road 6-inch water line loop 
 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$113,530 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will eliminate dead end waster service to 32 homes. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Edgefield Ln./West Lucas Road 6" Water Line Loop 
Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 $3,150.00 $3,150 
All Traffic Control, Barricading and Signing Measures 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Temporary erosion control including operational control of 
SW3P 

1 $4,000.00 $4,000 

Cut and Plug Existing 2" Water Line 1 $450.00 $450 
Furnish and Install Trench Safety system, design and 
implementation 

535 $1.75 $936 

Cut Out and Remove Existing 12" Water Line as needed, 
Furnish and Install 12"x6" Tee 

2 $2,750.00 $5,500 

Cut Out and Remove Existing 6" Water Line as needed, 
Furnish and Install 6"x6" Tee 

1 $1,850.00 $1,850 

Connect to Existing 6" Water Line 1 $500.00 $500 
Furnish and Install 6" Gate Valve 2 $1,500.00 $3,000 
Furnish and Install Fire Hydrant, Including 6" Gate Valve and 
Riser 

1 $3,750.00 $3,750 

Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/Class "B" 
Embedment 

535 $45.00 $24,075 

Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/14" Steel 
Casing by Boring and Jacking 

50 $275.00 $13,750 

Furnish and Install Long Service Water Line 2 $1,250.00 $2,500 
Furnish and Place Block Sodding, including all Fertilization 
and Watering Until Established 

100 $7.00 $700 



51 | P a g e  
 

Furnish and Place Grass Seed, including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

280 $1.25 $350 

 
Edgefield Subtotal: $66,511 

Cedar Bend/East Lucas Road 6" Water Line Loop 
Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 $1,350.00  $1,350 
All Traffic Control, Barricading and Signing Measures 1  $ 5,000.00  $5,000 
Temporary erosion control including operational control of 
SW3P 

1  $ 1,000.00  $1,000 

Furnish and Install Trench Safety system, design and 
implementation 

105  $ 1.75  $184 

Cut Out and Remove Existing 12" Water Line as needed, 
Furnish and Install 12"x6" Tee 

1  $ 2,750.00  $2,750 

Connect to Existing 6" Water Line 1  $ 500.00  $500 
Furnish and Install 6" Gate Valve 1  $ 1,500.00  $1,500 
Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/Class "B" 
Embedment 

105  $ 45.00  $4,725 

Furnish and Install 6" AWWA C900 DR-18 w/14" Steel 
Casing by Boring and Jacking 

40  $ 275.00  $11,000 

Furnish and Place Grass Seed, Including all Fertilization and 
Watering Until Established 

70  $1.25  $88 
 

Cedar Bend Trail 
Subtotal: 

$28,096 
 

Project Subtotal: $94,608 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1  $9,461.00  $9,461 
Engineering/Surveying/Geotechnical Services (10%) 1  $9,461.00  $9,461  

Total: $113,530 
  



52 | P a g e  
 

GRAHAM LANE/ROCK RIDGE COURT 6 INCH/8 INCH WATER LINE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 14 Water Graham Lane/Rock Ridge Court 6 inch/8-inch water 
line loop 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$571,775 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will eliminate dead end service to 30 homes. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $22,500.00 $22,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Erosion Control 1 $13,000.00 $13,000 
Trench Safety 5,230 $1.50 $7,845 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,115 $35.00 $109,025 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by bore and jacking 80 $260.00 $20,800 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by wet bore 185 $75.00 $13,875 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 2,115 $42.00 $88,830 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 90 $280.00 $25,200 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 6" Bend 1 $2,250.00 $2,250 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $1,085.00 $1,085 
Furnish & install 6" Valve 1 $400.00 $400 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 4 $500.00 $2,000 
Furnish & install 8"x6" reducer 1 $700.00 $700 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $10,000.00 $10,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 9 $4,000.00 $36,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $4,500.00 $4,500 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 28 $1,500.00 $42,000 
Block Sod 8,000 $7.00 $56,000 
Seeding 3,625 $1.25 $4,531 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $47,254.13 $47,254 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $51,979.54 $51,980  

Total: $571,775 



53 | P a g e  
 

SNIDER LANE 8 INCH REPLACEMENT WATER LINE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 15 Water Snider Lane 8-inch replacement water line  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$594,549 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project is need as part of the Lakeview Downs subdivision, add fire hydrants, and will improve 
water quality on the east side of Lucas. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $23,500.00 $23,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $6,500.00 $6,500 
Erosion Control 1 $15,000.00 $15,000 
Trench Safety 6,075 $1.50 $9,113 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 6,075 $42.00 $255,150 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 80 $280.00 $22,400 
Furnish & install 8" PVC Creek Crossing, by bore and jacking  50 $330.00 $16,500 

Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 270 $90.00 $24,300 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $3,150.00 $3,150 
Furnish & install 8” Tee 1 $900.00 $900 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 7 $500.00 $3,500 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 13 $4,000.00 $52,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,225.00 $2,225 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 20 $1,500.00 $30,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 1 $500.00 $500 
Block Sod 1,000 $7.00 $7,000 
Seeding 12,500 $1.25 $15,625 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $49,136.25 $49,136 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $54,049.88 $54,050  

Total: $594,549 
 
  



54 | P a g e  
 

GLENCOVE CIRCLE/CRESTVIEW CIRCLE 6 INCH WATER LINE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2018-2019 16 Water Glencove Circle/Crestview Circle 6-inch water line 
loop 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$224,255 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will eliminate dead end service to 15 homes and add fire hydrants to the area. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2018 2019 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $9,000.00 $9,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $5,100.00 $5,100 
Trench Safety 1,965 $1.50 $2,948 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 1,965 $35.00 $68,775 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $260.00 $10,400 
Furnish & install 6" PVC, by wet bore 180 $75.00 $13,500 
Furnish & install 6" Bend 1 $2,500.00 $2,500 
Furnish & install 6" Valve 2 $400.00 $800 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 4 $4,000.00 $16,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $7,750.00 $7,750 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 14 $1,500.00 $21,000 
Block Sod 3,000 $7.00 $21,000 
Seeding 1,375 $1.25 $1,719 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $18,377.25 $18,377 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $20,386.85 $20,387  

Total: $224,255 
  



55 | P a g e  
 

 
HICKORY HILL 8 INCH WATER LINE LOOP 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 17 Water Hickory Hill 8-inch water line loop 
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$226,383 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will eliminate an undersized dead end line and add fire hydrants to 12 homes. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $9,000.00 $9,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $5,300.00 $5,300 
Trench Safety 2,120 $1.50 $3,180 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 2,120 $42.00 $89,040 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $280.00 $11,200 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $1,500.00 $1,500 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 3 $500.00 $1,500 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 2 $4,000.00 $8,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $1,800.00 $1,800 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 12 $1,500.00 $18,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 2 $500.00 $1,000 
Block Sod 3,015 $7.00 $21,105 
Seeding 1,175 $1.25 $1,469 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $18,709.38 $18,709 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $20,580.31 $20,580  

Total: $226,383 
 
  



56 | P a g e  
 

MANOR LANE 8 INCH REPLACEMENT WATER LINE 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 18 Water Manor Lane 8-inch replacement water line  
 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$313,951 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This will eliminate an undersized four-inch line, add fire hydrants, and improve the water looping 
between Estelle Lane and Winningkoff Road. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $12,500.00 $12,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $3,150.00 $3,150 
Erosion Control 1 $7,500.00 $7,500 
Trench Safety 3,010 $1.50 $4,515 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,010 $42.00 $126,420 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $280.00 $11,200 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 115 $90.00 $10,350 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $1,500.00 $1,500 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 3 $500.00 $1,500 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $6,250.00 $6,250 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 6 $4,000.00 $24,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 6 $1,500.00 $9,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 5 $500.00 $2,500 
Block Sod 5,025 $7.00 $35,175 
Seeding 1,675 $1.25 $2,094 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $25,756.00 $25,756 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $28,540.98 $28,541  

Total: $313,951 
 
  



57 | P a g e  
 

ESTATES PARKWAY/ROCK RIDGE ROAD 8 INCH/12 INCH REPLACEMENT 
WATER LINE 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 19 Water Estates Parkway/Rock Ridge Road 8 inch/12-inch 
replacement water line 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$491,953 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This eliminates the dead end water services to 23 homes. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $19,500.00 $19,500 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Erosion Control 1 $10,400.00 $10,400 
Trench Safety 4,165 $1.50 $6,248 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 925 $42.00 $38,850 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, by wet bore 100 $90.00 $9,000 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,240 $60.00 $194,400 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, by bore and jacking 40 $320.00 $12,800 
Furnish & install 12" PVC, by wet bore 120 $130.00 $15,600 
Furnish & install 12" Bend 1 $3,000.00 $3,000 
Furnish & install 12" Tee 1 $1,250.00 $1,250 
Furnish & install 8" Valve 5 $500.00 $2,500 
Furnish & install 12" Valve 1 $1,500.00 $1,500 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 9 $4,000.00 $36,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,000.00 $5,000 
Cut and Plug Existing Water Lines 1 $2,250.00 $2,250 
Furnish & install Water Service Connection 14 $1,500.00 $21,000 
Remove Existing Fire Hydrant and Return to City 6 $500.00 $3,000 
Block Sod 1,325 $7.00 $9,275 
Seeding 8,000 $1.25 $10,000 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $40,657.25 $40,657 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $44,722.98 $44,723  

Total: $491,953 
 



58 | P a g e  
 

REPAINT 200,000-GALLON GROUND STORAGE TANK AT MCGARITY PUMP 
STATION 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 20 Water Repaint 200,000-gallon ground storage tank at McGarity 
Pump Station 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$150,150 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
Repaint 200,000-gallon ground storage tank at McGarity Pump Station 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Repaint existing 200,000-gallon ground storage tank 1 $120,000.00 $120,000 
Disinfect Tank 1 $2,000.00 $2,000 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $13,000.00 $13,000 
Engineering/Surveying Services (5%) 1 $7,150.00 $7,150  

Total: $150,150 
  



59 | P a g e  
 

ENCHANTED WAY/BROOKHAVEN DRIVE 8 INCH WATER LINE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 21 Water Enchanted Way/Brookhaven Drive 8-inch water line 
loop 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$203,262 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This eliminates the dead end water services to 23 homes.  

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $8,000.00 $8,000 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $500.00 $500 
Erosion Control 1 $1,400.00 $1,400 
Trench Safety 3,235 $1.50 $4,853 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 3,235 $42.00 $135,870 
Furnish & install Fire Hydrant, including lead and 6" valve 1 $4,000.00 $4,000 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $3,500.00 $3,500 
Block Sod 150 $7.00 $1,050 
Seeding 7,050 $1.25 $8,813 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $16,798.50 $16,799 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $18,478.35 $18,478  

Total: $203,262 
 
  



60 | P a g e  
 

ROCK RIDGE ROAD/LOVEJOY HIGH SCHOOL 8 INCH WATER LINE LOOP 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY  
Fiscal Year  Engineering 

Priority No.  
Category Project 

2019-2020 22 Water Rock Ridge Road/Lovejoy High School 8-inch water 
line loop 

 
FISCAL OVERVIEW  
Estimated Cost  Source of Funding  
$56,773 TBD 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
This project improves the looping on the west side of the city and eliminate the dead end line at the high 
school. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  
Project Begin Year  Project Completion Year 
2019 2020 
 
PROJECT DETAILS: 
Description Est. 

Quantity 
Unit Cost Cost 

    
Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance 1 $2,250.00 $2,250 
Traffic Control/ Construction Signing 1 $1,000.00 $1,000 
Erosion Control 1 $1,800.00 $1,800 
Trench Safety 770 $1.50 $1,155 
Furnish & install 8" PVC, including Class "B" embedment 770 $42.00 $32,340 
Furnish & install 8" Bend 1 $750.00 $750 
Connections to Existing Water Lines 1 $5,500.00 $5,500 
Seeding 1,700 $1.25 $2,125 
Construction Contingency (10%) 1 $4,692.00 $4,692 
Engineering/Surveying Services (10%) 1 $5,161.20 $5,161  

Total: $56,773 
 
Notes: 1.  Does not include any cost for right-of-way, easement, or property acquisition.  

2.  Does not include any costs for permitting, mitigation, or construction testing and inspection. 
 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss drainage solutions and flows east of Angel Parkway, south of McGarity Lane, and north 
of W. Lucas Road.  
 
Background Information:  
 
Joe Hilbourn, Engineering Technician Adam Gerster, and Stanton Foerster had previously 
visited the site several times before the City Council on April 6, 2017, meeting to review 
construction activities.  They did not know that the Collin County Sherriff had been called by the 
Ahmadi family.  The Sherriff was called before any concerns were raised with the City. 
 
On Monday, April 3, 2017, the contractor was told to use a filter if a pump was being used.  The 
use of a pump is allowed.  During many visits since Monday, April 3, 2017 by City Staff 
members; none have seen a pump in use.  The contractor has been told to make sure all of his 
stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) is in place and to repair any SWPPP items that 
are damaged. 
 
About 50 acres from private properties within the Cities of Allen and Lucas drain through the 
culverts under the driveway north and south of the Ahmadi’s gate, and only seven acres of water 
is from the storage unit development.  Most of the water flowing under the driveway and on into 
yards of the folks that live on Pennington Drive (Fox Glen Addition subdivision) comes from the 
undeveloped farm land north of the storage units and a subdivision in Allen. 
 
In 2006, there appears to have been no effort to deal with the drainage flowing through Fox Glen 
from west of Angel Parkway in Allen and southwest of Fox Glen.  The area southwest of Fox 
Glen was a farmer’s field, and now that farmer’s field contains the storage unit development, 
Kwik Kar, and Murphy Oil.  The property in the southwest corner of Fox Glen (405 Pennington 
Drive) does not have a drainage easement across it, and it should.  There is a possibility that the 
drainage easement was acquired under separate instrument, but this would be highly unlikely. 
There is a small detention area in the southeast corner of Fox Glen for Fox Glen and land west of 
the neighborhood. 
 
The detention area/pond is woefully insufficient to handle the flow from the farmer’s field.  The 
developments west of Angel Parkway in Allen and in the farmer’s field north of Walmart would 
have been sent through the Ahmadi property and not Fox Glen if all had developed in 
2006.  Because of the farmer’s activities, the natural flow has shifted north from 1) directly into 
the Ahmadi property to 2) north into Fox Glen.  The drainage from both of these areas meet 100 
to 200 feet east of Fox Glen. 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

In early 2013 when the Kwik Kar was designed, there was an assumption that Kwik Kar and the 
rest of the farmer’s field should drain through Fox Glen.  Between 2006 and 2013, the farmer has 
been plowing and had moved the natural drainage swell north.  Kwik Kar was required to build a 
detention pond.  In 2016 when the storage unit design was taking place, what was on the ground 
was considered the natural flow.  Steve Helmberger, PE, was the design engineer for the storage 
units.  He has been asked by Stanton to review the outfall/discharge flow rate from the storage 
unit detention pond beyond what was approved in the construction plans to slow the water 
leaving the storage units towards Fox Glen and the Ahmadi property. 
 
As development has taken place along Angel Parkway, Joe and Stanton have been asking for the 
developers’ help since mid-2013.  They have been asked to retain more water than what was 
required in an effort to improve the downstream condition. 
 
The following is a timeline regarding drainage issues raised by Ben Ahmadi and his neighbors 
on Pennington Drive: 
 

1. Before Monday April 3 – The Collin County Sherriff is called about the pumping of 
water from the storage unit construction site on to the Ahmadi property.  This call took 
place before Monday, April 3, but the time and date of is not known to staff. 

2. Saturday, April 1, 2017, 12:35 AM – Ben Ahmadi emails Stanton about drainage issues 
and the pumping of water from the storage development. 

3. Monday, April 3, 2017, 9:37 AM – Stanton emails Mr. Ahmadi. 
4. Monday, April 3, 2017, noonish – Stanton visits the site and meets with the 

contractor/developer.   
5. Tuesday, April 4, 2017, 8:51 AM – Stanton emails Mr. Ahmadi about the Monday site 

visit.  Stanton explains the actions that the City will be taking to correct the problem. 
6. Wednesday, April 5, 2017, Mr. Senger (405 Pennington Drive) emails Stanton about the 

drainage issues and the pumping of water from the storage development.  Mr. Senger and 
Stanton exchange emails on the 5th of April. 

7. Wednesday, April 5, 2017, Mr. Khan (400 Pennington Drive) emails Stanton about the 
drainage issues. 

8. Thursday, April 6, 2017, before noon -- Stanton visits site again to check on the progress 
of the improvements. 

9. Thursday, April 6, 2017, Engineering Technician Adam Gerster visits the site to check on 
the progress of the improvements. 

10. Thursday, April 6, 2017, The Ahmadis, et al, attend the City Council meeting. 
11. Monday, April 10, 2017, after 1 PM -- Stanton visit site again to check on the progress of 

the improvements. 
12. Monday, April 10, 2017, after 2:30 PM -- Stanton visit site again to check on the 

aftermath of a rainstorm. 
13. Wednesday, April 12, 2017, Stanton visits site 
14. Tuesday, April 18, 2017, Stanton visits site 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

15. Thursday, April 20, 2017, Stanton visits site 
16. Wednesday, April 12, 2017, Stanton visits site 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

a. Fox Glen Drainage 1999 
b. Fox Glen Drainage 2017 
c. Ahmadi Emails 
d. 1998 Drainage Policy 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
Unknown 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 
 



Natural or Historical 
Drainage Flow Contours 

on 1999 Arial

A
n

ge
l P

kw
y McGarity



KK, Murphy, & Storage Units 7 AC

Allen
10 AC

Fox Glen
14 AC

PPLTD
21 AC

Fox Glen 0.5 Acre Retention Pond 

Storage
Unit 0.37 
Acre Pond 
Design to 
handle 7 

Acres

Drainage Structure
Channel Flow

Fox Glen Pond
and Weir Information

* Pond Edge Elev 633.0
* Pavement Elev 632.5
* April 12 Surface Elev 632
* Weir Top Elev 632
* Q100 Surface Elev 631.99
* Weir Bottom Elev 630.3
* Pond Bottom Elev 624
* Detention 37,000+/- CF
Pond has no detention value
due to damming of weir and 
lack of maintenance of pond, 
outfall, ditches, etc.

410
405

400

400 Pennington -- Khan
405 Pennington -- Vacant

410 Pennington -- Mendoza

2
3

5
0

 M
cG

ar
it

y 
--

H
e

lt
o

n

N
o

 a
tt

e
m

p
t 

w
as

 m
ad

e
 b

y 
th

is
 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

r 
to

 r
e

ta
in

 o
r 

d
e

ta
in

 
fl

o
w

s 
in

 2
0

0
0

2540 McGarity -- Ahmadi







06/08/15 

 

Resident brings Drainage Problem to 

the City 

Does the City 

have a drainage 

easement? 

Is the 

property 

properly 

platted? 

Has there been a 

violation of State 

statutes by the 

homeowner? 

STOP 

Is drainage 

problem limited to 

residents' property? 

Does drainage 

problem cause 

public health or 

safety issue? 

Does drainage 

problem cause 

flooding to the home 

and/or adversely 

affecting roadways ? 

Priority 1 

Priority 2 

Priority 3 

Send request to City 

Engineer for engineering 

study and cost estimate. 

Will correction of the 

drainage problem cost 

over $5,000? 

Send to Council for 

approval. 

Staff corrects 

drainage problem. 

Is funding 

available in the 

budget? 

NO 

YES 

YES 

YES YES 

YES NO NO 

NO 

NO 

NO NO 

YES 
YES 

YES 

Item approved 

by Council  

NO 

Approved 

9/8/98 Lucas 

City Council 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss the City Council May meeting schedule, including holding the May 18, 2017 City Council 
meeting, and determine who will conduct the meeting in the absence of the Mayor and Mayor Pro 
Tem.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider setting a date for the City Council Strategic Planning session.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 

Requester: Councilmember Debbie Fisher  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Update by City Manager Joni Clarke regarding the Scenic City Certification Program and 
provide guidance to staff regarding the City of Lucas participating in the Program.   
 
Background Information:  
 
The mission of the Scenic City Certification Program is to support and recognize Texas 
municipalities that implement high-quality scenic standards for public roadways and public 
spaces. The Scenic City Certification Program provides a proven, highly-regarded tool to Texas 
cities for assessment, evaluation, and recognition of infrastructure standards.  Any Texas city 
may apply to the Scenic City Certification Program for an objective, points based review of 
existing municipal infrastructure ordinances.  Every application receives a score sheet 
evaluation.  Cities that score at the upper level and demonstrate a landscaping/tree planting 
program, on premise sign regulations, and prohibition of new billboards may earn Certified 
Scenic City designation.  
 
Benefits of participation include: 
 

• provides expert third-party evaluation of existing standards 
• facilitates internal review and analysis of development plans 
• serves as a platform to educate citizens on the impact of local regulations 
• fosters community character and civic pride 
• enhances economic development efforts 

 
Staff participated in a telephone orientation and was advised of the application deadline of April 
30, 2017.  Staff requested a one week extension for the application submission which was 
granted. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Minutes from the Parks and Open Space Board Minutes dated March 28, 2017 (item4) 
2. Scenic City Certification Program 2017 Standards 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The cost of the application is $749.00 for all new applicant cities and certified scenic cities 
applying for a 5 year recertification.   
 



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 

Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 
 



Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
March 28, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 

Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Parks Board Members Present: 
Chairman David Rhoads 
Vice-Chairman Chris Vanhorn 
Member Kenneth Patterson 
Member Brenda Rizos 
Alternate Member Joanne Doucet 

Parks Board Members Absent: 
Alternate Member Bill Esposito 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Executive Assistant/Special Projects 
Coordinator Cathey Bonczar 

City Council Liaison 
Councilmember Tim Baney 

Chairman Rhoads detennined that a quorum was present and reminded all in attendance to silence 
their cell phones. The Board conducted the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Regular Agenda 

1. Consider approval of the minutes of the February 28, 2017 Parks and Open Space 
Board regular meeting. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Ms. Rizos, seconded by Mr: Patterson to approve the minutes as presented. 
The motion passed unanimousfy by a 5 to 0 vote. 

2. Receive update regarding the East WinningkoffTrailhead project. 

D evelopment Services Director Joe Hilbourn provided a project status summary. He noted that the 
grant had been received, and the restrooms had been ordered and are expected to be delivered in 
approximately six weeks. The remaining portions of the project were out to bid. Bids are due by 
April 12, 2017. $129,000 was budgeted, and the expected completion date for the project is July 
2017. The use of an easement received &om NTMWD and the connection point to the trail were 
briefly discussed. 

Page I Parks and Open Space Board Meeung 
February 28, 2017 



3. Discuss details of the Keep Lucas Beautiful (KLB) program to include: 

A. K.LB affiliate status/annual report update 
B. KLB annual training requirements 
C. Keep Texas Beautiful Annual Conference 
D . KLB Cleanup event assignments 

Executive Assistant/ Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar informed the Parks Board that 
she had completed the training requirements for last year, and had filed the annual report as required 
to maintain the KLB affiliate status for this year. Ms. Bonczar stated she would be attending the 
Keep Texas Beautiful Annual Conference in San Antonio in June, and asked that the Board advise 
her of any specific educational sessions that they would like her to focus on while there. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilboum informed the Parks Board that there were currently 14 
volunteers signed up for the cleanup event, and would like the Board to attend as well. Supplies 
including gloves, trash bags, and safety vests for the event had been ordered. 

Mr. Patterson informed the Board that he had contacted the Dallas Cowboy organization and 
attempted to get an autographed picture of Dak Prescot that could be used as a give-away at the 
cleanup event. Based on how his request was received, he did not expect to receive the picture. 

4. Discuss details of the City of Lucas participating in the Scenic City Certification 
Program. 

Executive Assistant/Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar informed the Board that the City 
was applying for the Scenic City Certification. This was the first time the City had applied for this 
certification. The application is due by April 30. The Board discussed the differences between the 
KLB membership and the Scenic City Certification. City Manager Joni Clarke and Development 
Services Director Joe Hilboum explained the merits of program and the benefits of going through 
the certification process. 

5. Discuss and consider holding quarterly meetings of the Parks and Open Space Board. 

Ms. Rizos presented a suggestion for meeting quarterly instead of monthly. 

Board Members and City Staff discussed the role and responsibility of the Parks Board, and the 
relationship between the Board and the City. They reviewed areas where the Board could take on 
additional projects that are meaningful to the citizens, the possibility of assisting with writing grants, 
the importance of good communication between the Board and the City, and the Board taking a 
more active role in creating the agenda. 

Chairman Rhoads thought quarterly meetings would be too infrequent for the Board to be effective. 

Vice-Chairman Vanhorn suggested they refer to the project list from an earlier meeting, review and 
prioritize it, and pick one or two projects to work on. 

Page 2 Parks and Open Space Board l\leeting 
February 28, 2017 



Councilmember Baney suggested that the members view themselves as an advisory Board to Staff. 
He suggested the Board set an agenda item for their next meeting to discuss the project list. The 
Board could pick one or two projects from the list to work on and follow the plans from start to 
finish. This would drive agenda items and create focus for the meetings. The Board can bring 
project suggestions to staff at any time, and staff will evaluate the project for feasibility of 
implementation. He suggested the Board take a more active part in supporting Founders Day by 
having a booth at the event. This gives them the opportunity to let citizens know who they are and 
what they do, and to listen to citizens about what they would like to see happen. 

The Board agreed that they should continue to meet monthly, and that suggestions for agenda items 
should go to Chairman Rhoads and Vice-Chairman Vanhorn for approval, and then forwarded to 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson. 

City Manager Joni Clarke presented each board member with a copy of the ordinance outlining their 
goals and structure. 

6. Adjournment. 

MOTION · A motion was made by Mr. Vanhom, seconded by Mr. Patterson to aefjoum the meeting at 8:24 pm. 
The motion passed unanimous!J by a 5 to 0 vote. 

APPROVE: ATTEST: 

David Rhoads, Chairman 

Page 3 

'!I,\''""'""''''' '!>~~~~ \,.UC4s''1,,, 
..II_ .. 0 . . ... . .. . , )-. ~, 

$~!:"····· "··. ~~\ 
"'~ .· ·. ,_ lCJ .. \ ; 

~ t SEAL }U>~ - . . -: . . .:: 
~ . . ~ 
~ . . ~ 
~ ·. .· ~ 
~ ·.. .. ~ 

~, •••••••• ••• .$' ,,, * !>., ... ''i '!I,\\ .. ,,,,,,,, .... "''''~ 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
February 28, 2017 

































Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss the installation and removal of traffic control devices within the City of Lucas.  
 
Background Information:  
 
During the November 5, 2009, City Council meeting, the City Council passed Ordinance 2009-
11-00656 which authorizes the city manager to place traffic control devices after receiving 
recommendations from the city engineer.  The city engineer is to base recommendations on the 
Manual on Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  The city engineer shall remove any device that is 
no longer needed to for the safety or welfare of the citizens.  The city engineer shall make 
continuous studies.  The city engineer shall conduct studies as directed by the city manager. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster started a review of the three-way stop sign 
control at the Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane intersection in 2013 as parts of his duties set forth in 
Chapter 12 of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances.   
 
During the November 6, 2014, City Council meeting, the City Council passed Ordinance 2014-
11-00801 which authorizes the city engineer to place traffic control devices warranted by the 
MUTCD or as required by ordinance.  The city engineer may test all forms of traffic-control 
devices under actual conditions of traffic.   
 
The City Engineer was asked to review the need for various stop signs by the City Manager due 
to the impacts to public safety.  The review of the sign stop signs across the city were noted in 
the Weekly City Council Recaps: 
 

April 9, 2016 
STOP SIGNS LOCATIONS – To ensure that the City complies with the state laws that 
regulate intersections and to continue to ensure the safety of the traveling public, Public 
Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster will be reviewing various intersections 
throughout the City.   
 
The first priority is to evaluate the all-way stop requirements at the following 
intersections:   
1. Blondy Jhune Road/Winninkoff Road 
2. Orr Road/Winningkoff Road 
3. Snider Lane/Winningkoff Road 
4. Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane 
5. Estelle Lane/Gold Dust Trail 



Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

6. Estelle Lane/Forestview Drive 
7. Gold Dust Trail/Forestview Drive 
8. Ingram Lane/Travis Ranch Road 
9. Graham Lane/Graham Court 
 
November 10, 2016 
SIGNAGE – One of the projects identified for fiscal year 16/17 is to conduct a review of 
all warning and regulatory signage to ensure compliance with established standards.  
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster has reviewed and studied the need 
for stop sign control at the Snider Lane and Blondy Jhune Road intersections with 
Winningkoff Road.  The three-way stop sign control is necessary at Winningkoff/Snider 
because there is inadequate sight distance in all three approaches.  No stop sign control is 
necessary at Winningkoff/Blondy Jhune for the following reasons:  adequate sight 
distance, no accidents reported and low traffic volumes.  The stop signs on Winningkoff 
will be removed and a yield sign will be installed for eastbound Blondy Jhune during the 
coming months. 

 
March 24, 2017 
STOP SIGN REMOVAL – On Friday, April 7, the three-way stop sign control at 
Winningkoff Road/Blondy Jhune Road and Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane intersections will 
be removed.  Neither intersection met the warranting requirements set forth in the Texas 
Manual on Traffic Uniform Control Devices.  Public Works Director/City Engineer 
Stanton Foerster has studied both locations and sealed a report stating the warrant 
deficiencies.  This week temporary signs will be placed on all six stop signs stating their 
removal or replacement in two weeks.  The stop signs on Blondy Jhune and Wendy Lane 
will be replaced with yield signs. 
 
March 30, 2017 
TRAFFIC SIGNAGE – The City’s Engineering Department has been tasked with 
reviewing our traffic signs to ensure they comply the standards established in the Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  The MUTCD is a document issued by 
the Federal Highway Administration to specify the standards by which traffic signs are 
designed, installed, and used.  All traffic control devices must legally conform to these 
standards to ensure that the traffic control devices they use conform to the national 
standard.  
 
The purpose of all traffic control devices such as stop signs is to improve safety of the 
traveling public.  The proper installation is paramount when it comes to installation of 
any traffic control device.  An unwarranted stop sign creates an unnecessary hazard to the 
traveling public.  In fact, some improper installations could be considered dangerous. 
Unwarranted stop signs encourage and advocate the idea that a stop is not always 
required at a stop sign, which is the opposite of the purpose of a stop sign. 



Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

 
City staff posted signs on Friday, March 24 to advise the travelling public that the stop 
signs at the Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane and the Winningkoff Road/Blondy Jhune Road 
intersections will be removed in two weeks on Friday, April 7, 2017.  Warrant studies 
were conducted by Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster to determine if 
the installation of the stop signs was legal.  The three-way stop sign control was not 
warranted per state law at either intersection.  This type of warranting is usually done 
before a stop sign is installed.  Stanton could not find any record that the existing signs 
were ever warranted. 
 
The Winningkoff Road/Snider Lane intersection visibility exceeds the requirement of 140 
feet.  Stanton’s approach is more conservative; he generally uses 600 feet as a minimum.  
There is about 225 feet of visibility looking north on Winningkoff Road from Snider 
Lane.  Using the more conservative 600-foot standard, the three-way stop sign control 
was warranted. 
 
For the Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane intersection, Stanton first looked at the sight distance.  
Is there 600 feet of visibility?  The answer was yes at the intersection.  Second, the traffic 
volumes were reviewed.  Are there more than 2,000 vehicles per day (vpd) entering the 
Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane intersection (technically this only applies to intersections with 
more than three approaches)?  The answer was there are about 1,000 vpd.  With such 
lengthy sight distances and low traffic volumes, the less conservative approach would 
suggest not installing a yield sign on Wendy, but staff will be installing a yield sign. 
 
For the Winningkoff Road/Blondy Jhune Road intersection, Stanton conducted the 
warrant study in 2015.  The sight distances were at least 600 feet.  Next, the traffic 
volumes were reviewed.  A different standard than the one used on Estelle Lane was used 
on Winningkoff Road due to the high traffic volumes on Winningkoff Road.  Are there 
more than 300 vehicles per hour for eight hours per day?  The eight-hour average 
entrance volume was 97 vehicles; so the answer was no.  With such lengthy sight 
distances and low eight-hour average entrance volumes, the less conservative approach 
would suggest not installing a yield sign on Blondy Jhune.  Staff will be installing a yield 
sign on Blondy Jhune. 
 
Stop signs have already been removed and replaced with yield signs on Ford Lane and on 
E. Winningkoff Road.  Next Stanton plans to look at the stop sign control at the Graham 
Lane/Graham Court and the Ingram Lane/Travis Ranch Road intersections.  The 
installation of new stop signs within new subdivisions has been very limited since June 
2013. 
 

  



Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

April 21, 2017 
ENGINEERING WARRANT STUDY – Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton 
Foerster is reviewing a proposal from a transportation engineering firm for warrant 
studies.  The cost will be in the $2,000 to $3,000 range for a single study.  Staff plans to 
have this firm study the Estelle/Wendy Lane intersection to determine the signage 
requirements.  In an effort to save money, Stanton was doing these studies in house.  
Staff is planning to present this information to City Council at the May 18 meeting. 

 
During the summer of 2016 and February 2017, the city engineer reviewed that various 
warranting items associated with full stop sign control:  sight distance, traffic volumes, etc.  On 
February 27, 2017, the city engineer sealed a warrant statement calling for the removal of the 
two stop signs on Estelle Lane and replacing the stop sign with a yield sign on Wendy Lane.  
Additional data was collected in March of 2016.   On April 7, 2017, the following was emailed 
by the city engineer to citizens that had inquired about the Estelle Lane stop signs: 

In order to gather more warranting information, the Estelle Lane and Wendy Lane stop 
signs will remain in place.  I hope to have all the new data gathered within the next 30 
days.  Thank for your comments and concerns relating to this public safety matter. 

  
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

a. November 5, 2009, City Council Meeting Agenda Item 4 
b. Ordinance 2009-11-00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations 
c. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from November 5, 2009 
d. November 6, 2014, City Council Meeting Agenda Item 7 
e. Ordinance 2014-11-00801 Amending Code of Ordinance Chapter 12 
f. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from November 6, 2014 
g. Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane Warrant Statement 
h. Estelle Lane/Wendy Lane AM Peak Hour Traffic Data 
i. Winningkoff Road/Snider Lane Warrant Statement 
j. Winningkoff Road/Blondy Jhune Road Warrant Statement 
k. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from April 6, 2017 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
NA 
 
Motion:  
NA 



Item No. 04
City Secretary' s use only

City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request

Council Meeting: November 5, 2009 Requestor: 

Prepared by: Kathy Wingo

Account Code #: Date Prepared: 

Budgeted Amount: $ Exhibits: 0 Yes

AGENDA SUBJECT: 

No

Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2009- 11- 00656 of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 12 " Traffic and

Vehicles" by amending Article 12. 02 " Traffic -Control Devices" by designating an
authority to place and erect traffic -control devices; providing a severability clause; 

providing a repealing clause; providing a savings clause; providing for a penalty of fine
not to exceed the sum of two hundred dollars ($ 200. 00) for each offense; and providing
for an effective date. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

SUMMARY: 

See attached ordinance. 

APPROVED BY: Initial/ Date

Department Director: / 

City Manager: / 

Agenda Request Form

Revised October 17, 2005

P:\ Company\Government\ City Council\ Agendas\ 2009\ 2009- 1 1- 05\ 04 traffic control devices cs.doc



Annexation

Disannexation

Code of Ordinances

Other

ORDINANCE # 2009- 11- 00656

Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulation] 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE

CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 12 " TRAFFIC AND

VEHICLES" BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12. 02 " TRAFFIC -CONTROL

DEVICES" BY DESIGNATING AN AUTHORITY TO PLACE AND ERECT

TRAFFIC -CONTROL DEVICES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF

TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($ 200.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 

TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same
is, hereby amended by amending Chapter 12 " Traffic and Vehicles" by amending Section 12. 02
Traffic -Control Devices" to read as follows: 

ARTICLE 12. 02 TRAFFIC -CONTROL DEVICES

Sec. 12. 02. 001 Authority to place, erect and maintain devices

a) Upon the recommendation of the city engineer or designee, the city manager is
authorized by the city council to place and erect such traffic -control devices which he deems to
be warranted in accordance with provisions or requirements of the " Manual of Uniform Traffic

Control Devices" or as required by ordinances of the city. 

b) The city engineer or his designee shall cause traffic -control devices that are in place to be
removed if it is determined that these devices are no longer needed for the safety or welfare of
the citizens of the city. 

c) The city engineer shall also make continuous studies of the movement of traffic on the
streets of the city and shall make periodic recommendations to the city manager as to necessary
regulations, practices and controls for the safe and prompt movement of traffic within the city. 
The city engineer shall perform such duties as may be required by the city manager. 

d) The city engineer shall direct the location of all future traffic control signs, signals and
markings. The city engineer shall have the duty of erecting or installing upon, over, along or
beside any highway, street or alley, signs, signals and markings, or cause the same to be erected, 
installed or placed in accordance with this article and consistent with the " Manual on Uniform

Traffic Control Devices" from time -to -time as may be deemed necessary to regulate or guide
traffic in and through the city during unusual circumstances or situations where it is necessary to
alter the flow of traffic on a temporary basis to protect the health, life, order and security of the

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2009- 11- 00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations
Approved: November 5, 2009 1 - 



city or its citizens. The city engineer shall remove such signs, signals and markings within a
reasonable time after the unusual circumstances or situations cease to exist. 

e) All records pertaining to traffic zone markings and traffic device installation, including
placement, replacement, repairs of such traffic control devices and studies conducted of a

particular intersection, shall be maintained by the office of the city engineer and shall be
available for review by the public during normal business hours. 

Sec. 12. 02. 002 Prima facie evidence of authorized installation

It shall be unlawful for any person other than the city manager, acting pursuant to an ordinance
of the city council, to install or cause to be installed any traffic control device, sign, signal or
marking purporting to direct the use of the streets or the activities on those streets of pedestrians, 
vehicles, motor vehicles or animals. It shall be proof in any prosecution of a violation of this
article or any traffic ordinance of the city that any traffic control device, sign, signal or marking
was actually in place on any street shall constitute prima facie evidence that such device, sign, 
signal or marking was installed by the city manager or his designee pursuant to the authority of
this article and of the ordinance directing the installation of such device, sign, signal or marking. 

Sec. 12. 02. 003 Duty to obey

The driver of any vehicle, motor vehicle or animal shall obey the instructions of any official
traffic control device, sign, signal or marking applicable thereto placed in accordance with this
article, unless otherwise directed by a police officer, subject to the expectations granted the
driver of an authorized emergency vehicle as provided for in the state motor vehicle laws." 

SECTION 2. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or

section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same

shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other
than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity
of the Code of Ordinances as a whole. 

SECTION 3. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, in
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other
provisions of the ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. That an offense committed before the effective date of this ordinance is

governed by the prior law and the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, as amended, in effect
when the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

SECTION 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of
this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed
the sum of Two Hundred Dollars ($200) for each offense, and each and every day such violation
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2009- 11- 00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations
Approved: November 5, 2009 - 2 - 



SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage
and the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, on the
5th

day of November, 2009. 

Bill Carmickle, Mayor

ATTEST: 

Kathy Wingo, TRMC, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Joe Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney
JJG/cgo/ 09- 16- 09/ 3 9914) 

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2009- 11- 00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations
Approved: November 5, 2009 SIM



Annexation
Disannexation
Code of Ordinances

ORDINANCE # 2009 -11- 00656, 
Other

Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulation]

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 12 "TRAFFIC AND
VEHICLES" BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12.02 " TRAFFIC- CONTROL

DEVICES" BY DESIGNATING AN AUTHORITY TO PLACE AND ERECT
TRAFFIC- CONTROL DEVICES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF
TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS,
TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same
is, hereby amended by amending Chapter 12 "Traffic and Vehicles" by amending Section 12.02
Traffic- Control Devices" to read as follows:

ARTICLE 12.02 TRAFFIC- CONTROL DEVICES

Sec. 12.02.001 Authority to place, erect and maintain devices

a) Upon the recommendation of the city engineer or designee, the city manager is
authorized by the city council to place and erect such traffic - control devices which he deems to
be warranted in accordance with provisions or requirements of the "Manual of Uniform Traffic
Control Devices" or as required by ordinances of the city.

b) The city engineer or his designee shall cause traffic- control devices that are in place to be
removed if it is determined that these devices are no longer needed for the safety or welfare of
the citizens of the city.

c) The city engineer shall also make continuous studies of the movement of traffic on the
streets of the city and shall make periodic recommendations to the city manager as to necessary
regulations, practices and controls for the safe and prompt movement of traffic within the city.
The city engineer shall perform such duties as may be required by the city manager.

d) The city engineer shall direct the location of all future traffic control signs, signals and
markings. The city engineer shall have the duty of erecting or installing upon, over, along or
beside any highway, street or alley, signs, signals and markings, or cause the same to be erected,
installed or placed in accordance with this article and consistent with the "Manual on Uniform
Traffic Control Devices" from time -to -time as may be deemed necessary to regulate or guide
traffic in and through the city during unusual circumstances or situations where it is necessary to
alter the flow of traffic on a temporary basis to protect the health, life, order and security of the

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2009-11-00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations
Approved: November 5, 2009 - 1



city or its citizens. The city engineer shall remove such signs, signals and markings within a
reasonable time after the unusual circumstances or situations cease to exist.
e) All records pertaining to traffic zone markings and traffic device installation, including
placement, replacement, repairs of such traffic control devices and studies conducted of a
particular intersection, shall be maintained by the office of the city engineer and shall be
available for review by the public during normal business hours.

Sec. 12.02.002 Prima facie evidence of authorized installation

It shall be unlawful for any person other than the city manager, acting pursuant to an ordinance
of the city council, to install or cause to be installed any traffic control device, sign, signal or
marking purporting to direct the use of the streets or the activities on those streets of pedestrians,
vehicles, motor vehicles or animals. It shall be proof in any prosecution of a violation of this
article or any traffic ordinance of the city that any traffic control device, sign, signal or marking
was actually in place on any street shall constitute prima facie evidence that such device, sign,
signal or marking was installed by the city manager or his designee pursuant to the authority of
this article and of the ordinance directing the installation of such device, sign, signal or marking.

Sec. 12.02.003 Duty to obey

The driver of any vehicle, motor vehicle or animal shall obey the instructions of any official
traffic control device, sign, signal or marking applicable thereto placed in accordance with this
article, unless otherwise directed by a police officer, subject to the expectations granted the
driver of an authorized emergency vehicle as provided for in the state motor vehicle laws."

SECTION 2. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same
shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other
than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity
of the Code of Ordinances as a whole.

SECTION 3. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, in
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other
provisions of the ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. That an offense committed before the effective date of this ordinance is

governed by the prior law and the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, as amended, in effect
when the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose.

SECTION 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of
this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed
the sum of Two Hundred Dollars ($200) for each offense, and each and every day such violation
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2009-11-00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations
Approved: November 5, 2009 - 2-



S CTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and
and the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Lucas,

day ofNovember, 2009i, u,,,III
oF1.uCAS

after its passage

Texas, on the 5

SEAL I _ BITi Carmickle, Mayor

ATTEST: ,

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

6A J)- I -

Joe jfjorfida, Jr. City AdVrney
JJG /cgo /09 -16- 09/39914)

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2009 -11 -00656 Amending Traffic Control Devices Regulations
Approved: November 5, 2009 3-



Mayor Carmickle says the stop signs are in place,  the study shows the signs are
warranted,  so the signs should remain.   The discussion continued and it was

determined that Staff would review the situation and act accordingly.

4)  Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance  #  2009 -11 -00656 of the City of
Lucas,  Texas,  amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 12  "Traffic
and Vehicles" by amending Article 12.02 "Traffic- Control Devices" by designating an
authority to place and erect traffic- control devices;  providing a severability clause;
providing a repealing clause;  providing a savings clause;  providing for a penalty of
fine not to exceed the sum of two hundred dollars  ($200.00) for each offense;  and
providing for an effective date.

City Manager Patrick stated that this ordinance amends the current Code of
Ordinances to give authority to staff to place and erect traffic- control devices without
first coming to Council for approval.   The City Engineer will use the Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices to determine where traffic control devices are
installed and removed.

MOTION:   Mayor Carmickle moved to approve Ordinance # 2009 -11 -00656 of the

City of Lucas,  Texas,  amending the Code of Ordinances by amending
Chapter 12  "Traffic and Vehicles"  by amending Article 12.02  "Traffic -
Control Devices"  by designating an authority to place and erect traffic -
control devices;  providing a severability clause;  providing a repealing
clause;  providing a savings clause;  providing for a penalty of fine not to
exceed the sum of two hundred dollars  ($200.00) for each offense;  and
providing for an effective date.   Mayor Pro Tem Peele seconded the
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  6 -1, Councilmember Barratt voting NAY.

5)  Discuss and Consider the approval of Resolution # R- 2009 -11 -00344 of the City of
Lucas,  Texas,  authorizing the City Manager to pursue Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Block Grants EECBG ")   Funding made available through the

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ( "ARRA ") and being allocated by
the State Energy Conservation Office to be used to assist the City's Goals of Energy
Efficiency.

City Manager Patrick gave an overview of the agenda item.   Part of the Federal

stimulus package is to pass down funds for Cities to use to reduce energy
consumption.   The City has been allotted  $20,000 worth of stimulus funds.   City
Manager Patrick has spoken with three representatives about possible ideas for the
use of these funds,  and one option is to use the money to purchase 3 solar area
lights for the proposed park area on the South side of the City Hall.   Council was

provided a quote from Solar Wind TEC which would use solar lights to light our
parking area at City Hall,  and add two lights for the new park area.   Also,  City
Manager Patrick researched using solar panels to offset the electricity usage at City
Hall,  and found that the savings would be too minimal to justify the expense of

c
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS Page 4 of 8
City Council Regular Minutes
November 5, 2009



Ci*ty of Lucas
H Regular MeetingCity Couna

Novembeir 6, 2014

I A

Consiier Ordinance # 2110,14- 11- 00801 concerning proposed 6hanges to the City of
I

Lucas Code of Ordinance, Chapter 12, TRAFFIC and VEHICLES. 

act round Informati,onj. 

Joni Clarke, City Mana er requested that Stanton Foerster, Pubfiic' Works, Directorg
and C i'ty Engineer, review Chapter 1, 2 of the Codej

of Ordinances. i ne purplose of
0

this review was, to check for consistence within the; ordinance and update data, to

current standards. 

a 0Ettachments/Suppol-mg, Documentation

I Redline Chapter 12

2. Ordinance # 20,14- 11- 00801

I make a motion to approve/defly Ordinance # 204 4- 1 1- 0080i I. amending the City
Traffic and Vehi,cles. f Lucas Code of0rdinanice, Chvter 121, 



F 1 1111111511 115 75 FAR, 71111711E7111

CHAPTER 12

FICAND VEHICLES

ARTICLE 12. 01 GENERAL PROVISIONS* 

Sec. 12. 01. 001
V

See. 12.02. 001 Authority to, place, erect and maintain devices, 

a) Xhe city authorized, by the city council to place and erect such traffic -control
devices which di, 

o E deems to be warranted in accordance with provisions or

requirement's old this " Manual Traffic,,,Control Devices" or as required by ordinances
of the city. 

b) The city engineer or d C,,, designee shall cause! traffi- control, devices that are
m. 

in place to, be removed if it is, determined that these devices are no longer needed for the safety or
Welfare of the g4,ye 1 i j,.)i,.jb,1 ic. 

c), The city engineer shall also make continuous studies of the inovernent oftraffic on the
streets of the city and shall niake periodic recommendations to, the city manager asto necessary
regulations, practices and controls, for the safe and prompt movement of traffic within the city. 
The city engineer shall perform such duties as may be required by the city inanager,.__,_'The city

g,.L& LCI,t [,.gji!y,test all forms of traffic -control devii es under ac. ti 4I cond fions, of 1,,,, affic

d), The city engineer shall direct the location of all ftiture trap' e_ S' ligns, signals and

m ' kings. The city engincer shall have the duty, of e'recling, or installing upon, over, along orar

beside any, highway, street or alley, signs, signals and markings, or, cause the same, to, be erected, 
installed or placed in accordance With tl S article and consistent with the "' Manual on Uniform

TraffiqSontrol Devices"' from tisue -to-time , as may ber deenled necessary to regulate or guide
traffic in and through the city during unusual circurnstances or situations where it is necessary to
alter the flow of traffi,c on, a temporary, basis to protect the health, li,, order and security of the

city or its citizens. The city engineer shall remove such signs, s , ignals, and markings within a

reasonable time after the unusualcircunistanoes Or situations cease texist. 

1 2. 2.002 Prima facie evidence of authorized installation

It shall, be unlawful for any pershon oter than the city the cl rV Ulwlanai nuc s, i iw

acting pursuant to, an ordinance of the city council, to install or cause to be installed any trafflic- 
control, device, sign, signal or marking purporting to direct the use of the streets orthe activities. 

Oelleted: citi7ens of the city

f"

11l
Deleted: - 

111 ....... ... - 11 ...... 

Deleted: (o) All records perlahiing, to traffic one rnarkings and
waffic dtvice installation, including placemcni, replactin, em, repairs
of such traffit-, ontroll & vices and studies conducted of a parlicular

hltemef tioll, shall be ma iota inedby the offlice of the dity enginter
and shall bavailable fin, review by flit pubfi during nornial
business hours.1



on those streets of pedestrians, Vchicles, niotor vehicles or aninials.. It shall, be proof in any
prosecution of a violation of this article, or any traffic ordinance of the city that any traffic - 

street shall titute primacontrol device, sign, signal or marking was actuallniplace on any consY

facie evidence that such, device,, sign, signal or marking was installed by the city manager ouffic, 
JL 1" n gt 1 I esignce pursuant, tothe authority o' this article and o" the ordinance directing theZ_ - 

C .-------- Deteted. 

installation of such device, sign, signal or niarking. 

Sec. 12. 02.003 Duty to obey

Thedriver of any vehicle,, niotor vehicle or anitnal shall obey the, instructions, ofany official
traffic -control device, sign, signal or marking applicable thereto placed in accordance with this
article, unless otherwise directed b a, police officer, suons anY bjcct to the expectatigrated the

driver of an authorized emergency vehicle as provided for, in. the state motor vehicle laws. 

Deleted: (Orditiance 2009- 1 1- 1 656A adopted] 1/ 5109)j
Seto low reforea ces– Autholri ty lo dcsipate throtto, i higbways and

injersections, VTCTransportation C'ode, 
ART1110111JE 112. 03 SPEED, LIMITS, 

stop and yield A., secs. 

542.202, 544.0'0 3; maimer of stopping at slop, or yield sign,. 
Code, soc. 54-4. 01 0, vchicle enten.ing, stop

See. 12. 03-001 Geitneral speed, lim
Ir yield Transliortaboll Codc, scc 545 15,31, 

Unless expressly designated otherwise by this chapter, on all public streets within the city, thirty
30) miles per hour shall be the prima f4cie maxitnuln speed limit, and; any speed, in eXCesS

thereofshall be prima fAcie evidence that such, speed is not reasomale or, pruolent and that, it is

unlawful. Deleted: ( 1 " 5 Code, sec. 13- 41

Sec., 12.03.002 Specific speed
liwii

ts III, eie, t, e,:1" st-a,tv'Ia w-,  r —efe r" e, , n, c, 'e, Pt"rrw fa'c'ie.... s"peed —limits, "' C. b, 

rTanspotution Codio, soc. 545, 352-,j, . . ..... . . ............ 

a) No person slull drive or operate a motor vehicle on any public street orhighway within the
territorial Bruits of the city, at a greater rate of speed, than 30 miles per hour ui q less-[, 
ot, A n secdori 

b) No person, shall drive or operate arriotor vehicle on any alley within the territorial limits of
the city at a greater rate of speed than, 15 miles per hour unless otherwise des,i,gnat:ed herein., 

c) On the hereinafter designated streets, or portions thereof, the speed designated herein shall

be the prima facie maxinium speed limit,, and, an speed in excess thereof shall, be rima, farCieY p
evidence, that Isuch speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful., Such, streets, or

portions thereof, being nor particularly, described: 

Road Extent Speed, Limit

Deleted: Arthur' s Court

Y. 

Deleted: A I all poDart wi th i n t ity I im.i J' a

Deleted 30



West Lucas[ v PC v I cod F NJ 113 7 itJ on e c I 11, 

Brockdale Park Road jy

1378 1,,,,Illlrt i o n s vy, i p rt i, he c, 



j,`,,N1 3286 ql ,'m"W"), I fr ( Wi) 1"Al 1 78 to W'  tl    . Deli : F n t Maxket jl

r Deleted.- Froni l omi to Market 1378 w W i nits koffRoad,.. 

Form: Space Before: 10 p#, After: 0 pt, 
f"II. la101@'AWWC IryrMO N naaAf u. sema e , 111" tixuaxa, a1:, 111111 urr nf,, wmNMI azauaw, a" Wff I  

D' 1 : ( Luvas BranchRoad), 

3286 n VI p1ii . ° inIi Ii 1, RI 
1iid to t ni ' tei" l

m..... _ 

tl.  Deleted.-Farm t Market
r

t, .,, ql t1r) ; t, . "  a 1

rxxxx, xx . r rw, Kw~ „, dw,,>,ww , x r, rmmur r f fua rmvn— rr v, ann u fmfaoamr rr I r Irmfamr r rhif mrim r rrr nrmnrr

Deleted*., FromWin nrrn, koff Road to the aat citylimit

FIS Space Before: pts Air pt

4,. DA

le : 1
1' 3

Deleted: (Luas ran h load) 

Deleted: Farm Road 2 UI
F.slates Parkway) 

so

Deleted: ( rdin.ann2004- 01- 00502, see. 1, adrpted,/L 51) ; p

2 171 From city I j mits to iAi' II tt) 1lwe S' I cit a 50 

k

Fa in Road, 

W III v,I IVtl N n

IIV
n

u' ii  

mr ,". 
4, 1W t le Na" 1R I a,) I R, q le Road t"M, N, W, III 1, eQ Formaded: pace Before r tftet: pt

1,,., ,  , 

ryWry M  ” ,   ;  Ni ' fi , t  a w' boundary . I r. 
Wf " SIJ N" Y,..,-.. ,...........,.,..-......-

w

uaf miww, ilw; omirmUiuilnaJrstilli;, sJ,emun,»o»»»» Nweumlu lo au>ilia» f wuuUauluJouuuu nmmfiro„ n iuyefyfaf» fa» uf ausws waryre. r rr, xe xrrr ',',',', r,, r,r r,,,„ r ,,,,,,,,',', 

Delete b Love Jo

High, School

U

vSW 4ft W   Jcet
i.,,,.. . i.,„, i.;.. r,,..,i. .... ilii .,... .- 

5
a• . .., ...._.,... .... ... ,, ..... 

D .. .,, 19 ........ A... .. ................ .... 
e

4. X..A . f.AtiM0

4111 I, c) fRjgeR: )& , i L'4111 a w

trtldr

Space Before-, 

dUBeWuwddp

uf'
dwWn!„

4p:.
r 68

yAfter: Jrrenram4

uuue„ t,t ',,, afmaaa, n ' aid ua„,; 

1
Formatted: I

wr.' Wm„ m i r r F ;. 7 I.rN rl ti^"" r . f; rrlll,. dYIY r/ i rrr ..., 1"."!!!! 1' I! 7rRXd . r, fi.Jl.Y. / i . n . n/il. / .. ,,,,. 

Deleted: From cast boundary r 1Awe Joy High,. lux)), to FNI

p

a . m,.....,. hili.... iii

Deleted: ( rdi nanc 1 t ) 066 at opr d 3/ 1 X10) 

I Forest Grove f IIS  ' i ..pi s % lIhiri tft '' I.„ 

i„i,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,. . , ......... .......,., 

a

I * Fm nnrm w,d', 17 to Orr Lane ( County ; adi 17) 
W11XE A A"?; 1N1dWp1/ 11MX. 91W,) a11111POPUUW

Formatted , Space Before, Opt, After: Opt

I ournty Rad 6a ) 

D01I Glenbrook, Circle
wr««..... dmer«rrrr.............../ ua wrrnwN nNtta annaw w..... wrrm w' r

t l : At all points' within city hirtnt

Deleted: 30
U,/ il! _ Nh .. .! 4 // . G/N.i...,. au, ,,,.,,,, .... ...,. r rim, D.i dn,"' 

Deleted'b Hamilton Drive

4

1 i;4t a'll poiut within c ity Innnnts, 
u'N.X24 N̂YNfi Jxl' A1N3A1 W199YUfi6 11Y v isN nn'. va x a rpNf 9.AB.J. Jpwxs rt o,,,, vv i rnm '„ n, rx„ r mruru,u, furra dvr' v,.,.' e: m d s.,,. a,': 

o, 

I

r Delete: 30 r
E:

Mkll(N4WiNiWIIVO faIDIW14NIfJYN,Y3J11JU4N1UNllHYYkifMn,”NLWdIG'IIIDJfNT!;» FJPflfl hAiNM IDD fUII LP,ID1Y®J'GNIDDIY/ 117Q9 IW,YYi/ 1n d v Ne,. nsm ,. u,r..nrs ,,, ., rn. ian // n. rnrne f1.41LN1 r. Nrnu d lA., 

y pyw, 

e
r ¢ ie,t

Delle. t allnnnrt+ vnthn a nth: lninnnt. 
f4N laffffifd Y1fJfJlfilYf»f JJNiJlrfviJriiL4frrl WfNFI?9NhfFifNl iNlff 1r Fm Pf/ Fd (ff5721ff ID)) SS>;MN"1rr/N)SN/ N// lrF/ / l «"r,', f„ rr r', er,,, r, r rd n,>, v, rr„',d ua,/ i / di, a/,4i,/ Ar. rrr,., 

r w ttw wmirrwr um hr rrrn n«, mrr r Inarra n mwu rw,r rsxw fliffffffffff'lel//lll/(fulf%<W'/6f'/I//INa'/// IIIA/%/////,'/f/%%/fi/ 4%l////1///////ffiflf/ fl / Y ff f "/ lJilJi 11 lliiJlJl/.:;,

j 

I Deleted: Ho neysuc l Lame

le ,...,,.

n, 

o. At all pail nt ntivnnrn city, lnlmnt
u; NkldPNI/wn1i1101 H1f1! @ffAf4bkNrlN.illAlfuTillti4i`/P,41101YNWGHI!Nyfm/gyi'u9Wlffr' NL 1P dP16N611mi0nl2fiAhUlLJffR/ JGfIOMllfdIFfJJiJir' IrrN dd uo va x,. d . raadr ttn, dWU, Ngf» lliJ/ J)6i/(99JF//9,L /%Oe' A% 6//// m. n; 



Deleted Al a] I points wi tbi 0 city limits

Deleted: 3o
1AMINIAR VJWPU I IW, I [

Delete& 011ara 1) rivc

Deleted: At all points within city fimit 
mama";;. 

ted: 30

Deleted: Oirchard Gap Lane

Orr, Lane iarws wit1fir, the
cit :

a y 410
rr . Vuxm, ; 

Deleted': At, all points witbin city bmils, 

Deleted: .10

Deleted.0 fivm, WinningWff Road to not1h, city Urtfits

Deleted: (County Road # 3 17) -- - — ----- . ............ . ............... 

IDel, 
my y , m avammmaw ......... . I

Deletedom At all points, within city fiinits

Deleted: 30

2 5 114 jians "' ithin, the ..._nt 55
DeletW; Parker Road

Fannatted., Space Before,,- , After0 pt

Deleted": From, wem c i 1 y 1 i m i ts to Farrn Road 13,78

RaxnsayDrwc
w

Deleted,; At all points, within city limits

Rock Ridge Road hortioris r, e, cj, 3 5
Md l/ IM19ii414f

I 1 30

I FM 2 170 to FM 1, 37

I-' M, 

DeletedP

Deletwl.. Scarlctt Drivc

DeletW1011At all points within city limits, 
m7, nr,= 7.. 

Delew: 30 ..... 

Deleted: ( Ordinanct,, 2C04- 01, 00502, scc. ' I, adopted I / 5/( A) 

Deleted: Snider Lane

6eleW: At all inti within city limits

I Deleted** 3t) 

Deleted* (CWijvance, 21( W-04-00602, svj. 1, adopted 9,IVOT) 

Deleted,: Frou'i Fami' pltyad 13,78 to Parkt,r Road

Stinson Road viti"lin, the CH U!I,erall,, LY 40, h,, ow
CIO

Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt, After : 0 pt

Deleted*. Travis Ranch Road

Deleted.* At all poi$ within city limits

Deleted: 110 . ......... 



Win.ningkoff Road, ' AH" C)It' I I ), 11 k i l t . i i ^ C I ." 1

a clW of one in I „ i ll l" „ t
w w .

Nna d areas or oti theolli I j i alld

IN;' eiet at a s eei   m  des I,. Ia i I ' section I   & I  Iq": 
m „ _ _ w

the P.w"" w. wv w", p,,"wLjty_, a" v w. wuuv," t

i istreet
a " ww" W w" w" wwww wwm"" w" wwv" v" ww wmwwmwwww www

s't.4,._.I... ".. . w iais vidg?,i ha Iv. p ld. IIA riot r o able r)v0 " I"!qg ..." ""..ai"." is
w_. ..........__—__.......... -" t - i" i. 

utll   t t l iSII , t b lrl t it urta terir u lned based on

en and Urafficwsuv . g,j , cc Iun ill sial ides r2ja school zones wit1[ i, 

i' t L"ial , i t N & UI" I& ''  i U IW V it III . tree" i °' iII i " j III UiIIfrIII ,. 
rvrv" ".."" 

Mil-' "  "... " 
w . _ w . a . w " . 

P Is shaflV be u I " t Il ii' scl,tool c) tlries b thercaffic; (,,,,nr, iiegqfit°lull

U v   ' " ,m w

ofth  S  ' ' I 10  m m IIP IW, dlll Itl iN ui N ti urr  

COOM§2ilii " lt Inctiibtii Ott i1"m16" Ull l

l il Measuredm r  i tl" o

wP, tlri°; r II. if ro N, vvia qjgas are declared to be s6I Iol zones and tl'iei maxin"UIr"y' l

Il ql " tl ' Ilr III III   IIS I i  r  s C. rg3te  ti t "" N' llin  ch  i s I, D c  o in a r'i . o in .Lgeed

w,; udw.) streets, 

woti 
s

u y

l .'
u w w ww

l . Ili 

vv I) i e Ir, a
itw , 

i  IP° tll°°° t r ° t °' " m LIC) Ll S, 
s h a I 01 b e rzls fo I ow

i, HOw, Mw _, 
tlua.n i laIIIJiva. l., 1 rui.lIl . aii". 

t2_j)oint a ur1l t o lig u n fi r e d 00, c),e s o,,i tVh uif HLa nl i. 

b, E seB e I a tll' ii`" mope °" " " I  Illi ii u tlP Ni rl   w I u  o Ir r ISI a  1,  _ _ ,. q. 
i "., .,.."" ... , ..„

u" n".""... 

8; t 12pjint one vun"d fid., .j.QQV feed west of 0 ' 1 1" t u;" Dirive

c 1rx> L9'AY as ttvaitterrriis Lurm,'? IG4 ierei Ilw, mi, l 111 be each Mio n d yjbL a       " tll   

calendar, , r Me: the [ x)6mI Iritcrest the ; hoU nig.  Iw ess u
tlmm 

to u lr's of TGO a jn , anid 51010 irrl p Irl  IIS m d@

It ii  ttIl  t . µ   mmit"  i r

s ,, $ 
a wj wv! wu wv w eved tabfished iM- " 

ii  , nr SII n tlP II! i IIi'". It- u iw   IIi"i. ".", 

Matt ti" p, tlithere is tiii cliU lltl" int "''"- t' IP" III" titli ; it tlY tll Utt o "Dia t ' a ii iiVlUii

Deleted: It shall be axrrlaaa fiul and an, offense for any r$01i t

drive or ortrate a motor vehicle in, a school t"r tit"i zone on

public sc1 days, or when flashing lights art- at

speed r" " aft r than posted, and any Peed in x  aai' tla

posted, sped is prima fatic eidan nva that the speed is not

rwaOrAb1c aar ptadcrrt undcr the cimunistances tin existing
and is rrral ul, l"r l traffic zones, shall 'ba„ d,esilignated with
appm,praate street: markngs r signs. which street markings or

signsshall be placed, r the school zones by the city, and which
street maitings or signs shall be in va_wralorr ity widi the Texar
Manual on L46foinia Traffic- Conoiol Devices. The speed limit

dicsigmated for s4vool traffic Zones Shall, he effective only t
I i mes, Wh" appropriat Si Pis con taining flaalairr g lights
advising, motorists o tlaa* speed limit are placed in aon iawtaous

laaa„°m The following dvsignatvd locations constitute school
traffic Zones: 

eJew



M

ceed with czire or yO'I cz,,na ! npf, jpp gris arp

rInj Such a rrioIrineIr as to overtake, atid 5 ier vehicle be4iP N a n ir,Ah

in fl) e sanrie direction, jl,? "u", 0 ............. . ........... JIle, sa mje street withi r i sa d sig' iio<,)l zone. 

It stm il be ur Obwif,,'tjl for e " on to drive or q erate a vehicle ur'i a street orr.s ...... . . . ..... . ....... . . . ..... . . ................ . ...... . ..... . . . .... . .............  ....................... . ....... ... . ..... ............. . 

1") i t1hrOLjg! L1,g 1100I zoiries " erejni de ri ted dUl"ifl, - Ie hods her,e, riLq - L- .. . ....... SC

d s, abed at a rate of ppS  __ q (,.) fj jr'i excess 11- i t YJnra 1 acie rriaxirnurn, spppl n Sit

rherei,ri,,,,,,d,e i, stxh schl s00zone, 

11 11

Arlt Urso violatinq a rovision (.,)f this section, jsif-iall be deern i

misde
wwwwrnew. anow

Wr
and wicfion therelof stiall bie fined in the sum of not r nore tharl

two hUndred dofliars.(,$L. gQ1,for each such violation. 

ARTICLE 1.2. 04 TRUCKS AND TRUCK ROUTES* 

Seg. 12. 04.001, Definitions

The following, ternis, when used, in this anicle, shall have the meaning ascribed to the in this

section: 

Commercial motor- ic/e. A self-propelled or towed, vehicle that is used to transport passengers
or carif. 

1) The vehicle or combination of vehicles has, a gross weight, registered, weight, or

gross, Weight rating of more than, 26,000 pounds; 

2), The vehicle is designed or used to transport more, than 15 passengers, including
the driver,- or

3) The vehicle is ' used to transpon hazardous materials in a, quantity, requiring
placarding by a regulation issued, under the Hazardous Materials, Tran-sportation Act

s.c., section 5101, etseq.). 

Pole, trat"lei-, A vehicle with,out motive power: 

1.) Designed to be drawn by another vehicle and secured to the other, vehicle by
pole, reach, boom, or other s,ecurity device; and, 

2) Ordinarily used to transport, a long or irregularly shaped load,, including poles, 
p1pes, or structural members, generally capale of sustaining themselves as, beams
between the supporting connections. 

Sc,hool bus. A motor vehicle that was manufactured in compliance with thfedera,l motor vehicle

safety standards f6r, school' buses in effect on the date of manufacture and that is used to transport

11- 1- 1- 1- 1 . . . . .. . . ............... - - — --- -- 

Formatted: Highlight

Delet* d: I
sec. 12.03.003, Posting of stgn
Themayor Mfr tbcdul Y

I erect, apjln,rPrriaW signs iitdicafing the speed limits enacted hcreill, 
1995 Code,, see. 13- 43,)l



pre-primary, pni'maty, or secondary students on a, route to or from school or on a school -related
activity trip other than on routes to and. firom, school. The term does not include a school - 
chartered bus. 

Sentilrailei% A corni,iiercialn;iotor vehicle with or without motive power, other than a pole tTailer, 

that is: 

1) Designed to be drawn by, a motor vehicle and to transport, persons or property; 
and

2) Constructed so that part ofthe vehicle' s weight and, load rests, on or i s carried

by ariother vehicle., 

Ti-uck-n-aett . A motor vehicle designed and used primarily to draw another vehicle but not
constructed to carry a, load, other than a part ofthe weight of th,e other vehicle and its load. 

Sec. 12. 04.002 Deslignated truck routes-, defenses

a) Except as otherwise provided herein, no, person shall operate,, leave, park, stand, ' load or
I I

unload, or permit to 'be operated, parked, loaded or unloaded any, commercial motor vehicle, 
truck- rtractor, semitrailer, poletrailer or any combination thereof on any street or alley that is not
designated as a truck route under this article,, 

11- 11- 1 . . .......... ............ 

b), ajid fi,,-de,raj highway, and the following locations within the city are hereby Evvy and aatc

designated, truck routes., 'West L,,qgts, Roaijwest. of F ' 1 13'

781, sp cit"ICgUly, 

fc) it shall be a def6nse to prosecution under this article ifthe vehicle is: Deleted: ( 1) East Lucas Road ( Branch Road), fim Highway
1378 to the eastern city, l, it

2) Wost Lucas Road, frons Highway 1378 to, the wtswrn city

I) An authorized emergency vehicle; fimits;jj
Fann -to- Market 2 170 ( Ematcs Park wa,Y) from Counti-y

Club RwJ to the westem, city Jimits-.1

2) A. vehicle operated by a public utility erfomiin utility inspection, utility ( 4) Farm- to- Marktt 2551 from the northern city hinks to thep 9
wixtherncity limits,; an411

maintenance or utility repair activities on utility facilities within the city and, owned ( 5) Country Club Road ( FM 1378) firorn thrihem city hinits to

or operated by that ufility and such utirlity facilities are located off the desig"Fated the southem city Hinits.1

truck routes as defined in this article; 

3) A vehicle owned and, operated by or for the city performing a public service, 
including but not limited to trash, collection vehicles and street and, water utility repair
and maintcnance vehicles; 

4) A school, bus or a bus, operated by a mass transit authority; 

5) A towable recreational vehicle; or

6) A vehicle traveling to or from a, location which, i,s not on a designated, truck
route for, the purpose of providing repair or mamtenance service to the vehicle or
loading or unloading goods, wares or tnerchandise, provided such vehicle is operated



over the shortest praeficalel e route, and the operator of such vehicle has in tlric. 

pg:ALor_',s jin,mediate possession evidence ofthe local destination and, poiw. of Origin. Deleted: his

Sec. 12. 04.003 Signage- strict liabilityI

a), The city engineer, or other person designatedby the city mana,ger, in compliance with the
Texas Manua] on

Ur

nifon,,ia Traffic Control Devices, is hereby aulhorirzed to cause, the placement
of traffic control, signs al appropriate locationto, inform, operators of 'the truck ° outes and

zones,. The absence of signage shall not 'be a, defense to a prosecution under this. Del,00d: thru

article. - - -------- 

b) It is the intentof the city council of the city in adopting this, article that an off'ense under
this article be a strict liability offense; in, the prosecution of an, offense under this article, no

pleading or proof of intent shall be required to establish the guilt of an, accused. 

gy ",, Y f this sectign shall ih, deerng(4 c gLy, of aq_,g_ _,plovisioti c

r"r !J,,.adeinearior and thereof shall be firied in the SUrYl Of' r,iot ni orethan

two hundre(j 100'Lfo ) n. i such violatk

Deleted: (Ord inance 2011,.. . -014),670 adopted L/ 6/ 11 1



Stanton Foerster, PE 1/ 6612014 6:09,1: 00 PM

Road Extent
iSlIp,

eed { mph) 

Country Club Road Extending frm the southern border of Hart 35

FMI 1378) Elementary on County Club, Rd., traveling north
106,

010

on Country Club Rd. (,between flashing
school zone signs) 

Estelle Lane ExtendIng ffom the in'terrection, of Country Club 210, 

and Estelle Lane, traveling east on Eis,telle Lane
955' to O' Hiara Dr. 

Honeysuckle Lane Extending ftom, the intersection of Estelle Lane and 210

Honeysuckle Lane, traviefing northward 535o,n, 
Honeysuckle Lane. 

Ordinance 2004- 01 00503, sec. 1, adoptedjOrdinan,ce adopting Code) 
Stalte law reftrence—Prima facie speed linifts, VTC.A.,, Ttansportation Code, sec. 545.352. 



Annexation

E] Disannexation

ECode of Ordi'names
001her

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
0TEXAS. 

SECTION L, That the Code of Ord.inances ofthe City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same

is, hereby amended by amend,ing Chapter, 12, " Traffic and Vehicles", to read as follows': 

CHAPTER 12

T'lle-,AFFIC AND VEHICLES

ARTICLE 12.01 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Sec. 12. 011. 001 Reserved

See. 12. 02.0,01 Authority to place, erect, a,nd, maintain devices

a) The city englineer is authorized by the city council to place and erect such. traffic -control, 
devices which the city engineer deems to "be warranted, fil accorld,ance, with provisions or

I ........ ...... . ........... .. . . 

its of Lucas

Ordinance # 2014- 11- 00801 Nniendnient to Chapter 12 Trallic and Vehi'des

Approved . Nov ernber 6, 2 014



requirements of the " Manual on Uniform Traffic -Control Devices" or as required by' ordinances
of the city. 
b The enghieer or the city engineer' s designee shall cause traffic -control devices, that

are in Place to be removed if it is determined that these devices are no longer needed for the

safety or welfare of the h7aveling public. 

c) " The city engIneer shall also make continuous studies of the movernent of traft"ic on the

streets of the city and shall niake periodic recommendations to, the city manager as to necessary
regulations, practices and controls for the safe, and prompt movement of traffic within the city. 
The, city engineer, shaIl perf6rm, such, duties as may be ' required by the city manager., The city
engi,neer may, test all, forni,is of traffic -control devices under actual conditions oftraffic. 

d), The city engineer, shall direct 'the location of all future traffic -control s,,Ig,ns,.,, signals and, 

markings. The city engineer shall leve t1ie duty of erecting or instafling upon, over, along or

beside anyhighway', street or alley, signs, signals and markings, or cause the sameto ble erected, 

installed or placed, in accordance with this article and, consistent with the " ManuaI onUniform

Traffic -Control Devices"' from tit e- to- tirne as may be deemed necessary to regulate or guide

traffic in. and through, the city during unusual circumstances, or situations where it is necessary to, 
after the flow of traffic on a, temporary basis to protect the heatth, life, order and security of the
city or its citizens. The city engineer shall remove Such signs, signals and markings within a

reasonable time after the unusual circumstances or situations cease to exist. 

Sec. 2. 2. Pri'ma facie evildence of authori'zed i"Installation

It shall be unlawful for any person other than the city manager or the city manager' s designee, 
acting pursuant to an. or& riance of the city, council, to install or cause to be installed any traffic - 
control, device, sign, signal or marking purporting to, direct the use of the streets or, the activities
on those streets of pedestrians, vehicles, motor vehicles or animals. It shall be proof ire. any
prosecution of a, violation of this article or any traffic ordinance of the city that any traffic - 

control device,, sign, sigi a,l r marking was actually in place on any street shall constitute. prima
fail e evidence that such device,, sign, signal or marking was installedby the city manager or the
city manager' s designee pursuant to the authority of this, article a:nd, of the ordinance directing the
installation of such device, &ign,, sig - ori a] or marking. 

Sec. 12.03. 002 Specific sPeed limits

person, shall drive or operate a, motor, vehicle on any public street or highway withi, 
the territorial limits of the city, at a greater rate of speed than 30 miles 'Pier hour unless poste

otherwise as defined in ('c) of t1us, siection. 

City of Lucas
Ordinance # 20114- 11- 00801 A miendnient t`" h apter 1, 2 T'raffic and Vehicles

Approve& November 6, 2014 - 2- 



b) No erson. shall drive, or operate a, motor vehicle on any alley within the Wrritorial limits, P

of the city at a greater rate of speed than 15 m,iles per hour unless, otherwise designated herein. 
c) 0ji the b,ereinafter designated streets.,, or, portions thereof, the seedeed. designated, herein

shall betbe prima faciemximum speed timit, and, any speed, in, excess. thereof shall be prima

facie evidence that sucb, speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is m.flawful. Such. streets, 

or portions thereo f, being more particularly describe

load Extent

West Lucas Road All portim'is west, of FM 1378, specifically

Brockdale Park Road All poi -tions, within the city, generally

FM 137 8, All portions withinthecitygeetierally

FM 3,286, All portions from FM 1378 toWinningkoff Road,, 

specifically

F"M 3286 All], poili,ons from, Winningkoff'Road, to the, eastern city
limes, specifically

FM 2 170 From, west city limits to, all, portions -west of a point 2,440
feet east of Rock Ridge Road to the western city limits, 
specca] ly east boundary of High. School

FM 2170 A1111 portions from FM 1378 to, a point 2, I'M east" of

Rock Ridge Road,, specifically

Forest Grove Road All portions, within th.e city, generally

Orr Lane All portions within the' City" generally

FM 2514 All portions within the city, generally, 

Rock, Ridge Road All portions. within the city, generally

StillSODRoad All portions within. the city, generally

ra LIN 003 1

Speed, Limit

510

50

45, 

60

510, 

55

e) In, accordance with the reconu-nendations of the city en,gineer,, the fol]",owing designated

locations, measured from centierline of roa,d,way to centerline of roadway, and, areas are declared, 

CitLucas

Ordinance ft 20 14- 11 -('.)0801 Aniendnient to Chapte'r 12 TMffil C and Vehicles

Approved. Nav'enlher 6, 2014 3



to, be school zones and the niaximunij speed limit for all, motor vehicles operated within sucli

areas, and locaions and, on suchstreets, on school days, when either a flashing warning si.,gna] is
in operation'. or wh.eil appropriate signs are iii place and conspicuous shall be as follo,ws: 

Heat- I EIementa,,iy,SehooI: 

A) FM 13 ,78, Thirty-five (351miles perhour from a, point one hundred ( 100), 
feet north of Estates Road ' to a point one hundred (' 100), feet south of

Estelle Lane-, 

B) Estelle Lane,, Twenty, (2,0) mites per hour', fi-OM a, po,,jnt twond.red ( 200) 

fbet east of FM. 1378, to a point one hundred ( 1. 00), feet west of OHara

Drive. 

f), School, days, . sthat, term is used herein,, shall 'be each Mon,day through Friday throughout
the calendar year when the school nearest the school zone is in session, and for, purposes of this, 
speed ordinance, shall include the time period betweenthe hours of 7: 00, a.m. and 5: 00 p.m. on

such days. 

g), III shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle through a, school

zone as designated and, established herein dur-ing such period,s of' time, on school days, when

there is either a, flashing warning signal in operatio,n, caution'Ing motorists to proceed w,Ith, care-, 
or,, when appropriate signs are in place and cons,picuous,, in such, a manner as to overtake and

pass another vehicle being driven in the same direction upon, the sump street within, said school
zone. 

h) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a vehicle on a public street or

highway through the school zones herein designated during the periods herein designated at a

rate of speed, 'in excess of the prinia facie maximum, speed finifts herein designated, for such, 

school zones, 

Any person violating any provision, of this section, shall be deemed guilty of a

imsderneanor and u on conviction, 'thereof shall be fined in the sum of not mores than twop
hundred dollars ($ 200.00) fr each such vlolation. 

Sec. 12, 04.002 Designated truckroutes,; defenses

b) A.11 state aild Ueral, highways and the following Iocatio,"Ils, witllin . the city are hereby
designated truck routesest, Lucas Road, alb portions west of FM 1, 37 8, specifically. 

it of'Lu,cas

Ordintance, # 2.014- 11- 00801 Aniendment to (".7hapter 12 ' rraffic and, Vehicles
Approved: Novemba 6_ 2014 - 4- 



It shall be a defense a defense to prosecution under this article if the vehicle I'S*. 
I An authorized. ernergency vehicte- I

A vehicle traveling to or frorti a tocation which is, iiot on a designated truck, route
f6r, the purpose of' provid-ing repair or, mai to ance service to, the vehicle or

loadm,g or unloading goods, wares or merchandise, provided such vehicle is, 

operated over the shortest practi,cable route, and the operator of such vehicle has

in the, operator' s inuilediate possession evidence ofthe local, destination and point
of origin. 

Sec. 12. 04.003 Slognage,; strict 11"abl"Itty

a), The city eng,lneer, or other Person designated by the city manager, in, compliance with. the

Texas Manual on, Unifom-i Traffic Coitro] Devices,, 1
0

s hereby authorized, to cause the placement
of traffic control signs, at appropriate locations to inf6rm operators of the truck routes and

through -truck zones. The absence of signagre shall not be a defense to, a prosecution under this
article. 

c) Any person vio1ating any, provisi , on of this section shall be deemed guitty of a

niIs,d,em,ear .,i,or and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in. the sum of not moi -e than. two

hundred, dollars ($ 200.00) for each such violation. 
1115

Section 2. AI] ordinances of' the City of Lucas in. conflict with the provisi,on,s of, this

Ordinance shall be,, and same are hereby, repealed, providedl, however, that all, other provisions

of said Ordi.nances are not, in conflict herewtth shall, remain in full force and, effect. 

Section, 3. Should any word, sentence,, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or, section of

this Ordinance or ofthe City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as, amended, hereby, be adjudged or

held, to be voided, or untons,titufional, the same shall not affect the vatidity of the reinaining
portions of said, Ordinances, or the City of Lu,cas, Code of Ordinances,, as amended hereby, which

shall remain in full force and eect. 

Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date ofthe Ordinance is governed, by
prior law and, the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, in effect when the offense
was con-imitted and the tomier law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

Section 5. Any person., firm or corporationi violating any of the provisions or terms of this
Ordinance sha,ll be subject to, the same penalty as provided for, in the City of Lucas Code of

Ordinances, as, amended,, and upon. conviction shall, be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum
Two I-lundred Dollars ($ 2,001) f6r each, offense, and each and, every day such, violation shall

continue shall be deemedto constitute a separate otIense. 

it,Y of Lucas
Ordinance # 2014- I 1 - 00,90 1 Ninendmen t to Chapter 112 TT"a ffic and Veh ides

Approved- Navember 6, 20,14 5



Sectibn 6., This Ordinance shall take effect innmediatelY from and after its passage and

publicatimi iti accordaiice with the provisions of the Charter of the City of' Lucas, and it is

accordingly so ordained. 

DUI' Y PASSED AND, APPROVED BY' THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
THLUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS,,, ON THIS 6 DAY OF NOVEMBER1 2044. 

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr, City Attorney, 
10- 22- 14/ 68,778) 

Rebecca Mark,1 Mayor

Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary

City of Lticas
Ordinance # 20 114- 11- 0,080 1. Amen,(.1merit to C"'hapter

Approved: November 6, 2014 6- 



Annexation

Disannexation

Code of Ordinances

Other

ORDINANCE # 2014- 11- 00801

AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 12]

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS,  TEXAS, AMENDING THE

CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 12  " TRAFFIC AND

VEHICLES" BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12.01 " GENERAL PROVISIONS" BY

DELETING SECTION 12. 01. 001  " BICYCLES AND SIMILAR VEHICLES

PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS" IN ITS ENTIRETY; BY AMENDING

ARTICLE 12.02 " TRAFFIC-CONTROL DEVICES" BY AMENDING SECTION
12.02.001 " AUTHORITY TO PLACE, ERECT AND MAINTAIN DEVICES", BY

AMENDING SECTION 12.02. 002    " PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE OF

AUTHORIZED INSTALLATION"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12.03 " SPEED

LIMITS" BY AMENDING SECTION 12.03.002 " SPECIFIC SPEED LIMITS",

BY DELETING SECTION 12. 03.003   " POSTING OF SIGNS"   IN ITS

ENTIRETY;  BY AMENDING ARTICLE 12.04  " TRUCKS AND TRUCK

ROUTES"  BY AMENDING SECTION 12.04.002  " DESIGNATED TRUCK

ROUTES;  DEFENSES",  BY AMENDING SECTION 12. 04.003  " SIGNAGE;

STRICT LIABILITY"; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING

FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO

HUNDRED DOLLARS  ($200.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS,

TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same
is, hereby amended by amending Chapter 12 " Traffic and Vehicles", to read as follows:

CHAPTER 12

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES

ARTICLE 12.01 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Sec. 12. 01. 001 Reserved

ARTICLE 12. 02 TRAFFIC-CONTROL DEVICES

Sec. 12. 02.001 Authority to place, erect and maintain devices

a)      The city engineer is authorized by the city council to place and erect such traffic-control
devices which the city engineer deems to be warranted in accordance with provisions or

City of Lucas
Ordinance# 2014- 11- 00801 Amendment to Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles

Approved: November 6, 2014 1-



requirements of the " Manual on Uniform Traffic-Control Devices" or as required by ordinances
of the city.

b)      The city engineer or the city engineer' s designee shall cause traffic-control devices that
are in place to be removed if it is determined that these devices are no longer needed for the

safety or welfare of the traveling public.

c)      The city engineer shall also make continuous studies of the movement of traffic on the
streets of the city and shall make periodic recommendations to the city manager as to necessary
regulations, practices and controls for the safe and prompt movement of traffic within the city.
The city engineer shall perform such duties as may be required by the city manager.  The city
engineer may test all forms of traffic-control devices under actual conditions of traffic.

d)      The city engineer shall direct the location of all future traffic-control signs, signals and
markings. The city engineer shall have the duty of erecting or installing upon, over, along or
beside any highway, street or alley, signs, signals and markings, or cause the same to be erected,
installed or placed in accordance with this article and consistent with the " Manual on Uniform

Traffic-Control Devices" from time-to- time as may be deemed necessary to regulate or guide
traffic in and through the city during unusual circumstances or situations where it is necessary to
alter the flow of traffic on a temporary basis to protect the health, life, order and security of the
city or its citizens. The city engineer shall remove such signs, signals and markings within a
reasonable time after the unusual circumstances or situations cease to exist.

Sec. 12. 02.002 Prima facie evidence of authorized installation

It shall be unlawful for any person other than the city manager or the city manager' s designee,
acting pursuant to an ordinance of the city council, to install or cause to be installed any traffic-
control device, sign, signal or marking purporting to direct the use of the streets or the activities
on those streets of pedestrians, vehicles, motor vehicles or animals. It shall be proof in any
prosecution of a violation of this article or any traffic ordinance of the city that any traffic-
control device, sign, signal or marking was actually in place on any street shall constitute prima
facie evidence that such device, sign, signal or marking was installed by the city manager or the
city manager' s designee pursuant to the authority of this article and of the ordinance directing the
installation of such device, sign, signal or marking.

ARTICLE 12. 03 SPEED LIMITS

Sec. 12. 03. 002 Specific speed limits

a)      No person shall drive or operate a motor vehicle on any public street or highway within
the territorial limits of the city at a greater rate of speed than 30 miles per hour unless posted
otherwise as defined in (c) of this section.

City of Lucas
Ordinance# 2014- 11- 00801 Amendment to Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles

Approved: November 6, 2014 2-



b)      No person shall drive or operate a motor vehicle on any alley within the territorial limits
of the city at a greater rate of speed than 15 miles per hour unless otherwise designated herein.
c)      On the hereinafter designated streets, or portions thereof, the speed designated herein

shall be the prima facie maximum speed limit, and any speed in excess thereof shall be prima
facie evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. Such streets,

or portions thereof, being more particularly described:

Road Extent Speed Limit

West Lucas Road All portions west of FM 1378, specifically 50

Brockdale Park Road All portions within the city, generally 40

FM 1378 All portions within the city, generally 50

FM 3286 All portions from FM 1378 to Winningkoff Road,      45

specifically

FM 3286 All portions from Winningkoff Road to the eastern city 60

limits, specifically

FM 2170 From west city limits to all portions west of a point 2,440 50

feet east of Rock Ridge Road to the western city limits,
specifically east boundary of High School

FM 2170 All portions from FM 1378 to a point 2,440 feet east of 55

Rock Ridge Road, specifically

Forest Grove Road All portions within the city, generally 40

On Lane All portions within the city, generally 40

FM 2514 All portions within the city, generally 55

Rock Ridge Road All portions within the city, generally 35

Stinson Road All portions within the city, generally 40

Winningkoff Road All portions within the city, generally 35

d)      A person commits an offense if that person operates or drives a vehicle in a school zone

in the following designated areas or on the following designated streets at a speed greater than
the speed designated by this section for that area or street or portion thereof, and any speed in
excess of the limit provided in this section shall be prima facie evidence that the speed is not
reasonable nor prudent and is unlawful. Based on recommendations of the traffic engineer,

determined based on engineering and traffic surveys, the city council shall designate school
zones with appropriate street markings, warnings or signs, which street markings, warnings or

signs shall be placed at the school zones by the traffic engineer. The speed limit designated for
school zones shall be effective only at times when appropriate flashing warnings and/ or signs
advising motorists of the speed limit are placed in conspicuous places.

City of Lucas
Ordinance# 2014- 11- 00801 Amendment to Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles

Approved: November 6, 2014 3-



e)      In accordance with the recommendations of the city engineer, the following designated
locations, measured from centerline of roadway to centerline of roadway, and areas are declared
to be school zones and the maximum speed limit for all motor vehicles operated within such

areas and locations and on such streets on school days, when either a flashing warning signal is
in operation, or when appropriate signs are in place and conspicuous shall be as follows:

1)      Hart Elementary School:

A)     FM 1378, Thirty-five (35) miles per hour, from a point one hundred ( 100)
feet north of Estates Road to a point one hundred ( 100) feet south of

Estelle Lane;

B)     Estelle Lane, Twenty (20) miles per hour, from a point two hundred ( 200)
feet east of FM 1378 to a point one hundred ( 100) feet west of O'Hara

Drive.

f)       School days, as that term is used herein, shall be each Monday through Friday throughout
the calendar year when the school nearest the school zone is in session, and for purposes of this

speed ordinance, shall include the time period between the hours of 7: 00 a.m. and 5: 00 p.m. on
such days.

g)      It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle through a school
zone as designated and established herein during such periods of time, on school days, when
there is either a flashing warning signal in operation cautioning motorists to proceed with care;
or, when appropriate signs are in place and conspicuous, in such a manner as to overtake and

pass another vehicle being driven in the same direction upon the same street within said school
zone.

h)      It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a vehicle on a public street or
highway through the school zones herein designated during the periods herein designated at a
rate of speed in excess of the prima facie maximum speed limits herein designated for such

school zones.

i)       Any person violating any provision of this section shall be deemed guilty of a
misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in the sum of not more than two

hundred dollars ($200.00) for each such violation.

ARTICLE 12. 04 TRUCKS AND TRUCK ROUTES

Sec. 12. 04. 002 Designated truck routes; defenses

City of Lucas
Ordinance# 2014- 11- 00801 Amendment to Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles

Approved: November 6, 2014 4-



b)      All state and federal highways and the following locations within the city are hereby
designated truck routes:  West Lucas Road, all portions west of FM 1378, specifically.

c)      It shall be a defense a defense to prosecution under this article if the vehicle is:

1)      An authorized emergency vehicle;

6)      A vehicle traveling to or from a location which is not on a designated truck route
for the purpose of providing repair or maintenance service to the vehicle or
loading or unloading goods, wares or merchandise, provided such vehicle is
operated over the shortest practicable route, and the operator of such vehicle has

in the operator' s immediate possession evidence of the local destination and point

of origin.

Sec. 12. 04.003 Signage; strict liability

a)      The city engineer, or other person designated by the city manager, in compliance with the
Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, is hereby authorized to cause the placement
of traffic control signs at appropriate locations to inform operators of the truck routes and

through- truck zones. The absence of signage shall not be a defense to a prosecution under this

article.

c)      Any person violating any provision of this section shall be deemed guilty of a
misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in the sum of not more than two

hundred dollars ($200.00) for each such violation."

Section 2.      All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3.      Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of
this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining

portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which
shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4.      An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose.

Section 5.      Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the City of Lucas Code of
Ordinances, as amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum

City of Lucas
Ordinance# 2014- 11- 00801 Amendment to Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles

Approved: November 6, 2014 5-



of Two Hundred Dollars ($ 200) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

Section 6.      This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is
accordingly so ordained.

DULY PASSE
s

AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

LUCAS, C* tj TY, TEXAS, ON THIS 6T1 DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014.

ms'

s APPROVED:

SEAL

Rebecc Mark, Mayor

unmtst

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATT T:

Jo p J.     rfi a Jr.,   ity Attorney Je_   fer Fairs of TRMC, Administrative Assistant
10- 22- 4/ 68778)

City of Lucas
Ordinance# 2014- 11- 00801 Amendment to Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles

Approved: November 6, 2014 6-



There was no one present to speak FOR/AGAINST this item. 

The Public Hearing was close at 7: 31 p.m. 

MOTION: Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to approve a

change in from AO to C ( Commercial Business) for annexed

tract of land, 30 acresf, situated in the Ann S. Hurt Survey, 
Abstract No. 428 and the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 
538 and being all of a tract of land conveyed to Lovejoy
Independent School District as recorded in volume 2042- 

0137893 of the Deed of Records Collin County, Texas, more

commonly known as Willow Springs Middle School located at

I 14 1 W. Lucas Road. Councilmember Philip Lawrence

seconded the Motion. Motion carried. Vote: 7- 0. 

5) A change in zoning from R-2 to C ( commercial business) for a parcel of land, 
0.9723 acres, situated in the Jas Grayum Survey, Abstract No. A0354, Tract

5Q, more commonly known as 1$ 20 Country Club. 

a) Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn. 
b) Conduct 2nd Public Hearing ( the

1st Public Hearing was held on

November 6, 2014, 6-.00 p.m. by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

c) Discuss and consider

Mayor Rebecca Mark pulled this item from the agenda the Planning and

Zoning Commission denied this item during the November 6t'' 

Planning and

Zoning meeting. 

b) Consider the proposed regulations regarding the installation of fences, 

permitting offences, requirements for fences, and style of fences. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark pulled this item from the agenda the Planning and

Zoning Commission tabled this item during the November 6th

Planning and

Zoning meeting until the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

7) Consider Ordinance #2014- 11- 00801 concerning proposed changes to the
City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles. 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS Page 4 of 6
City Council Minutes
November 6, 2014



MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve Ordinance
2014- 114- 00801 amending the City of Lucas Code of

Ordinance, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles with the only
amendment correcting the spelling ofHart Elementary. Mayor

Pro Tem Kathleen Peele seconded the Motion. Motion carried. 
Vote: 7- 0. 

8) Consider providing feedback to staff regarding the 2014 Founder' s Day
event, and set a date for the 2015 Founder' s Day event. 

MOTION: Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to set the date of

October 24, 2015 for the City of Lucas' Founder' s Day event. 

Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion. Motion
carried. Vote: 7- 0. 

9) Consider the appointment of Randy Barnes to serve on the Board of

Adjustments for a two ( 2) year term, term being November 1, 2014 through
October 3 1, 2016. 

MOTION: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to appoint

Randy Barnes to serve on the Board of Adjustments for a two
2) year term, fierm being November 1, 2014 through October

3 1, 2016. Councilmember Jim 01k seconded the Motion. 

Motion carried. Vote: 7-0. 

Executive Session

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 7: 58 p.m. 

10} The City Council pursuant to Section 551. 074( a)( 1) of the Texas
Government Code ( Personnel Matters) may convene into Executive Session
to deliberate the employment, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal
of the City Secretary. 

Regular Agenda

The City Council reconvened into Regular Session at 9: 03 p.m. 

11) Take any action as necessary as a result of the Executive Session. 

CITE` OF LUCAS, TEXAPage 5 of
City Council Minutes
November 6, 2014













Street Date
Volume

Vehicles Per Day
Location

Blondy Jhune Road May 2014 483 Eastbound only West of Winningkoff Rd

Blondy Jhune Road October 2015 1087 East of Mary Lee Ln

Blondy Jhune Road October 2015 999 West of Winningkoff Rd

Blondy Jhune Road October 2015 1395 East of Country Club Rd

Brockdale Park Road August 2013 208 South of E Lucas Rd

Estates Parkway February 2014 15066 At Rock Ridge Rd

Estelle Lane March 2017 178 w/o School At Wendy Lane AM 3hr Peak

Estelle Lane March 2017 362 w/School At Wendy Lane AM 3hr Peak

Lewis Lane August 2013 348 South of W Lucas Rd

Lewis Lane April 2017 946 South of W Lucas Rd

Rock Ridge Road February 2014 1581 North of Estates Pkwy

Stinson Road August 2013 775 North of Highland Dr

Winningkoff Road May 2014 871 At Blondy Jhune Rd

Winningkoff Road May 2014 962 North of E Lucas Rd

Winningkoff Road October 2015 1079 North of E Lucas Rd



City of Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

April 6, 2017 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road-Lucas Texas 
Minutes 

Call to Order 

Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tern Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Attorney Julie Dosher 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director/ City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens 

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present. Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence 
their cell phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Citizen Input 

1. Citizen Input. 

Angelique DeWitt, 1105 Ramsey, Lucas spoke in opposition to the stop sign removal at Estelle and 
Wendy Lane noting her concerns related to speeding traffic and additional accidents that could 
occur. 

Gina Ferrall, 980 Wendy Lane, spoke in opposition to removal of the stop sign at Estelle and 
Wendy Lane and submitted to the City Council a detailed letter outlining her concerns and that 
further studies were needed to determine if removing the sign was warranted. 

Robin Wells, 670 Wendy Lane, spoke in opposition to removal of the stop at Estelle and Wendy 
Lane. 

Pedro and Amber Silverio, 251 E. Blondy Jhune Road, spoke regarding concerns related to the 
development next to their property under construction that was causing drainage issues on their 
property, debris on site, a berm that had been constructed higher than was depicted on the approved 
site plan and culvert piping that had not been constructed according to their drainage plan. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilboum noted that he would contact Mr. and Mrs. Silverio to 
update them on plans for the property and address any concerns. 

llP a ge C i t y Cou n c i l 
Ap r i l 6. 2017 



Mayor Olk asked that an item be placed on a future agenda regarding stop signs so that the City 
Council may discuss the item further. 

Community Interest 

2. Community Interest Items. 

A. Presentation of Proclamation to Deputy Brent Collins of the Collin County 
Sherriff's office honoring his extraordinary efforts. 

Mayor Olk presented the Proclamation to Deputy Collins and thanked him for his extraordinary 
efforts in protecting the citizens of Lucas. 

B. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and 
provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney. 

Mayor Olk and Councilmember Fisher attended a meeting hosted by the Regional Transportation 
Council in McKinney regarding the growth and transportation issues in Collin County. Mayor Olk 
stated that RTC was proposing to widen some roadways within the County and is working with 
surrounding cities to determine the best options for each city. 

Councilmember Fisher noted that Senate Bill 17 related to franchise taxes was a bill that she was 
currently following this legislative session. 

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 

3. Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council will 
convene into Executive Session to conduct an interview for appointment 
consideration to the Board of Adjustment. 

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 7:21 pm. 

4. Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the 
Executive Session. 

The City Council reconvened into open session at 7:34 pm. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Mqyor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to appoint 
James Foster as an alternate member to the Board of Acfjustment. The motion passed unanimous!J 
by a 6 to 0 vote. 

Consent Agenda 

5. Approval of the minutes of the March 16, 2017 City Council meeting. 

6. Approval of Resolution R 2017-04-00458 authorizing the Mayor to enter into an 
interlocal agreement between the City of Lucas and the North Central Texas Council 
of Governments (NCTCOG) for 911 data for emergency service notifications. 

2 jPag e Ci t y Counc il 
Ap 1 il 6. 20 1 7 



MOTION· A motion was made ry MqJ1or Pro Tem Peele, seconded ry Cou11ci/member Duke to app1vve the 
Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimous!J ry a 6 to 0 vole. 

Public Hearing 

7. Hold a public hearing and consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00853 amending the 
City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14 Zoning, Article 14.03, Division 15 titled 
"Schedule of Uses" by removing self-storage as a permitted use within the Village 
Center (VC) zoning district. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn recommended that self-storage be removed as an 
allowable use within the Village Center zoning district. 

Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:38pm, there being no one wishing to speak, the public 
hearing was closed. 

MOTION· A motion was made ry Mqyor Pro Tem Peele, seconded ry Councilmember Lawrence to adopt 
Ordinance 2017-04-00853 amending the Ciry of Lucas Code oJOrdi11a11ces, Chapter 14 Zoning, 
Article 14.03, Division 15 titled ''Schedule of Uses" ry -removing se!f-storage as a permitted use 
within the Village Center zoning district. The motion passed unanimous/y ry a 6 to 0 vote. 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00852 amend the 
existing specific use permit for Lucas Self Storage, a self-storage facility located at 575 
Angel Parkway, on a parcel of land containing 4.417 acres and expanding their facility 
by including an additional 2. 963-acre parcel, adding additional buildings and caretaker 
living facilities. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation discussing details of the existing 
facility and proposed amendments. 

Mayor Pro Tern Peele discussed the need for additional units given the existing facility was not yet 
completed, and Councilmember Fisher expressed concern regarding the impact on drainage the 
existing facility has had on surrounding residential properties. 

Mr. Feagin, the applicant for Lucas Self Storage, came forward and discussed the need for additional 
storage based on homes located within a 3-mile radius of the facility, and the benefit of having an 
onsite manager that provide additional security for the facility. 

Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:51pm and called the following individuals forward that 
requested to speak: 

The following individuals came forward to speak in opposition to the request discussing drainage 
issues/ erosion they were having on their property due to the self-storage development: 

• Anita Ahmadi, 2540 McGarity 
• Raymond Helton, 2350 McGarity 
• Robin Ahmadi, 2540 McGarity 

• Javier Vega, 405 Pennington 
• Gui Khan, 400 Pennington 

31P age C it y Co u nc il 
A p r il 6 . 20 1 7 



• Pedro Silverio, 251 E. Blondy Jhune Road asked the Cow1Cil to have an engineer review the 
drainage on the self-storage site. 

Mayor Olk closed the public hearing at 8:05 pm. 

The City Council discussed the best use for the property, the need for additional self-storage units 
and what benefit adding additional units would provide for the City. The Council also wanted to 
address drainage concerns with the existing self-storage development. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Cou11cilmember Fisher, seconded by Cou11ci/me111ber Lawrence lo de1ry the 
request to amend the e>dsting specific 11se pmnit for Lucas S e!fS torage, located at 5 7 5 Angel 
Parkwqy. The motion lo detry passed 1111a11imo11s/y by a 6 to 0 vote. 

Regular Agenda 

9. Consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00851 amending Chapter 3 of the City of Lucas 
Code of Ordinances by adopting a Building and Standards Commission for the 
purposes of hearing cases involving the enforcement of municipal ordinances 
including substandard buildings. 

Mayor Olk explained that Chapter 54 of the Texas Local Government Code provides the ability for 
the City to implement a process that would allow for quasi-judicial enforcement of health and safety 
ordinances. He noted that the proposed ordinance appoints the Zoning Board of Adjustment to 
serve as the Building and Standards Commission and they would hear cases brought forward by City 
Staff. 

City Attorney Julie Dosher discussed the authority of the Building and Standards Commission, the 
process in which cases would be brought forward to the Commission and the appeal process. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Mqyor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to adopt Ordinance 
2017-04-00851 of the Ciry Council of the Ciry of Lucas, amending the Code of Ordinances by 
amending Chapter 3 titled ''Butfding Regulations" by adding a new mticle 3.20 titled ''Building and 
Standards Commission" providing provisions for detennining cases concerning alleged violations of 
ordinances including substandard buildings;providingfor the powers and duties of the Building and 
Standards Commission that are consistent with State law;providingfor provisions regarding notice of 
hearings before the Building and Standards Commission and providi11gprovisio11s for the appeal 
process. The motion passed unanimous/y by a 6 to 0 vote. 

10. Consider nomination of City Councilmember(s) to a Request for Qualifications 
selection committee for the evaluation of professional engineering services and 
appointment by the Mayor to said committee. 

Mayor Olk and Council appointed Councilmember Duke to the Request for Qualifications Selection 
Committee. 

4 Jl'a ge Cit y C o un c il 
A pril 6. 20 1 7 



11. Consider setting a time to begin the April 20, 2017 Fire Control Prevention and EMS 
District meeting and the City Council meeting/Mid-Year Budget review meeting. 

The City Council was in agreement to begin the April 20, 2017 Fire Control Prevention and EMS 
District meeting and City Council meeting at 6:30 pm. 

12. Consider and authorize the City Manager to proceed with a professional services 
contract with BW2 Engineers, Inc. in the amount not to exceed of $185,000 for the design 
of the Single Pressure Plane Facilities (water tower, pressure regulating valves, Wiltshire 
connections, and pump house). 

MOTION· A motion was made fry Councilme!llber Fisher, seconded fD1 Mqyor Pro Tem Peele to authorize the 
Ci(J1 Manager to proceed with a professional sm1ices contract with B W2 Engineers, Inc. in the amount 
no/ to exceed of $185,000 for the design of the Single Pressure Plane Facilities including the water 
to1ver, pressure regulating valves, Wiltshire connections, and pump house. The motion passed 
unanimous!J fry a 6 to 0 vote. 

13. Consider approving the entire common boundary with the City of Parker and direct the 
City Manager to draft a new ordinance that defines the entire boundary with the City of 
Parker and repeals any previous such ordinances and agreements. 

Public Works Director/City E ngineer Stanton Foerster discussed with the Council clarifying the City 
of Lucas/City of Parker boundary lines in the area of the 800-foot section from the north side of 5480 
Lewis Lane to the midpoint of 5544 Lewis Lane and the area near Bois D'arc Lane. 

The City Council was in agreement to direct the City Manager to draft a new ordinance/ agreement 
with the City of Parker defining the following boundaries: 

• Centerline of Parker Road 

• East right-of-way line of Lewis Lane 

• South, East, North side of the Newman tract 

• West right-of-way line of Lewis Lane 

• West and north side of the Hendrix tract 

• West right-of-way line of Lewis Lane 
• South right-of-way line of W. Lucas Road 

14. Discussion regarding the provision of law enforcement services by the Collin County 
Sheriffs Office. 

Mayor Olk stated that he had asked the City Manager to research options related to law enforcement 
services such as partnering with other cities, cost associated with the City having its own police 
department, and the option of a public safety department. 

City Manager Joni Clarke explained her findings noting that the cost to start the City's own police 
department would cost approximately $1.5 to $2 million and inquiries were made to the City of 
Allen regarding partnering for law enforcement services as well. Ms. Clarke stated that if the City 
considered starting its own public safety department, this would take substantial time. Ms. Clarke 
noted that the best option at this time, would be to continue partnering with Collin County for law 

s IP a g e City Co u ncil 
A pril 6. 20 1 7 



enforcement services. However, Ms. Clarke noted that Collin County Sheriffs Office was 
maintaining that Lucas would need to fund an additional two deputies and vehicles. 

Mayor Pro Tem Peele expressed her concern that the City was being requested to provide additional 
funding for deputies that would not be dedicated to Lucas. 

The City Council discussed the cost associated with starting their own police department compared 
to the sen·ices provided as part of the law enforcement partnership with the Collin County Sheriffs 
Office. 

The City Council directed the City Manager to continue negotiating on behalf of the City with the 
Sheriff's Office and to receive written clarification regarding how the two additional deputies funded 
by the City of Lucas would be allocated, how the deputies would cover the City of Lucas and 
surrounding cities, respond to calls for assistance, and general operational matters. 

15. Consider approving Resolution R-2017-04-00459 authorizing an interlocal agreement 
with Collin County, Texas concerning the acquisition of real property needed to 
realign and improve sections of existing Lucas Road (FM 1378) and Southview Drive 
(FM 3286) at or adjacent to their intersection in the City of Lucas, Collin County, 
Texas, and appropriating funds from the FY 16/17 General Fund Reserves. 

Councilmember Fisher explained that the improvements that will be made to this intersection would 
positively impact the surrounding neighborhood and existing cut-through traffic. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Mqyor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to approve 
Resolution R-2017-04-00459 authorizing an interlocal agreement with Collin Coun!J, Texas 
concerning the acquisition of real proper!) needed to realign and improve sections of existing L.ucas 
Road (FM 1378) and Southview D1ive (FM 3286) at oraqjacent to their intersection in the Ci!J 
of Lucas, Collin Coun!J, Texas, and appropriatingfunds from the FY 16 / 17 General Fund 
Reserves. The motion passed unanimous!J by a 6 to 0 vote. 

16. Consider accepting the resignation of Parks and Open Space Board Member Amber 
Patteson and promote Alternate Member 1 and 2 positions. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Councilmember Banry, seconded by Councilmember Fisher to accept the 
resignation of Parks Board Member Amber Patteson and promote Alternate Member 1, Bill 
Esposito to a Regular Member position and promote Altemate Member 2, Joanne Doucet to the 
Alternate Member 1 position. The motion passed unanimous!J by a 6 to 0 vote. 

17. Discuss and finalize the Streets System section of the Capital Improvement Plan. 

Mayor O lk asked that the At-A-Glance portion of the CIP be updated to change the priority from 
high to routine for Item No. 7, and to provide project detail for Items 20 and 21 related to 
maintenance of multiple streets. 

The City Council asked that the CIP be updated with the changes proposed and brought back to the 
Council for consideration. 

61P agc Ci t ) Coun c i l 
Ap1il 6. 201 7 



18. Consider authorizing the City Manager to purchase 25 Hydro-Guard HG-6 Hydrant 
Automatic Flushing Units with test ports through the BuyBoard Competitive 
Purchasing (501-15) in an amount not to exceed $59,396.55 plus shipping using Account 
21-8210-490-123 Dead End Connections funds. 

MOTION· A motion was made fry CouncilmetJJber ]...£11v1-ence, seconded fry Councilmember Duke to a11th01ize 
the Ciry Manager to purchase 25 Hydro-Guard HG-6 Hydrant A11to!Jlatic Flushing Units with 
test ports thro11gh the BttyBoard Competitive P11rchasing in an amo1111t 110! to exceed $59,396.55 
plus shipping usingAcco11nt 2 1-8210-490-123 Dead End Connections fimds. The motio11 passed 
u11a11itJJ011sfy l?J1 a 6 to 0 vole. 

19. Adjournment. 

MOTION· 

APPROVED: 

A !Jlotion was made fry Mqyor Olk, seconded fry Council!Jlember Lawrence to adjo11m the meeting 
at 9:3 1 p!Jl. The motion passed rmanimous/y fry a 6 to 0 vote. 

JUn~ 

71Pa gc 

''''"""""''' '!'!.,,,'''of LUC ,,,,,,,,, 
"' ~ ......... 415' ~ 

,.$' ~ ••• •• • .> ~~ 
~CJ~.. ·. ~~~ ... . . ., 
~ .. ·. ~~ 
~ f S~4L\~~ - . . -- . . -
; ~ ! i 
-; ••• ... $' 
~ ·.. ..· ~ 
~ .. .. ~ 
~ ····· .... ~ .... .,,,, ....._ ,, ... 1,,, ........- ,,,,, 

,,,,,. ,. .. ""''' 

Ctt ) Co uncil 
A p11I 6 . 2 01 7 



City of Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

April 6, 2017 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road-Lucas Texas 
Minutes 

Call to Order 

Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tern Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Attorney Julie Dosher 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director/ City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens 

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present. Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence 
their cell phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Citizen Input 

1. Citizen Input. 

Angelique DeWitt, 1105 Ramsey, Lucas spoke in opposition to the stop sign removal at Estelle and 
Wendy Lane noting her concerns related to speeding traffic and additional accidents that could 
occur. 

Gina Ferrall, 980 Wendy Lane, spoke in opposition to removal of the stop sign at Estelle and 
Wendy Lane and submitted to the City Council a detailed letter outlining her concerns and that 
further studies were needed to determine if removing the sign was warranted. 

Robin Wells, 670 Wendy Lane, spoke in opposition to removal of the stop at Estelle and Wendy 
Lane. 

Pedro and Amber Silverio, 251 E. Blondy Jhune Road, spoke regarding concerns related to the 
development next to their property under construction that was causing drainage issues on their 
property, debris on site, a berm that had been constructed higher than was depicted on the approved 
site plan and culvert piping that had not been constructed according to their drainage plan. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilboum noted that he would contact Mr. and Mrs. Silverio to 
update them on plans for the property and address any concerns. 

llP a ge C i t y Cou n c i l 
Ap r i l 6. 2017 



Mayor Olk asked that an item be placed on a future agenda regarding stop signs so that the City 
Council may discuss the item further. 

Community Interest 

2. Community Interest Items. 

A. Presentation of Proclamation to Deputy Brent Collins of the Collin County 
Sherriff's office honoring his extraordinary efforts. 

Mayor Olk presented the Proclamation to Deputy Collins and thanked him for his extraordinary 
efforts in protecting the citizens of Lucas. 

B. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and 
provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney. 

Mayor Olk and Councilmember Fisher attended a meeting hosted by the Regional Transportation 
Council in McKinney regarding the growth and transportation issues in Collin County. Mayor Olk 
stated that RTC was proposing to widen some roadways within the County and is working with 
surrounding cities to determine the best options for each city. 

Councilmember Fisher noted that Senate Bill 17 related to franchise taxes was a bill that she was 
currently following this legislative session. 

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 

3. Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council will 
convene into Executive Session to conduct an interview for appointment 
consideration to the Board of Adjustment. 

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 7:21 pm. 

4. Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the 
Executive Session. 

The City Council reconvened into open session at 7:34 pm. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Mqyor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to appoint 
James Foster as an alternate member to the Board of Acfjustment. The motion passed unanimous!J 
by a 6 to 0 vote. 

Consent Agenda 

5. Approval of the minutes of the March 16, 2017 City Council meeting. 

6. Approval of Resolution R 2017-04-00458 authorizing the Mayor to enter into an 
interlocal agreement between the City of Lucas and the North Central Texas Council 
of Governments (NCTCOG) for 911 data for emergency service notifications. 

2 jPag e Ci t y Counc il 
Ap 1 il 6. 20 1 7 



MOTION· A motion was made ry MqJ1or Pro Tem Peele, seconded ry Cou11ci/member Duke to app1vve the 
Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimous!J ry a 6 to 0 vole. 

Public Hearing 

7. Hold a public hearing and consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00853 amending the 
City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14 Zoning, Article 14.03, Division 15 titled 
"Schedule of Uses" by removing self-storage as a permitted use within the Village 
Center (VC) zoning district. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn recommended that self-storage be removed as an 
allowable use within the Village Center zoning district. 

Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:38pm, there being no one wishing to speak, the public 
hearing was closed. 

MOTION· A motion was made ry Mqyor Pro Tem Peele, seconded ry Councilmember Lawrence to adopt 
Ordinance 2017-04-00853 amending the Ciry of Lucas Code oJOrdi11a11ces, Chapter 14 Zoning, 
Article 14.03, Division 15 titled ''Schedule of Uses" ry -removing se!f-storage as a permitted use 
within the Village Center zoning district. The motion passed unanimous/y ry a 6 to 0 vote. 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00852 amend the 
existing specific use permit for Lucas Self Storage, a self-storage facility located at 575 
Angel Parkway, on a parcel of land containing 4.417 acres and expanding their facility 
by including an additional 2. 963-acre parcel, adding additional buildings and caretaker 
living facilities. 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation discussing details of the existing 
facility and proposed amendments. 

Mayor Pro Tern Peele discussed the need for additional units given the existing facility was not yet 
completed, and Councilmember Fisher expressed concern regarding the impact on drainage the 
existing facility has had on surrounding residential properties. 

Mr. Feagin, the applicant for Lucas Self Storage, came forward and discussed the need for additional 
storage based on homes located within a 3-mile radius of the facility, and the benefit of having an 
onsite manager that provide additional security for the facility. 

Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:51pm and called the following individuals forward that 
requested to speak: 

The following individuals came forward to speak in opposition to the request discussing drainage 
issues/ erosion they were having on their property due to the self-storage development: 

• Anita Ahmadi, 2540 McGarity 
• Raymond Helton, 2350 McGarity 
• Robin Ahmadi, 2540 McGarity 

• Javier Vega, 405 Pennington 
• Gui Khan, 400 Pennington 

31P age C it y Co u nc il 
A p r il 6 . 20 1 7 



• Pedro Silverio, 251 E. Blondy Jhune Road asked the Cow1Cil to have an engineer review the 
drainage on the self-storage site. 

Mayor Olk closed the public hearing at 8:05 pm. 

The City Council discussed the best use for the property, the need for additional self-storage units 
and what benefit adding additional units would provide for the City. The Council also wanted to 
address drainage concerns with the existing self-storage development. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Cou11cilmember Fisher, seconded by Cou11ci/me111ber Lawrence lo de1ry the 
request to amend the e>dsting specific 11se pmnit for Lucas S e!fS torage, located at 5 7 5 Angel 
Parkwqy. The motion lo detry passed 1111a11imo11s/y by a 6 to 0 vote. 

Regular Agenda 

9. Consider adopting Ordinance 2017-04-00851 amending Chapter 3 of the City of Lucas 
Code of Ordinances by adopting a Building and Standards Commission for the 
purposes of hearing cases involving the enforcement of municipal ordinances 
including substandard buildings. 

Mayor Olk explained that Chapter 54 of the Texas Local Government Code provides the ability for 
the City to implement a process that would allow for quasi-judicial enforcement of health and safety 
ordinances. He noted that the proposed ordinance appoints the Zoning Board of Adjustment to 
serve as the Building and Standards Commission and they would hear cases brought forward by City 
Staff. 

City Attorney Julie Dosher discussed the authority of the Building and Standards Commission, the 
process in which cases would be brought forward to the Commission and the appeal process. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Mqyor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to adopt Ordinance 
2017-04-00851 of the Ciry Council of the Ciry of Lucas, amending the Code of Ordinances by 
amending Chapter 3 titled ''Butfding Regulations" by adding a new mticle 3.20 titled ''Building and 
Standards Commission" providing provisions for detennining cases concerning alleged violations of 
ordinances including substandard buildings;providingfor the powers and duties of the Building and 
Standards Commission that are consistent with State law;providingfor provisions regarding notice of 
hearings before the Building and Standards Commission and providi11gprovisio11s for the appeal 
process. The motion passed unanimous/y by a 6 to 0 vote. 

10. Consider nomination of City Councilmember(s) to a Request for Qualifications 
selection committee for the evaluation of professional engineering services and 
appointment by the Mayor to said committee. 

Mayor Olk and Council appointed Councilmember Duke to the Request for Qualifications Selection 
Committee. 

4 Jl'a ge Cit y C o un c il 
A pril 6. 20 1 7 



11. Consider setting a time to begin the April 20, 2017 Fire Control Prevention and EMS 
District meeting and the City Council meeting/Mid-Year Budget review meeting. 

The City Council was in agreement to begin the April 20, 2017 Fire Control Prevention and EMS 
District meeting and City Council meeting at 6:30 pm. 

12. Consider and authorize the City Manager to proceed with a professional services 
contract with BW2 Engineers, Inc. in the amount not to exceed of $185,000 for the design 
of the Single Pressure Plane Facilities (water tower, pressure regulating valves, Wiltshire 
connections, and pump house). 

MOTION· A motion was made fry Councilme!llber Fisher, seconded fD1 Mqyor Pro Tem Peele to authorize the 
Ci(J1 Manager to proceed with a professional sm1ices contract with B W2 Engineers, Inc. in the amount 
no/ to exceed of $185,000 for the design of the Single Pressure Plane Facilities including the water 
to1ver, pressure regulating valves, Wiltshire connections, and pump house. The motion passed 
unanimous!J fry a 6 to 0 vote. 

13. Consider approving the entire common boundary with the City of Parker and direct the 
City Manager to draft a new ordinance that defines the entire boundary with the City of 
Parker and repeals any previous such ordinances and agreements. 

Public Works Director/City E ngineer Stanton Foerster discussed with the Council clarifying the City 
of Lucas/City of Parker boundary lines in the area of the 800-foot section from the north side of 5480 
Lewis Lane to the midpoint of 5544 Lewis Lane and the area near Bois D'arc Lane. 

The City Council was in agreement to direct the City Manager to draft a new ordinance/ agreement 
with the City of Parker defining the following boundaries: 

• Centerline of Parker Road 

• East right-of-way line of Lewis Lane 

• South, East, North side of the Newman tract 

• West right-of-way line of Lewis Lane 

• West and north side of the Hendrix tract 

• West right-of-way line of Lewis Lane 
• South right-of-way line of W. Lucas Road 

14. Discussion regarding the provision of law enforcement services by the Collin County 
Sheriffs Office. 

Mayor Olk stated that he had asked the City Manager to research options related to law enforcement 
services such as partnering with other cities, cost associated with the City having its own police 
department, and the option of a public safety department. 

City Manager Joni Clarke explained her findings noting that the cost to start the City's own police 
department would cost approximately $1.5 to $2 million and inquiries were made to the City of 
Allen regarding partnering for law enforcement services as well. Ms. Clarke stated that if the City 
considered starting its own public safety department, this would take substantial time. Ms. Clarke 
noted that the best option at this time, would be to continue partnering with Collin County for law 

s IP a g e City Co u ncil 
A pril 6. 20 1 7 



enforcement services. However, Ms. Clarke noted that Collin County Sheriffs Office was 
maintaining that Lucas would need to fund an additional two deputies and vehicles. 

Mayor Pro Tem Peele expressed her concern that the City was being requested to provide additional 
funding for deputies that would not be dedicated to Lucas. 

The City Council discussed the cost associated with starting their own police department compared 
to the sen·ices provided as part of the law enforcement partnership with the Collin County Sheriffs 
Office. 

The City Council directed the City Manager to continue negotiating on behalf of the City with the 
Sheriff's Office and to receive written clarification regarding how the two additional deputies funded 
by the City of Lucas would be allocated, how the deputies would cover the City of Lucas and 
surrounding cities, respond to calls for assistance, and general operational matters. 

15. Consider approving Resolution R-2017-04-00459 authorizing an interlocal agreement 
with Collin County, Texas concerning the acquisition of real property needed to 
realign and improve sections of existing Lucas Road (FM 1378) and Southview Drive 
(FM 3286) at or adjacent to their intersection in the City of Lucas, Collin County, 
Texas, and appropriating funds from the FY 16/17 General Fund Reserves. 

Councilmember Fisher explained that the improvements that will be made to this intersection would 
positively impact the surrounding neighborhood and existing cut-through traffic. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Mqyor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to approve 
Resolution R-2017-04-00459 authorizing an interlocal agreement with Collin Coun!J, Texas 
concerning the acquisition of real proper!) needed to realign and improve sections of existing L.ucas 
Road (FM 1378) and Southview D1ive (FM 3286) at oraqjacent to their intersection in the Ci!J 
of Lucas, Collin Coun!J, Texas, and appropriatingfunds from the FY 16 / 17 General Fund 
Reserves. The motion passed unanimous!J by a 6 to 0 vote. 

16. Consider accepting the resignation of Parks and Open Space Board Member Amber 
Patteson and promote Alternate Member 1 and 2 positions. 

MOTION· A motion was made by Councilmember Banry, seconded by Councilmember Fisher to accept the 
resignation of Parks Board Member Amber Patteson and promote Alternate Member 1, Bill 
Esposito to a Regular Member position and promote Altemate Member 2, Joanne Doucet to the 
Alternate Member 1 position. The motion passed unanimous!J by a 6 to 0 vote. 

17. Discuss and finalize the Streets System section of the Capital Improvement Plan. 

Mayor O lk asked that the At-A-Glance portion of the CIP be updated to change the priority from 
high to routine for Item No. 7, and to provide project detail for Items 20 and 21 related to 
maintenance of multiple streets. 

The City Council asked that the CIP be updated with the changes proposed and brought back to the 
Council for consideration. 

61P agc Ci t ) Coun c i l 
Ap1il 6. 201 7 



18. Consider authorizing the City Manager to purchase 25 Hydro-Guard HG-6 Hydrant 
Automatic Flushing Units with test ports through the BuyBoard Competitive 
Purchasing (501-15) in an amount not to exceed $59,396.55 plus shipping using Account 
21-8210-490-123 Dead End Connections funds. 

MOTION· A motion was made fry CouncilmetJJber ]...£11v1-ence, seconded fry Councilmember Duke to a11th01ize 
the Ciry Manager to purchase 25 Hydro-Guard HG-6 Hydrant A11to!Jlatic Flushing Units with 
test ports thro11gh the BttyBoard Competitive P11rchasing in an amo1111t 110! to exceed $59,396.55 
plus shipping usingAcco11nt 2 1-8210-490-123 Dead End Connections fimds. The motio11 passed 
u11a11itJJ011sfy l?J1 a 6 to 0 vole. 

19. Adjournment. 

MOTION· 

APPROVED: 

A !Jlotion was made fry Mqyor Olk, seconded fry Council!Jlember Lawrence to adjo11m the meeting 
at 9:3 1 p!Jl. The motion passed rmanimous/y fry a 6 to 0 vote. 

JUn~ 

71Pa gc 

''''"""""''' '!'!.,,,'''of LUC ,,,,,,,,, 
"' ~ ......... 415' ~ 

,.$' ~ ••• •• • .> ~~ 
~CJ~.. ·. ~~~ ... . . ., 
~ .. ·. ~~ 
~ f S~4L\~~ - . . -- . . -
; ~ ! i 
-; ••• ... $' 
~ ·.. ..· ~ 
~ .. .. ~ 
~ ····· .... ~ .... .,,,, ....._ ,, ... 1,,, ........- ,,,,, 

,,,,,. ,. .. ""''' 

Ctt ) Co uncil 
A p11I 6 . 2 01 7 



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: City Manager Joni Clarke  

Agenda Item:  
 
Update by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn regarding the water meter replacement 
program and provide guidance to staff. 
 
Background Information: 
 
The City Manager received an inquiry regarding the status of the water meter replacement 
program and requested that Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn provide an update to 
the City Council. 
 
On January 19, 2017, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute a contract with 
HD Supply to purchase AMR Neptune Water meters in the amount not to exceed $629,860. 
 
On February 2, 2017, the City Council appropriated $150,000 to provide a total budget of 
$250,000 to implement phase one of the water meter replacement program for the 2016/2017 
fiscal year. City Council also approved an additional position in public works to facilitate the 
installation of the new water meters.  
 
A contract was executed the contract with HD supply on March 16, 2017. Marcus Chaney was 
hired to install the meters on March 27, 2017. Staff ordered and installed the first 40 meters in 
April, 2017.  The door hangers were updated to include language regarding the new Neptune 
water meter installation was designed and ordered in mid-March and received in early April. 
 
Public Works staff have been trained to use and read the new AMR Neptune water meters and 
the first large order of 300 meters was placed April 20, 2017. The City is expecting the delivery 
on or before May 15, 2017.   
 
We are planning to have the 300 meters installed by July 1, if there are no unforeseen delays 
such as weather. Staff is planning to  place the order for the remaining water meters associated 
with phase 1 (686) prior to July 1. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Minutes from the City Council meeting dated January 19, 2017 (item 9) 
2. Minutes from the City Council meeting dated January 19, 2017 (item 9) 
3. Article from Lucas Leader published March 2017 
4. Article from Lucas Leader published April 2017 

 



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation: 
 
N/A 
 
Motion: 
 
N/A 

 

 









































Item No. 13 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

Requester: Councilmember Debbie Fisher  

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the capital projects associated with the City’s water system and roadway 
improvements discussed at the March 2, 2017 City Council meeting and associated funding 
strategies. 
 
Background Information: 
 
On the March 2, 2017, City Council Meeting, the following water projects were discussed: 

1. Elevated Water Tower, Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch Connection and 
Pressure Regulating Valves 

2. Parker Road Waterline Phase 2 (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa Fe Trail) 
3. Parker Road Waterline Phase 3T (From Santa Fe Trail to Stinson Road) 
4. Replace three existing pumps at the North Pump Station 
5. Add new pump house at the North Pump Station with three pumps 

 
At this same meeting, the City Council discussed the following roadway projects: 

1. Winningkoff Rd Reverse Curve (design funded in FY 16/17) 
2. Stinson Rd/W. Lucas Rd Intersection (design funded in FY 16/17) 
3. Country Club Road/Estates Parkway Intersection 
4. Winningkoff Road (Reverse Curve to Snider Lane) 
5. Stinson Road South of Bridge 
6. Blondy Jhune Road (West Bridge to Winningkoff Road) 
7. Stinson Road North of Bridge (middle section) 
8. Winningkoff Road (E. Lucas Rd to Reverse Curve) 

 
The City engaged SAMCO Financial advisors to assist with up to $3,000,000 in certificates of 
obligation to fund the water projects identified above and with up to $6,000,000 in certificates of 
obligation to fund the roadway projects identified as items 1 through 6 above. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Minutes from the City Council meeting dated March 2, 2017 
2. Agenda Item 6 from the City Council meeting dated March 2, 2017 
3. Agenda Item 7 from the City Council meeting dated March 2, 2017 
4. Certificate of Obligation Timeline 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 



Item No. 13 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
N/A 
 
Motion: 
 
N/A 

 

 











































Item No. 14 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Executive Session:   
 
The City Council may enter into Executive Session as permitted under the Texas Government 
Code, Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property 
within the City of Lucas.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



Item No. 15 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

May 4, 2017 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive Session. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 


	00 - 05-04-2017 AMENDED agenda
	AMENDED AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	May 4, 2017
	7:05 PM
	(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting)
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, May 4, 2017 at 7:05 pm or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Luc...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders...
	Consent Agenda
	All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.
	Public Hearing
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	Certification



	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	02a - Motorcycle Safety Awareness Month May 2017
	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	03a - 04-20-2017 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	April 20, 2017
	6:35 P.M.
	(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District Meeting)
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.


	04 - Stinson Highlands phase 3 annexation CS
	04a - NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS Stinson Highlands Phase 3
	04b - Legal Description Stinson Highlands phase 3
	04c - Final Plat Stinson Highlands 3
	04d - Stinson Highland III annex appl
	04e - Stinson Highlands phase 3 location map
	Slide Number 1

	05 - Barnes Waste Disposal - cs
	05a - 20170417-LUCAS Barnes Waste Disposal Inc. Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement-85354
	05b - Barnes Waste Disposal - new rates 2017
	Barnes New Rates

	06 - CIP Water system analasys CS 2
	06a - Lucas CIP final version amended by swf 042517 2
	CIP Project Prioritization
	CIP At-A-Glance
	CIP Water System Project List (2016 – 2030)
	CIP Water System Project List
	2016 – 2020


	07 - McGarity Drainage cs
	07a - Fox Glen Drainage 1999
	07b - Fox Glen Drainage April 2017
	07c- Ahmadi Email
	07d - Sept 1998 Drainage Policy
	08 - May Meeting Schedule cs
	09 - Strategic Planning cs
	10 - Scenic City  cs
	10a - 03-28-2017 POS Minutes
	10b - Scenic City background info
	11 - Traffic Control Device cs
	11a-Attchments
	11b - 04-06-2017 City Council Minutes signed
	12 - Water meter update
	12a - 01-19-2017 City Council Minutes signed
	12b - 02-02-2017 City Council Minutes signed
	12c - Water meter newsletter articles
	13 - Capital Project Update cs
	13a - 03-02-2017 City Council minutes signed
	13b - Water meter backup info
	14 - Executive Session cs
	15 - reconvene from Executive Session cs

